i Herefordshire
Council

AGENDA

Children's Services Scrutiny
Committee

Date: Monday 28 September 2009

Time: 10.00 am

Place: The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road,
Hereford

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting.
For any further information please contact:

Paul James, Democratic Services Officer
Tel: 01432 260460
Email: pjames@herefordshire.gov.uk

If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in
another format or language, please call Paul James, Democratic Services
Officer on 01432 260460 or e-mail pjames@herefordshire.gov.uk in
advance of the meeting.



Agenda for the Meeting of the Children's Services
Scrutiny Committee

Membership

Chairman Councillor WLS Bowen
Vice-Chairman Councillor ME Cooper

Councillor WU Attfield
Councillor BA Durkin
Councillor P Jones CBE
Councillor G Lucas
Councillor JE Pemberton
Councillor SJ Robertson
Councillor RV Stockton
Councillor AM Toon
Councillor WJ Walling

Mr PF Burbidge Roman Catholic Church
Mr T Leach Church of England
Mr N Parker Secondary School Parent Governor
Mr T Plumer Primary School Parent Governors
Mr A Wood Special School Governors

Non Voting Ms K Berry Connexions
Mrs OR Evans Special School Headteachers
Mr M Harrisson Teacher Representative
Mr C Mutton Primary School Headteachers
Mrs D Strutt Secondary School Headteachers
Ms H Tank The Alliance

GUIDANCE ON DECLARING PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS AT MEETINGS

The Council’'s Members’ Code of Conduct requires Councillors to declare against an Agenda item(s)
the nature of an interest and whether the interest is personal or prejudicial. Councillors have to
decide first whether or not they have a personal interest in the matter under discussion. They will
then have to decide whether that personal interest is also prejudicial.

A personal interest is an interest that affects the Councillor more than most other people in the area.
People in the area include those who live, work or have property in the area of the Council.
Councillors will also have a personal interest if their partner, relative or a close friend, or an
organisation that they or the member works for, is affected more than other people in the area. If they
do have a personal interest, they must declare it but can stay and take part and vote in the meeting.

Whether an interest is prejudicial is a matter of judgement for each Councillor. What Councillors have
to do is ask themselves whether a member of the public — if he or she knew all the facts — would think
that the Councillor's interest was so important that their decision would be affected by it. If a
Councillor has a prejudicial interest then they must declare what that interest is. A Councillor who
has declared a prejudicial interest at a meeting may nevertheless be able to address that meeting,
but only in circumstances where an ordinary member of the public would be also allowed to speak. In
such circumstances, the Councillor concerned will have the same opportunity to address the meeting
and on the same terms. However, a Councillor exercising their ability to speak in these
circumstances must leave the meeting immediately after they have spoken.



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 28 SEPTEMBER 2009

AGENDA

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To receive apologies for absence.
2, NAMED SUBSTITUTES

To receive details of Members nominated to attend the meeting in place of a
Member of the Committee.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on
the Agenda.

4. MINUTES
To approve and sign the Minutes of the meeting held on 6 June 2009.

5. SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR
FUTURE SCRUTINY

To consider suggestions from members of the public on issues the
Committee could scrutinise in the future.

6. SCHOOL TASK GROUP PAPER

To consider the consultation paper produced by the School Task Group on
the future of schools.

Item 6 School Task Group Paper - Reports

The attached reports mentioned in the main item were issued to Committee
Members as a supplement to the agenda.

7. 14-19: MACHINERY OF GOVERNMENT,: CHANGES TO CONNEXIONS,
LSC TRANSFER

To update Scrutiny Committee on the current position relating to: Machinery
of Government Changes/Learning & Skills Council (LSC) transfer and
Connexions transfer.

Item 7 - Machinery of Government - Reports

The attached report and appendix have been issued to Committee Members as a
supplement to the agenda.

8. CAPITAL BUDGET REPORT 2009/2010

To scrutinise the capital budget position for 2009/10 for the Children &
Young People’s Directorate.

9. REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 2009/2010

To report on the monitoring of the Children’s Services revenue budget for
2009/10 and provide comparisons to 2008/09 budget and outturn.

10. PERFORMANCE DIGEST - QUARTER 1 2009/2010

To present the Performance Digest for Children’s Services for the first
quarter of 2009/2010 (April — June 2009) and to highlight key performance
issues.

Pages

1-10

11-22

23-30

31-42

43 - 46



Item 10 - Performance Digest - the Digest
The attached Digest report was issued to Committee Members as a supplement.
11. SEN/BANDED FUNDING REVIEW WORKING GROUP REPORT 47 - 50

To consider the findings of the SEN/Banded Funding Working Group and
refer the findings to the Herefordshire Schools Forum for consideration.

12. COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 51-54

To consider the Committee work programme.




PUBLIC INFORMATION
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL'S SCRUTINY COMMITTEES

The Council has established Scrutiny Committees for Adult Social Care
and Strategic Housing, Childrens’ Services, Community Services,
Environment, and Health. A Strategic Monitoring Committee scrutinises
corporate matters and co-ordinates the work of these Committees.

The purpose of the Committees is to ensure the accountability and
transparency of the Council's decision making process.

The principal roles of Scrutiny Committees are to
e Help in developing Council policy

e Probe, investigate, test the options and ask the difficult questions
before and after decisions are taken

e Look in more detail at areas of concern which may have been raised
by the Cabinet itself, by other Councillors or by members of the public

e "call in" decisions - this is a statutory power which gives Scrutiny
Committees the right to place a decision on hold pending further
scrutiny.

e Review performance of the Council

e Conduct Best Value reviews

e Undertake external scrutiny work engaging partners and the public

Formal meetings of the Committees are held in public and information

on your rights to attend meetings and access to information are set out
overleaf



PUBLIC INFORMATION
Public Involvement at Scrutiny Committee Meetings

You can contact Councillors and Officers at any time about Scrutiny
Committee matters and issues which you would like the Scrutiny
Committees to investigate.

There are also two other ways in which you can directly contribute at
Herefordshire Council’s Scrutiny Committee meetings.

1. Identifying Areas for Scrutiny

At the meeting the Chairman will ask the members of the public present if
they have any issues which they would like the Scrutiny Committee to
investigate, however, there will be no discussion of the issue at the time
when the matter is raised. Councillors will research the issue and consider
whether it should form part of the Committee’s work programme when
compared with other competing priorities.

Please note that the Committees can only scrutinise items which fall within
their specific remit (see below). If a matter is raised which falls within the
remit of another Scrutiny Committee then it will be noted and passed on to
the relevant Chairman for their consideration.

2. Questions from Members of the Public for Consideration at
Scrutiny Committee Meetings and Participation at Meetings

You can submit a question for consideration at a Scrutiny Committee
meeting so long as the question you are asking is directly related to an item
listed on the agenda. If you have a question you would like to ask then
please submit it no later than two working days before the meeting to
the Committee Officer. This will help to ensure that an answer can be
provided at the meeting. Contact details for the Committee Officer can be
found on the front page of this agenda.

Generally, members of the public will also be able to contribute to the
discussion at the meeting. This will be at the Chairman’s discretion.

(Please note that the Scrutiny Committees are not able to discuss
questions relating to personal or confidential issues.)



Remits of Herefordshire Council’s Scrutiny Committees
Adult Social Care and Strategic Housing

Statutory functions for adult social services including:
Learning Disabilities

Strategic Housing

Supporting People

Public Health

Children’s Services

Provision of services relating to the well-being of children including
education, health and social care.

Community Services Scrutiny Committee

Libraries

Cultural Services including heritage and tourism
Leisure Services

Parks and Countryside

Community Safety

Economic Development

Youth Services

Health

Planning, provision and operation of health services affecting the area
Health Improvement
Services provided by the NHS

Environment

Environmental Issues
Highways and Transportation

Strategic Monitoring Committee
Corporate Strategy and Finance
Resources

Corporate and Customer Services
Human Resources



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at
Meetings

YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: -

e Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the
business to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information.

¢ Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the
meeting.

¢ Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to
six years following a meeting.

¢ Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up
to four years from the date of the meeting. (A list of the background papers to a
report is given at the end of each report). A background paper is a document on
which the officer has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available
to the public.

e Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all
Councillors with details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and
Sub-Committees.

e Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council,
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees.

e Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title.

e Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access,
subject to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per
agenda plus a nominal fee of £1.50 for postage).

e Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of
the Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy
documents.



Please Note:

Agenda and individual reports can be made available in large
print. Please contact the officer named on the front cover of this
agenda in advance of the meeting who will be pleased to deal
with your request.

The Council Chamber where the meeting will be held is accessible for
visitors in wheelchairs, for whom toilets are also available.

A public telephone is available in the reception area.

Public Transport Links

e Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service runs
approximately every half hour from the ‘Hopper bus station at the Tesco store in
Bewell Street (next to the roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street /
Edgar Street).

e The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Old Eign Hill near to its junction
with Hafod Road. The return journey can be made from the same bus stop.

If you have any questions about this agenda, how the Council works or would like more
information or wish to exercise your rights to access the information described above,
you may do so either by telephoning the officer named on the front cover of this agenda
or by visiting in person during office hours (8.45 a.m. - 5.00 p.m. Monday - Thursday
and 8.45 a.m. - 4.45 p.m. Friday) at the Council Offices, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road,
Hereford.

inked without bleaching and free from optical brightening agents (OBA). Awarded the

@ Where possible this agenda is printed on paper made from 100% Post-Consumer waste. De-
<9 Nordic Swan for low emissions during production and the Blue Angel environmental label.




HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD.

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring
continuously.

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the
nearest available fire exit.

You should then proceed to Assembly Point J which is located at
the southern entrance to the car park. A check will be undertaken
to ensure that those recorded as present have vacated the
building following which further instructions will be given.

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of
the exits.

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning
to collect coats or other personal belongings.



AGENDA ITEM 4

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL

MINUTES of the meeting of Children's Services Scrutiny
Committee held at The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod
Road, Hereford on Monday 6 July 2009 at 10.00 am

Present: Councillor WLS Bowen (Chairman)
Councillor ME Cooper (Vice Chairman)

Councillors: BA Durkin, G Lucas, JE Pemberton, SJ Robertson, RV Stockton,
AM Toon,

Co-opted Members: Mr PF Burbidge, Mr N Parker, Mr T Plumer, Mr A Wood,
Mrs OR Evans, Mr C Mutton and Mrs D Strutt

In attendance: Councillors: JA Hyde (Cabinet Member - Children's Services), PD Price
(Cabinet Member - ICT, Education and Achievement), PJ Edwards, AT Oliver

and J Stone
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies were received from Mr T Leach, Councillor WU Attfield and Councillor Brig. P
Jones.
2, NAMED SUBSTITUTES

Councillor MD Lloyd-Hayes substituted for Councillor WU Attfield.
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

The following interests were declared:

Name Interest Reason

Councillor WLS Bowen Personal Governor — Kingsland CE Primary and
Luston Primary schools.

Councillor M Cooper Personal Governor - John Masefield High School

Councillor B Durkin Personal Governor - Kings Caple Primary School

Councillor G Lucas Personal Governor — Brampton Abbotts CE
Primary School

Councillor JE Pemberton | Personal Governor — Hampton Dene Primary
School

Councillor SJ Robertson | Personal Governor - Burghill Community Primary
School

Councillor RV Stockton Personal Governor - Colwall CE Primary School

Councillor AM Toon Personal Governor - Whitecross High School.

Mr PF Burbidge Personal Governor — St Mary’s RC High School

Mr T Plumer Personal Governor - Burley Gate CE Primary
School

Mr A Wood Personal Governor — The Brookfield School




MINUTES

RESOLVED: That subject to clarifying in Minute 51 — Revenue Budget Monitoring —
that currently there was no specific funding to support gifted and
talented pupils, however, under new funding arrangements there
would be from 2009/10, the minutes of the meeting held on 30 March
2009 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

SUGGESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC ON ISSUES FOR FUTURE
SCRUTINY

Councillor AM Toon brought to the attention of the Committee national issues arising
from new legislation concerning Nursery Education Funding (NEF) and questioned
whether the Committee were aware of the implications of NEF funding. The Committee
requested that further information on NEF be circulated to Members and a full report be
presented to the next meeting.

RESOLVED: That a report be presented to the next meeting on the introduction
and implications of NEF funding.

PRESENTATION BY CABINET MEMBERS

The Cabinet Member (Children’s Services) and the Cabinet Member (ICT, Education
and Achievement) were invited to comment on achievements or areas for improvement
in the past year in their programme areas as they relate to this Committee, what will
need to be addressed in the coming year and issues in which they may wish to involve
Scrutiny in the future.

The Cabinet Member (Children’s Services) and the Cabinet Member (ICT, Education
and Achievement) gave a presentation, the slides for which had been printed in the
agenda, together with supporting documents.

Based on the slides the following are the principal points or comments made by the
Cabinet Members:

Slide one — based on the APA outcome, there was generally an improving picture. New
Heads of Service were in place.

Slide two — an assessment of educational standards and attainment indicated that good
progress was being made. Health Care also indicated some good successes. Both
Cabinet Members attended the ‘Children in Care Council. Good work was being
undertaken on the use, and co-ordination with social care, of Children’s Centres.

Slide three — the number of referrals and assessments was being closely monitored.
Targeted Youth Support was showing some recovery, however, while limited by budgets
the range of support was being looked at. The economic down turn had increased the
number of young people in jobs without training.

Slide four — indications were that the ‘No Wrong Door’ approach to locality working would
be a success. The new Children and Young People’s Plan, reflecting national and local
visions and priorities, had been produced and launched. The scope of the Children’s
Trust was being reviewed. High level staff recruitment would see a change in the
Service from which the schools would also see a benefit, however, time was needed for
the changes to bed in. Following a re-fresh the Herefordshire Shadow Children’s Board
now had an independent Chairman.

Slide five — work and consultation was on-going to implement ‘School Passports’ and a
report was expected to go to Cabinet in autumn 09. Following the transfer of functions
from Connexions and the Learning and Skills Council it was acknowledged that the staff
pay/conditions of those transferred now needed to be addressed. While the recent bid



under Building Schools for the Future had been unsuccessful the Council now had a
robust programme should a further bid be invited. Implementing ‘No Wrong Door’
approach to locality working and embedding the Common Assessment Framework
(CAF) would be issues for the year.

Slide six — the appointment of Every Child Matters (ECM) Link Members will enable
Scrutiny Members to build a greater understanding of issues in the Directorate. No new
money was available for ‘No Wrong Door’ and therefore it was essential that existing
resources were directed to ensure that the different teams provided a truly integrated
service.

During the course of debate the following principal points were noted:

» |t was asserted that the overall Annual Performance Assessment (APA) grades,
set out in the table on agenda page 21, indicated no appreciable improvement
over a number of years. In response the Director of Children’s Services reported
that the Government Office confirmed that progress was being made. She
agreed that the Service should not be complacent, however, limited finance and
greater expectations by central government increased the pressures on the
Service.

» Following a number of high profile cases, nationally it had become difficult to
recruit staff to key posts. Herefordshire were employing a number of ways to
attract personnel to the County.

= The Children’s Advocacy Service continued to provide assistance, particularly to
Looked After Children.

» Questioned on the relationship between the Capital Programme and the Task
Force Programme the Committee noted that the Building Schools for the Future
Programme was a national programme. Bids for funding were made balancing
local needs to national targets and the national framework.

» There was likely to be a loss of expectation by the public when the 2 year funding
for ‘Under 16 Swimming’ ceased.

RESOLVED: That the presentations be noted.
KINSHIP CARE AND CHILDREN CARED FOR BY UNOFFICIAL CARERS

The Committee were informed of the percentage of children in Kinship Care Placements
and the position regarding children cared for by unofficial carers.

The Assistant Director, Safeguarding and Vulnerable Children, reported that there were
various arrangements for children in care, one of which was Kinship Care. The
directorate was currently working on developing a Kinship Career Policy. Answering the
Committees original question she reported that no information was held by the
Directorate on children cared for by unofficial carers. She acknowledged that obtaining
true statistics on unreported children in care was a national problem and reported that
locally information concerning the legal position of being a carer was being distributed
via posters and handouts.

A view was expressed that it wasn’'t uncommon for people in a community to
occasionally help by providing short term help and care to children within the community
and this shouldn’t be discouraged.

The Cabinet Member (Children’s Services) agreed that while some kinship relationships
e.g. grandparents, were obvious, there were a number of grey areas to the definition.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted and a further update be presented in 6
months.



PROGRESS REPORT - DOMESTIC ABUSE

The Committee were informed of progress made in addressing the needs of children
affected by domestic abuse, since the last report to Committee in December 2008.

The Assistant Director, Safeguarding and Vulnerable Children, presented the agenda
report indicating the national and local position; initiatives and national guidance and
highlighted the work of the Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Conference (MARAC).

Responding to questions on the percentage increase in children subject to child
protection plans where domestic abuse was a significant factor (40% in 2008/9 to 52%
currently, equating to approximately 65 children) the Assistant Director, Safeguarding
and Vulnerable Children reported that: information on the percentage of referrals to
Social Care in which domestic abuse was a significant factor was not available for 2008-
9 or for previous years, as the available management information system had not been
capable of collating such data. The new Integrated Social Care Solution, Frameworki,
would provide the capacity to report much more accurately and work was underway on
the improvement of data quality to enable accurate reporting on this matter for 2009-10.
Since the implementation of Frameworki in November 2008, 21% of all contacts to the
Referral and Assessment Team had come from the Police, and 25% of all initial
assessments had been initiated as a result of referrals by Police. As a result of recent
national cases more referrals were generally being reported.

The need for accurate baseline data and indications of trend was emphasised by the
Committee and further data was requested.

Various points were made that abuse didn’t only relate to abuse to women. The Director
of Children’s Services reported that while the principal support was provided through
West Mercia Women'’s Aid a range of services were available.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted and further background data including an
indication of trend and how factors affect Locality Teams be forwarded as a
briefing note to members.

UPDATE ON CHILDREN’S SAFEGUARDING

The Committee were updated on recent changes and improvements in aspects of
safeguarding young people following on from the independent report of local services by
Steve Love in autumn 2008, and also taking account of issues arising from national
events after ‘Baby P’ and the Laming report.

The Director of Children’s Services presented the agenda report and highlighted that
following the independent review by Steve Love the Herefordshire Safeguarding
Children’s Board (HSCB) had identified a number of areas for improvement including the
integration of various action plans. The HSCB had been restructured to improve
strategic leadership and ensure high level commitment from appropriate agencies which
had provided a fresh impetus to the Board. A number of high level staff changes had
been made in the Department, however, in common with other authorities, there were
still recruitment and retention issues around social workers. A high volume of work was
involved in Serious Case Reviews (SCR). While the Service had assisted with out of
county cases, one case identified in the County was now nearing conclusion.
Unfortunately a further in-County Serious Case Review had been initiated. The HSCB
ensured that lessons learned from such cases were noted and that action plans were
drawn up and local services were improved.



10.

The Committee noted that the HSCB is a statutory body that reported to the Children’s
Trust. The Scrutiny Committee was able to monitor performance via the Performance
Digest (see later Minute 13).

The Director of Children’s Services reported that following the Laming Report and arising
out of SCRs the reinforcement of effective information sharing practices had been
identified and a protocol would be drawn up with appropriate training to ensure all staff
were familiar with the requirements. The Committee requested to be kept informed of
progress with the protocol and expressed a view that improved data sharing should be a
priority and needed a speedy resolution. The Cabinet Member (ICT Education and
Achievement) commented that a degree of information sharing was possible at the
moment, however, not all ICT systems could be configured to share with each other. A
Member commented that the Council’s Data Sharing Policy lacked clarity.

Concern was expressed that two actions were marked ‘no data’ (para 16 in the report)
However, the Committee noted that one quarters data had been unavailable due to staff
changes within the new team.

Responding to questions on the implementation of Criminal Records Bureau (CRB)
checks (referred to at agenda page 76 - action 3.3 — Safeguarding Action Plan) the
Director of Children’s Services reported that a phased approach was underway to check
and update staff/Members CRB checks. A new national system obviating the need for
multiple checks to be undertaken was expected to be introduced in the autumn.

The Director of Children’s Services reminded the Committee that the Comprehensive
Area Assessment (CAA) was due later in the year and that annual, unannounced
safeguarding visits to local authority contact, referral and assessment centres could take
place any time soon.

RESOLVED: That

a) the report be noted and Members be informed by briefing note of progress
in drafting a Locally Agreed Protocol on Information Sharing;

b) a briefing note be circulated updating on how the phased approach to
undertaking CRB checks was progressing; and

c) the ease and security of information sharing between key partners in the
County should be a priority and needs a speedy resolution and the
Chairman and Vic-Chairman be kept informed of progress.

CONTINUUM OF PROVISION FOR CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE WITH AUTISM
SPECTRUM CONDITIONS IN HEREFORDSHIRE

The Committee considered the current provision for children and young people with
Autistic Spectrum Conditions (ASC) in Herefordshire and action plans for the
development of further provision.

The Assistant Director, Improvement and Inclusion, presented the agenda report which
set out the current policy together with accepted definition of ASC, national and local
statistics, and current and future provision.

Questioned on the current policy the Assistant Director, Improvement and Inclusion,
responded that work on updating the policy would start in autumn 2009 and would be
linked to the ‘centre of excellence’ work undertaken by Birmingham University.

It was noted that recent government funding had been targeted to dyslexia and aimed at
improving staff recognition of conditions.



1.

12.

Consideration was being given to setting up a multi agency team which could also assist
parents in negotiating the necessary procedure for diagnosis and would provide a more
robust system of identification and recording.

The accuracy of the figures quoted in table 3 were questioned (agenda page 88). The
point was made that either Herefordshire was very fortunate in having such a low
incidence percentage or the data was incorrect. The Committee suggested that the
robustness of the data used in table 3 be re-examined.

RESOLVED:

a) the report be noted and the Committee suggests that the robustness of the
data for Herefordshire contained in Table 3 to the report be re-examined;
and

b) the Committee requested sight of the new policy for Additional Needs
when drafted.

CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING

The Committee considered the capital budget position for 2009/10 for the Children &
Young People’s Directorate.

The Schools Planning & Access Manager presented the agenda report and highlighted
that, as part of the Government’s drive to stimulate the economy Herefordshire had
received a proportion of next years funding (2010/11) to spend in this financial year
(2009/10). This early funding would principally be used towards projects at The Minster,
Leominster; Hereford Academy, and the replacement of the Infant and Junior schools at
Leominster. Details of other capital projects were set out in the agenda report.

Questioned on the status of the Section 106 developer funding the Committee were
informed that references in the report referred to funding that had actually been received.
It was further noted that the Council intended to appoint a Section 106 Officer to co-
ordinate the approach and use of Sec 106 funding.

Referring to capital funds for Voluntary Aided schools a member expressed a view that
the 10% funding to be found by VA schools for maintenance or improvement scheme
should not be waived.

The Committee noted that no Private Finance Initiatives (PFI) were included in the
Capital budget as major projects were now undertaken through the ‘Building schools for
the Future One School Pathfinder’ scheme.

RESOLVED: That the Capital Budget report 2009/10 be noted.

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S DIRECTORATE REVENUE OUTTURN REPORT
2008/09

The Committee considered the outturn report covering Children and Young People’
Services for 2008/9.

The Finance Manager presented the agenda report and reported that Appendix 1 to the
report had been presented to Cabinet on 4th June and represented the position reported
to this Committee in March. The outturn represented a net underspend of £567,000. He
highlighted that £217k of general Sure Start grant, which had not been planned for when
the budget had been set, had been used to support the Early Years budget.



13.

He further reported that total rate rebates of £1,054,205 had been received for charitable
rates relief for voluntary aided schools covering the period back to 2000. The £186k
relating to 2008/9 had been carried forward as part of the Dedicated Schools Grant
(DSG) underspend, with the remaining £868,537 being carried forward as a reserve.
Following discussion with the Department for Children, Schools and Families legal
opinion had been sought on how the rates underspend could be used. The Committee
wished to be kept informed of the outcome of the legal opinion.

The budget position concerning the School Music Services was noted and the Director of
Children’s Service agreed that while it was a valuable service it had to be provided within
budget.

Members questioned the clarity of budget reporting, particularly concerning the over or
under spend in SEN provision. The Assistant Director, Performance, Planning and
Development, responded that the report format would be further developed for greater
clarity.

RESOLVED: That the revenue outturn report 2008/9 be noted.

COMPREHENSIVE AREA ASSESSMENT AND PERFORMANCE DIGEST - YEAR
END 2008/2009

The Committee were advised of the final proposals for assessing Children’s Services
under the Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) and considered the Performance
Digest for Children’s Services for 2008/09.

The Assistant Director, Performance, Planning and Development, presented the agenda
report and highlighted that the Council, its partners and schools, would be judged under
the CAA. In addition to the statutory education targets there are six children related
indicators in the Local Area Agreement (LAA). Aside from the LAA indicators, other
performance in each outcome area was set out in the Performance Digest 2008-9 Year
End, which had been issued with the agenda.

The Committee questioned whether the target number of social worker posts was likely
to be achieved. The Director of Children’s Services responded that the directorate had
an action plan to tackle the recruitment and retention issue which included recruitment
from overseas and the further training of existing staff. Recent advertising via a County-
wide leaflet drop, had produced little response.

The Assistant Director, Performance, Planning and Development highlighted that in the
current economic climate NI117 (Percentage of 16-18 year olds who are not in
education, employment or training (NEET)) would be a challenging target.

Questioned on the input of views to consultations the Committee expressed a view that
greater use should be made of both Schools and Youth Councils.

The Committee questioned whether services, including the third sector, were working
together as, it was alleged, the ‘Wheels to Work’ programme lacked sufficient bicycles to
meet the need.

The Committee requested clarification of the terms ‘short term’ and ‘long term’ sickness
absence with a breakdown of the directorate sickness absence figures.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted and the Committee suggests that greater
use be made of both School and Youth Councils when undertaking consultation to
ensure that young people’s views are included.



14.

15.

SWIMMING AT KEY STAGE 2

The Committee were informed of the swimming requirements as part of the National
Curriculum at Key Stage 2.

The Assistant Director, Improvement and Inclusion, reported that swimming was one
strand in the County’s Sports Strategy and was commissioned through HALO. In
response to the question raised at the March meeting she informed the Committee that
the local authority did not keep records of pupil achievement for swimming at Key Stage
2. Schools kept a range of pupil data and therefore further data should be capable of
being obtained.

The Committee requested that further data be obtained e.g. covering the last two years,
and that a baseline be established against which future years can be monitored. A
number of Members suggested that a scrutiny review be held into Key Stage 2
swimming attainment. It was suggested that the Committee await the results of the data,
however, the Committee agreed to initiate a review immediately. The Cabinet Member
(ICT, Education and Achievement) cautioned that the review should only consider data
and not hearsay evidence.

RESOLVED:

a) that the report be noted and the requested data on pupil achievement for
swimming at Key Stage 2 be sought; and

b) A scrutiny review be undertaken into pupil achievement for swimming at
Key Stage 2 to establish base line data against which any future trend can
be compared.

c) Councillors: WLS Bowen (Chair), MD Lloyd-Hayes; SJ Robertson; and AM
Toon be appointed Members of the Scrutiny Review Group.

COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME
The Committee considered its work programme.
The following items were suggested:

1. Looked after children placement costs

2. That regular updates on 16-19 transition be provided to the committee.

3. How the Common Assessment Framework (CAF) compared with the ’'Child
Concern Model

4. Accountability, and access to minutes of, the Children’s Trust.

The Director responded that information on the above issues can be supplied to the
Committee by means of an e-mail briefing note. The minutes of the Children’s Trust are
available on the web site and members will be provided with the web address.

Referring to Member Training events the Director of Children’s Services reported that a
training event on safeguarding was planned for autumn 2009.

RESOLVED: that subject to adding the items identified earlier in the meeting
namely:

a) the introduction and implications of NEF funding in relation to nursery
school sector.(Minute No. 5)

b) a further update on Kinship Care and Children Cared for by Unofficial
Carers (Minute No.7) and



c) the work programme be approved and reported to Strategic Monitoring
Committee.

The meeting ended at 1.30 pm CHAIRMAN



10



“ Herefordshire
Council

MEETING: CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY

DATE: 28 SEPTEMBER 2009

TITLE OF REPORT: | SCHOOLS TASK GROUP UPDATE

PORTFOLIO AREA: |ICT, ACHIEVEMENT AND EDUCATION

CLASSIFICATION: Open
Wards Affected

County-wide

Purpose

To note and comment on the progress made by the Schools Task Group (STG) and the proposals for
the consultation process for the STG paper.

Key Decision

This is not a Key Decision.

Recommendation(s)
THAT the Committee :

(a) comment on the process and timescale for consultation on Schools Task
Group paper (Appendix 1):and

(b) Note the process followed and progress made by the Schools Task Group
in preparing the paper for consultation.

Key Points Summary

. The STG has met with the purpose of drafting a paper outlining the next steps in the planning
of educational provision.

. A report is to be considered by Cabinet on 24 September and the Director will inform Scrutiny
Committee should any matters be raised by them.

. The draft is now ready for formal consultation with all stakeholders with feedback to Cabinet in
November 2009.

Alternative Options

1 There are no alternative options as the STG papers will affect both the schools and local

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Sharon Menghini, Director of Children’s Services on (01432) 260039

SchoolsTaskGroupv20.doc 26Nov08



communities it is wholly appropriate that a full and formal consultation now takes place.

Reasons for Recommendations

2

It is appropriate that the Scrutiny Committee are fully aware of both the progress made by the
STG to date and the next steps in consultation.

Introduction and Background

3

Following the meeting in December 2008 of Head Teachers, Chairs of Governors and
Cabinet, it was agreed that a STG would be established with appropriate membership to
consider the issues pertinent to the future planning of school provision in Herefordshire.
Attached as Appendix 3 are the terms of reference for the STG.
The STG has met on 8 occasions between January 2009 and September 2009 to consider:

e falling rolls;

o statistical data

e financial implications

e possible alternative models, e.g. federation

e governance and school leadership

e rural considerations.

There have been regular press releases and opportunities to update the school community
and engage them in discussion.

The independent chair, David Brown, has lead the group as well as facilitating other
discussions with the Herefordshire Association of Governors (HAG), Primary Head Teachers
Forum and Herefordshire Association of Secondary Heads.

David has previously been a Director of Children’s Services and, as well as bringing a wealth
of experience and knowledge to the group, has also taken time to visit a number of our
schools to better understand the context.

The STG has worked up an initial draft paper which has been shared with head teachers and
chairs of governors over an extended summer period. The STG met recently to consider the
responses which were wide ranging and an analysis of the issues which arose lead us to
conclude that the main themes can be summarised as follows;

. Broad support for the overall direction involving clusters and groups of schools,
Governors and Headteachers being more directly engaged in the process of change

. Majority support for criteria regarding reviews of schools with specific challenges, and
recommendations around leadership

o Concerns and suggestions about how some of the criteria and the overall approach
will operate in practice and how improvements could be made



10

11

12

. Desire for a local authority strategic plan in which or to which the above would have a
relationship

The STG agreed that, taking account of these responses, the paper did not require re-drafting
at this stage; a further meeting of the group is scheduled for November to consider the
outcome of both the formal consultation and the consultation with schools before a report is
prepared for Cabinet consideration in November

The paper at Appendix 1 is the final draft for formal consultation and will be tabled at the
Cabinet meeting on 24 September.

Following Cabinet consideration, it is proposed that the consultation period will be from 25
September to 2 November 2009 with feedback being brought back to Cabinet on 26
November for consideration.

Key Considerations

13

Communication and engagement of a variety of stakeholders will be key to the consultation.
The Council’s usual consultation mechanisms will be in place with press articles encouraging
professionals and public to respond

Community Impact

14

The aim is to support all communities by ensuring they have the opportunity to consider the
findings of the School Task Group and engage in planning the future provision of education in
the county. Therefore we have arranged:

e An all Members’ seminar has been arranged for 2.00 pm on 18 September 2009 to ensure
Ward Members have an opportunity to debate the issues as part of the consultation. A
copy of the consultation document will be circulated at this event.

e Schools have been encouraged to engage their local communities in the consultation

Financial Implications

15

At this preliminary stage, no financial implications have been identified

Legal Implications

16

At this preliminary stage, no legal implications have been identified.

Risk Management

17Until the outcome of the consultation, the full analysis of risk is unknown.

Consultees

18

The first draft has been considered by head teachers and Chairs of Governors.

Appendices

Appendix 1 - Final draft of STG consultation paper



Appendix 2 — List of formal consultees

Appendix 3 — Schools Task Group Terms of Reference
Background Papers

STG minutes of meetings

Financial paper / Schools Forum Minutes — July 2009



5 Herefordshire E!ZZB

Council Herefordshire

HEREFORDSHIRE SCHOOLS
TASK GROUP INTERIM
REPORT

FOR PUBLIC CONSULTATION

SEPTEMBER 2009

CONSULTATION DATES: 25 SEPTEMBER 2009 TO 2 NOVEMBER 2009

‘Making a positive difference to the lives of children and young people’



Herefordshire m

Council Herefordshire
Children & Young People's Directorate
Dr S Menghini
Your Ref:
Our Ref:  SM

Please ask for:  Sharon Menghini
Direct Line / Extension: 01432 260039
Fax: 01432 340189

E-mail:  smenghini@herefordshire.gov.uk

September, 2009

Dear Stakeholder,

Following agreement at a meeting with Cabinet Members, Head Teachers and Chairs of
Governors in December 2008 the Schools Task Group was established to consider the way
forward for the planning of Herefordshire provision of schools. Great emphasis was placed
upon the need to continue to engage schools and their local communities in the debates as
we move forward. It was agreed that it was important to ensure we continue to plan for and
provide a high quality education system for our young people, that gave them the very best
opportunities for their lives in the 21% century and build upon the excellence and good
practice that we already have in our county. It was also acknowledged that the pressures of
falling rolls and financial constraints meant that the status quo was not an option but at the
same time that there is great variety and diversity across the county which would need to be
taken into account in any future plans.

Bearing all of this in mind, it is a complex and sensitive task that we all face. The Schools’
Task Group, made up of School Head Teachers, Governor representatives, local officers
and chaired by David Brown an independent chair has met on several occasions. This paper
is the result of their deliberations. Heads and Chairs have already had early sight of the
paper prior to this formal consultation and broadly speaking, it has been well received. An
easy to read version is being prepared and will be published shortly.

We are now consulting on this paper with schools, stakeholders and the public before the
Cabinet Meeting in November which will outline the messages from the consultation and
inform future planning.

We hope that you will take the time to read and debate the content with colleagues and have
encouraged schools to engage with their local parents and communities as much as
possible to ensure that the broadest discussions can take place and everyone has an
opportunity to take part.

Working in partnership for the people of Herefordshire
Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, Hereford, HR1 1SH
Herefordshire Council Main Switchboard (01432) 260000, www.herefordshire.gov.uk
NHS Herefordshire Main Switchboard (01432) 344344, www.herefordshire.nhs.uk



Please send in your response sheet either as individuals or groups as explained later in the
document. We look forward to receiving your replies.

Yours sincerely,

l; ,;\: A — /
COUNCILLOR PHILIP PRICE SHARON MENGHINI
CABINET MEMBER, ICT, EDUCATION DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN'S
& ACHIEVEMENT SERVICES



CONTENTS

LETTER. ...ttt e et e et e e e e annae e e e Page 1
INTRODUCTION ... e e e Page 4
CONEEXL e Page 4
PUrpose of Task GrOUD ......coviiiiiiiiee e Page 5
CONSIDERATIONS REGARDING CLUSTER WORKING. ......................... Page 6
CONSIDERATIONS REGARDING SCHOOL LEADERSHIP ..................... Page 8
CONSIDERATIONS REGARDING SUSTAINABLE SCHOOLS................. Page 10
CONSIDERATIONS REGARDING FINANCE .............coooiiiiiiiieeeeeee Page 12
CONSIDERATIONS REGARDING NATIONAL STRATEGIES .................. Page 13
TIMELINE ...ttt e e Page 14
MATRIX MAPPING ... a e Page 15
APPENDICES..........oooiii e Page 16
Appendix 1 — Models of Leadership in 215 Century ...........cccccooveveeevenennne. Page 16
Appendix 2 — Governors Strategic Planning Process ............cccccoeeeeeeeeie. Page 21
Appendix 3 — Clusters and Feeder Primary Schools ..................c.ccco. Page 22

Appendix 4 — Cluster Meeting Draft Agenda/Key Performance Indicators ... Page 24

Appendix 5 — Herefordshire Strategic Housing Planning Approach............. Page 25

Appendix 6 — Strategic Planning Information................ccccccoiiiiiiiins Page 27
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Principles to Guide the Provision of Education in Herefordshire

N e 215 CONIUNY ..o, Page 29
Independent Consultant’s Report on School Funding.............ccccuvviiiiiiannn. Page 44
SMall SChOOIS POICY .....ceiiiiiiiii e Page 63
Terms of REFErENCE ........ovveiiii e Page 68
GLOSSARY ...t as Page 72
RESPONSE TO CONSULTATION TEMPLATE.............ccoiiiiiiien Page 73

Responses to the consultation can be submitted through:

the web consultation link www.herefordshire.gov.uk/consult

via email to schoolstaskgroup@herefordshire.gov.uk

via post to: F.Lennon Children & Young People’s Directorate, PO BOX 185,
Blackfriars Street, Hereford. HR4 9ZR




INTRODUCTION

CONTEXT

Herefordshire is a County of good educational standards with aspirations for excellence.
Herefordshire Schools Task Group (HSTG) believes that we need to seize the strengths of
this as well as ensuring that all children and young people have the appropriate level of
educational opportunities to meet their needs and aspirations. Their needs are paramount in
any consideration of strategic delivery over the next ten years and should be seen in the
widest sense possible.

Solutions to the challenges which face Herefordshire are most likely to come from local
leaders, in consultation with Governors, Headteachers and local communities who will be
supported by the Local Authority. The HSTG acknowledges the background and history
relating to this process of change. A climate of negativity and apprehension will not support
the long term interests of our children and young people. Only by encouraging debate about
change at all levels within the context of diverse provision will sustainability be achieved.

Building upon the 21%' Century principles document (see additional information section)
which had previously been agreed with head teachers, this task group has been established.
It must be emphasised that the task group is advisory to the Council and any decision on
school provision will be taken by the Council Cabinet.

HSTG has considered that the challenges facing Herefordshire are:
e The priority to continually improve the quality of educational outcomes
e The impacts of falling rolls, surplus capacity and parental preference
¢ Financial realities

¢ Changes in school workforce




PURPOSE OF TASK GROUP

P1 To establish a set of criteria to underpin the future of education and learning
provision which can then be applied to establish a strategic development plan for the
next ten years. These criteria will provide a framework upon which decisions will be
made.

This is exemplified in the report as:

Principles, criteria and both short and medium term recommendations.

P2 To agree a set of principles which can then be applied for the drawing up of a draft
model of schools’ provision prior to full consultation. It may be that more than one
model can be designed for consultation.

This is exemplified in the report as:

Protocols for working with schools “with challenges”, and potential models of school
leadership.

P3 To look at the different dynamics of Herefordshire — market town, rural areas, city etc
and to have flexibility to consider any other issues as they arise.

This is exemplified in the report as:

Strategic information about each cluster in the context of Herefordshire’s
demographic changes and improved financial modelling and analysis.

Following consideration of the fundamental issues about educational provision, we propose
a way forward. We anticipate and welcome more detailed discussion coupled with wide
consultation that will lead to timely action.

HSTG suggests that the existing Local Authority protocols for supporting and challenging
schools are applied by all Leadership Teams. This is to ensure consistency, clarity and
openness when considering the future of all schools. This will be subject to the usual
Cabinet approvals where needed. This procedure then becomes a comprehensive approach
for supporting Governors, with advice from Headteachers, SIPS and other relevant
Stakeholders.

The principles outlined above indicate that Governors, Headteachers, the Local Authority,
stakeholders and communities need to consider different approaches to school governance,
leadership and organisation. Appendix 1 — Models of Leadership in 21® Century considers
some of the national, regional and local approaches already under consideration and offers
models to promote discussion.

The Diocese, communities and clusters of schools with the Local Authority will play an
important role in determining the shape of school leadership models in Herefordshire in the
21st Century. To be able to fully engage in this process requires accessibility to the accurate
data relating to school rolls, finance, and demographic factors. None of these pre-determine
any future approach.



1. CONSIDERATIONS REGARDING CLUSTER WORKING

Standards of education are paramount and any strategic review should celebrate and build
upon the success of Herefordshire’s existing educational provision. The identified challenges
must be considered by all partners when designing models of working which ensure high
quality and sustainable education in its broadest sense for Herefordshire’s children and
young people. Therefore the status quo is not sustainable.

Cluster Working Recommendation 1 - CWR1

Engagement of all stakeholders is essential. Local communities and appropriate authorities
must contribute to and take ownership of the outcomes of the process. The process should
be open and inclusive where all those who seek to participate respect the views of others
and treat those views with due regard to the differing faith, cultural and professional
perspectives.

Cluster Working Recommendation 2 - CWR2

Co-operation is essential to meet the identified challenges. It is also a necessary part of
retaining a widespread and diverse variety of education as currently chosen by parents. It is
fundamental to the continued improvement of children and young people and a vital part of
schools sharing leadership, teaching and wider support services. Co-operation can take a
variety of forms including sharing physical facilities, staffing and resources. Governors,
Headteachers and appropriate authorities will work together through their cluster schools, to
establish a firmer foundation for this. All schools must be pro-actively engaged in such
discussions.

Cluster Working Recommendation 3 - CWR3

Provision planning is to be adopted and applied by all schools as part of annual self
evaluation. Local Authority, Diocesan and Trust Representative officers alongside SIPs
should support all Governing Bodies to undertake, by September 2010, a formal evaluation
of different options to feed into the creation of a strategic plan for Herefordshire. This will
inform a strategic map for Herefordshire. (Appendix 2 Governors Strategic Planning
Process)

Cluster Working Recommendation 4 —- CWR4

Cluster Meetings of Governors, Headteachers and Local Authority and Diocesan/Trust
representatives will take place termly, with agenda and minutes of the meetings to be made
available on Herefordshire Council Website. Accurate information relating to financial and
pupil data and evaluation of standards relating to all schools and other members of the
clusters will be made available to aid discussion and strategic planning.

e There may also be occasions where cross cluster solutions are appropriate (e.g. 14-
19 networks);

e Such solutions will inform the strategic planning for Herefordshire provision;




¢ The Local Authority and Diocesan/Trust Board where relevant, with Schools Forum
will apply a test of financial viability/sustainability to cluster/federation proposals. This
follows discussions held at a meeting of Schools Forum in July 2009 where the
financial factors were presented.

(Appendix 3 — Clusters and Feeder Primary Schools + Appendix 4 — Cluster Meeting
Draft Agenda and Key Performance Indicators)

Cluster Working Recommendation 5 — CWRS5

Schools facing challenges have specific issues relating to their development and
sustainability. Governing bodies have the responsibility to provide strategic direction for their
schools in order to maximise the opportunities on offer for their children and young people
and ensure continuous improvement of standards and delivery. As part of this duty
governors should be required by the Local Authority, and Diocesan Boards if appropriate, to
consider all options should such challenges face their school.

Existing Local Authority protocols for supporting and challenging schools facing issues such
as finance, falling rolls, changes in leadership, standards and inspections will be integrated
into the proposed approach for Governing Bodies and school leadership teams to consider
when provision planning. This will underpin the HSTG principles and support the
development of high quality sustainable schools.

Cluster representatives and school leadership teams should be fully involved in such
developments and offer solutions and models for consideration.

This will further support the consideration and development of new models of working.

Where agreements, models and/or solutions cannot be identified through this approach
Local Authority officers will further support and challenge in order to bring about an agreed
plan of action. If necessary the Local Authority will use its powers to intervene if no cluster
engagement has been undertaken prior to appointing to leadership vacancies or developing
solutions to school specific issues.

Please complete your responses to section 1 recommendations CWR1- CWRS5 on the
template provided at the end of this document.



2. CONSIDERATIONS REGARDING SCHOOL LEADERSHIP

Leadership changes are a normal part of school life. An essential element of education
provision in the next 10 years will be developing, recruiting and retaining the best possible
school leaders in Herefordshire. The purpose of this is to ensure that standards and the
quality of provision continue to improve and that our schools are effectively led into the 21°
Century.

Developing different models of school leadership is one way of recruiting and retaining high
quality school leaders and will be considered at every opportunity. All partners will see this
as an essential element of delivering improved standards of education in Herefordshire.

Models of School Leadership could include the appointment of “executive heads” for groups
of schools or other less formal ways of ensuring that high quality leadership can be
sustained. It will be at school and local level that more innovative and creative solutions may
be found. Community, diversity, faith and rural/urban contexts will impact upon how models
are developed but all schools, their Headteachers and Governors, should be active
participants within their clusters in finding new models of working. New models of
Governance will also emerge within any new model of leadership. (Appendix 1 — Models of
School Leadership in 21st Century)

Formal amalgamations will be promoted and encouraged where Governors of relevant
institutions are supportive. This will be in line with strategic planning from the Governors,
cluster schools, Headteachers and appropriate authorities.

Models of Federation will be supported where the Local Authority and Diocesan Boards of
Education and Governors recommend this approach.

The National College for School Leadership publishes a range of information on School
Leadership the most recent being School Leadership Today — September 2009 which can
be found at www.nationalcolllege.org.uk

This most recent article provides an informed perspective on models of leadership within
schools for the future. Such publications should be referenced when considering the design
of any future provision.

Leadership Recommendation 1 — LR1

Change of leadership will require a review of different potential leadership options/models
with Governors, cluster schools, Headteachers and appropriate authorities. This will include
different models of governance as well as design of staffing structures.

Leadership Recommendation 2 — LR2

Succession planning will follow the evaluation of a school's future sustainability by
Governors, Headteacher, cluster schools, and appropriate authorities.




Leadership Recommendation 3 — LR3

Changes to the leadership of a school will be discussed in Cluster Meetings prior to any
recruitment process taking place. Recognising that solutions may not be limited to the host
cluster all Headteacher vacancies will also be shared with all Heads prior to recruitment so
that every opportunity for alternative models are explored.

Leadership Recommendation 4 — LR4

Resource and capital implications will be considered and prioritised throughout the
planning process with Local Authority officer support.

Please complete your responses to section 2 recommendations LR1-LR4 on the
template provided at the end of this document.



3. CONSIDERATIONS REGARDING SUSTAINABLE SCHOOLS

Local schools can have a direct impact upon community sustainability and Herefordshire
supports all schools being active participants in their local community and the wider
community they may serve, through faith, specialist provision, federations and external work.
The synergy of needs with rural communities is to be praised and supported.

Parental preference is a central factor in school place planning nationally and in
Herefordshire. Parental preferenceis one of the key drivers of change. It can create
pressure on school places and also leave surplus places elsewhere, leading to changes in
school provision.

HSTG differentiates between ‘small schools by design’ and those schools with surplus
capacity and/or falling rolls. This will enable a more strategic consideration of school
provision in Herefordshire.

Small schools ‘by design’ are those representing a specific and distinct model of education.
This might relate to very isolated communities where cost of transport would be high even
within an overall transport review. Such schools will be a continuing part of the pattern of
education provision.

Small Schools which are sustainable ‘by design’ will have taken action to mitigate against:
e Lack of resources to ensure full safeguarding measures are effective;

o Potentially restricted curriculum/ extra-curricular opportunities which impact upon
standards;

¢ Limited opportunities for social development.

Such schools will have explored different models of leadership, cluster provision and which
models are financially sustainable.

Cluster Meetings will consider schools’ sustainability as part of their regular meetings.

Key performance indicators will be used to consider sustainability and forward planning.

Recommendations 3.1 and 3.2 require you to indicate your preference for the threshold at
which discussion and monitoring would take place involving cluster schools, Headteachers
and appropriate authorities.

Sustainable School Recommendation 3.1

Surplus Capacity:
a) 25% (currently 20 Primary Schools, 0 High Schools)
b) 30% (currently 16 Primary Schools, 1 High School)
c) 35% (currently 8 Primary Schools, 1 High School)

10




Sustainable School Recommendation 3.2
Falling Rolls:
a) 50% fall in admissions over a 2 year period
b) 20% reduction in pupil numbers on roll over a two year period

c) BothAandB

Recommendations 3.3 and 3.4 detail the current threshold levels in use when considering
total pupil numbers as an indicator of sustainability. You are asked to consider if these are
set at the right levels.

Sustainable School Recommendation 3.3

Primary Pupil Numbers:
a) 36 orless (Small Schools Policy threshold)
b) 37 — 45 (Monitoring threshold)
c) 45 - 60 (Financial viability and sustainability)

Sustainable School Recommendation 3.4
Secondary Pupil Numbers:
a) 200 or less (Small Schools Policy)
b) 201 — 350 (Monitoring threshold)

Schools facing challenges of performance, budget deficit, recruitment or a combination of
factors will be required to take appropriate action as detailed in the Schools Facing
Challenges protocol. Such schools will be considered at the regular Cluster Meetings.

Please complete your responses to section 3 recommendations 3.1-3.4 on the
template provided at the end of this document.

11



4. CONSIDERATIONS REGARDING FINANCE

Financial realities should not uniquely determine educational provision which is about
standards, safeguarding and wider aspirations. However, Herefordshire is the third lowest
funded local authority and has to work within the nationally set funding of schools model. All
stakeholders will support the leadership of the Council in its continuing efforts to achieve a
fairer resource allocation for Herefordshire.

All detailed financial considerations and modelling should be considered in detail at the
Schools Forum as this is the usual framework for accountability.

Schools Forum holds responsibility for considering possible funding formula and other
financial modelling which affects our schools. A paper was considered at Schools Forum in
July 2009 which details the implications of falling rolls in Herefordshire (see Additional
Information)

Coherent capital planning is essential in order that every school organisation plan
encompasses all capital planning and works.

Finance Recommendation 1 - F1

Clusters should consider pooling Devolved Formula Capital monies to create centres of
excellence in specialist areas with guaranteed access for all.

Finance Recommendation 2 — F2

New builds of large Primaries and all High Schools should incorporate centres of excellence
with guaranteed access to specialist facilities, as should all schools where these possibilities
exist.

Finance Recommendation 3 - F3

All strategic capital developments such as Building Schools for the Future and Primary
Capital planning should be coherent and align with any other developments, unless there is
a risk to accessing the capital grant due to any external timescales.

Finance Recommendation 4 — F4
Any new build needs to be consistent with surplus places planning.
Finance Recommendation 5 — F5

Any new build should take account of the higher pupil density and closer proximity of schools
in central areas of Herefordshire thus realising opportunities for different approaches.

Please complete your responses to section 4 recommendations F1-F5 on the template
provided at the end of this document.

12




5. CONSIDERATIONS REGARDING NATIONAL STRATEGIES

National Strategies and Central Government Initiatives

The development and implementation of central government strategy will impact upon the
design and delivery of provision within the county and should be taken into account when
planning for long-term sustainable developments. The outcomes from such activities aim to
improve achievement, attainment and access for all children and young people throughout
their educational careers.

Current key strategies include:
e Early Years Foundation Stage
e Increase in participation
e 14-19
e Machinery of Government / Learning and Skills Council
e Connexions

e Narrowing the Gap

11-19 Strategies will bring significant changes. The planning for this new commissioning
role for the Local Authority needs to be aligned with school provision planning more
generally. Schools, colleges and work-based learning providers will form a network of
provision delivering traditional learning opportunities enhanced by diplomas and
apprenticeships for young people up to the age of 19. When high schools are therefore
planning provision developments such plans will need to fit within this strategy and context.
Any capital planning will also need to be agreed and defined within this in order to provide a
cohesive network of provision.

When Clusters are considering provision planning they need to consider the national and
local context.

Please provide your comments on section 5 on the template provided at the end of
this document.

13




6. TIMELINE

Strategic planning of places must operate within the context established in this document,,
and also take into account the long term planning intentions within Herefordshire, including
proposals for new housing developments. New housing does not always yield high pupil
numbers and will not address the decline in pupil numbers across Herefordshire. Large
scale housing developments will be located primarily within Hereford City and, to different
degrees, in the market towns. A strategic plan of provision should be developed that allows
for flexibility at a local level whilst also addressing some of the fundamental issues facing
Herefordshire as stated in this paper, and any associated issues such as catchment areas. A
strategic approach is required to establish sustainable provision.

Key milestones are set out below.

DATE

ACTIVITY

January 2009

Herefordshire Schools Task Group Established (HSTG)

January — July 2009

Monthly meetings of HSTG

June 2009 Pre-consultation draft document issued to Head Teachers and
Chairs of Governors
July 2009 Data and finance presentation to Schools Forum
September 2009 HSTG considers feedback from Head Teachers and Chairs of

Governors / consultation paper finalised / presented to Cabinet

25.09.09 - 2.11.09

Formal consultation period

4 November 2009

HSTG meet to consider key messages from consultation responses

26 November 2009

Final consultation report presented to Cabinet

January 2010 Professional groups to consider Cabinet decision and
onwards implementation
Other relevant activities
December 2009 Pupil Admissions consultation
April 2010 Connexions and Learning and Skills Council formally transfer to
Local Authority
August 2011 Strategic Housing Consultation
September 2011 Building Schools for the Future Strategy for Change Consultation

14




Gl

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ €
= = = 2 = = = = = = = = = 2 350dNd
_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ A

= = = 2 = = = = = = = = g = 1SOuNNd
_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ L

: : : . . . . “ “ “ = = 4| 3sodund
b4 | €4 | zd | 14 | ¥SS | €SS | 2SS | 1SS | M1 | €u1 | 21 | w1 | 0 v ¢ ¢ b

MYD | M¥D | MY¥D | M¥D | MYD

"SIY] 8)eJjSuoWap

0] 91 SH 2y} Aq spew suonepuswiwodal ayj jsuiebe papoljd usaq aaey ¢ pue g ‘| asoding -asodind A8y yoiym 0} sajejal uoiepusww oIl
YOIYM SaIIIuSpI X1jew Siy| ‘Juswnoop uofeynsuod siy} jo Buiuuibaq ayy e paulap se sasodind Aay 8aiy) ssaippe 0} payse} sem 9| SH ayl

ONIddVIN XIMLVIN 2




APPENDIX 1 — MODELS OF LEADERSHIP IN 21°T CENTURY

There is significant change occurring in styles of school leadership and governance
nationally. Academies, Trusts and Federations are just some examples of different
approaches to school organisation alongside an already diverse education sector. The roles
of school leaders and Governors are also changing in parallel with succession planning
being a major driver for change. Technology will also be a critical change agent giving new
opportunities for different ways of organising learning.

The HSTG believes that this is an important part of the future of education in Herefordshire
and forthcoming national developments will further increase this change process. The
Government’s 21% Century Schools White Paper was published late in the cycle of the
HSTG meetings and therefore has not been fully considered by the group. However, any
future planning of our school provision will need to take account of this.

It is clear that both main political parties are committed to maintain the pace of change with
support for commissioning new schools, dealing robustly with low standards and supporting
school led change and autonomy. It is therefore the view of the HSTG that different forms of
school organisation need to be increasingly part of the overall pattern of schooling in
Herefordshire.

Herefordshire already has some examples of innovative, locally led creative solutions to the
some of the leadership challenges facing all schools and those in specific to our county.

Example 1: Golden Valley Cluster

The network of schools within this cluster support each other in a variety of ways including
shared resources, shared experienced staff, access to Information Communication
Technology (ICT) curriculum support and planned training events. Fairfield High School,
Peterchurch Primary School, Clifford Primary School, Longtown Primary School and
Michaelchurch Escley Primary School have worked very closely together for over 25 years
and received national recognition for this practice.

Example activities:

e A school nurse has an office in the high school and works with all primaries. The
school nurse has curricular in-put at all schools;

e A shared mini-bus is used as a pyramid resource;

¢ Joint employment of a Special Educational Needs Coordinator and music teacher;
e Staff work across schools;

e Music tuition for primary pupils takes place in the high school;

e Clubs for primary pupils are co-located in either primary schools or at the
secondary school;

e Secondary pupils work as Sports Leaders in the primary schools;

¢ Resources and facilities are commonly loaned amongst the schools; data logging,
pottery firing, science equipment, animal viewing etc;

16




Joint planning at Key Stage 1 and 2;

Joint bid writing;

Monthly Headteachers meetings;

Joint responses to Local Authority and Central Government issues;
Joint policy writing when appropriate;

Secondary Child Care BTEC pupils work in primary settings;

Joint training;

Joint events either external or internal to the schools;

Curriculum innovations; Food into Schools 5-14, Modern Foreign Languages
(MFL) developments, Maths Learning Network;

IT equipment purchased through Secondary School;
Pooling small grants for effective use;
Joint extended schools activities;

Experience of altering numbers of pupils and use of variable contracts for
teaching staff;

Comprehensive transition programme; pre-school to primary / primary to
secondary / secondary to tertiary.

Future Developments:

Attendance at meetings of one head thus reducing “cover” costs;
Joint site manager;

Joint bursar;

Joint grounds maintenance;

Admin tasks such as CRB checking;

Joint Governors committee.

“Future Vision” — now becoming a reality:

Fairfield High School has developed an interesting Virtual Learning Environment (VLE)
through its web-site. All pupils, who have the technology, can access all lessons from home.
The school has a bid being considered to allow those without the technology the ability to
borrow it from the school. There are plans to set up IT cafes in the primary schools for
secondary pupils to use. A pilot is underway exploring primary use of the Fairfield VLE at
Michaelchurch Primary. This will create viable capacity in terms of servers and hardware for
a small school. This facility will be offered to the other primary schools. The aim is to
establish a “Virtual Hard Federation” through the Fairfield Website from early 2009. This
would create a virtual learning community located in five different and independent sites

enabling:

17



Full VLE access for all pupils, parents and staff of the Pyramid;
IT support for primaries from secondary;
Joint leasing arrangements;

Hardware replacement service from the secondary school, which would hold
stock;

Identical hardware in all schools;
Most technical support required in secondary to service primaries;

Joint software licenses — this might require a more legal definition of a virtual
federation;

Video conferencing for groups of pupils particularly those taught in mixed age
classes;

Joint projects at times taught by secondary staff;

On line clubs;

Mentoring between secondary and primary pupils to ease transition;
Video “conferenced” lessons from High School i.e. Spanish;

Gifted and Talented programmes;

Maintenance of primary web-sites and updating such sites.

Example 2: Kingstone Partnership

Shaping the Future:

The cluster has worked together over the past two years to develop a shared vision for their
partnership of schools.

This has involved:

Sharing good practice across the partnership (e.g. introduction of values education
at secondary level);

Partnership Heads engaging in regular, strategic planning meetings;

Creation of a new role within the senior leadership across the partnership, the
Innovative Learning Development Leader, to coordinate innovation and collaboration;

The development of shared staffing, particularly through timetabling ‘outreach’ time
for secondary Expressive Arts, P.E. and MFL teachers to work in partnership
primaries. They have begun to explore shared administrative staff.

Leading Learning and Teaching:

They have developed a programme of collaborative professional development events
(including toolkits, INSET, twilight sessions, staff meetings) to address identified CPD needs
across the partnership. They have together successfully accessed funding for these events
and have provided a programme which demonstrates ‘value for money’ across the

18



partnership, e.g. Voices in-schools programme for Music; P4C; Assessing Pupil Progress
(APP) in Literacy; Creative Science.

They have ensured smooth transition from primary to secondary through:

o Greater continuity of curriculum, pastoral care and approaches to teaching and
learning through a shared focus on personal, learning and thinking skills;

o Development of a comprehensive programme of transition activities which begins in
Year 4.

Developing self and working with others:

They have taken steps to build effective teams within a collaborative learning community,
e.g.

e The partnership learning mentors meet together regularly and plan activities and
approaches together;

e They have provided funding for cross phase observations and meetings.
Managing projects:

¢ They have collaborated on a number of cross-school, cross phase projects:

e International Year of Astronomy 2009 science peer education programme

e Year of Food and farming film making project

Securing accountability:

They monitor and evaluate the effects of actions within the partnership and use these to
inform next steps.

Strengthening community:

They work collaboratively with partner professionals both within and outside the partnership
and have forged links with the local farming community, The Bulmer Foundation, The
Hereford Diocese and many others.

Example 3: Wigmore School

Wigmore Primary and High Schools have one head-teacher leading both settings and
leadership and governance arrangements across both. The campus location has supported
this and staff have gained knowledge and expertise from each other. They are subject to two
inspection regimes.

Wigmore cluster, in conjunction with NCSL and the Local Authority, is also piloting a Schools
Business Manager post which works across all settings and supports the business engine of
the schools.

19



Example 4: Bromyard Cluster

The Bromyard cluster is considering adopting Co-operative Trust Status involving at least 4
of the 7 schools within the cluster membership. Discussions are underway with the DCSF to
this effect.

The Bromyard cluster is also piloting a Schools Business Manager project in collaboration
with the NCSL and the Local Authority.

The HSTG wants to build upon such approaches in combination with a strategic overview so
that models are affordable, meet the needs of all and reflect the feedback from this
consultation.

20



ODOHOS
v1d T1ldNd
S TIVINS
HO

OHOS

d4d0dddV

dINI
N3dl
INO3Y

dINI
N3dl
134INO3Y

140ddNS SY3DI440 ALIHOHLNY TVOOT ANV SHIANLHVd LNIWIAOHdNI TOOHOS

SH3I9GIANN TidNd

JONVNIL

JONVINHO4d3d

d31SNTO NIHLIM 3ONVHO

[W-

J4N1LONYLS
ONIJ4VLS NI IONVHO

dIHSY3Av31 NI 39NVHO

STOOHOS
HONOYHL / SAINIAVIV
/1SNyl /d3lvyd3a3d

:STdAON TVYNOILVSINYOHO

S3ILIMEGISNOdS3d
/ SdIHSNOILV13d
/ S3170d ¥31SN10

N

ONINIVHL / 39d3
ONIAVY31/ 1LSIMVIO3dS
/ SN1V1S T00HOS

140ddNS SH301440 ALIHOHLNY TVOOT ANV SHIANLHVd LNJWIAOHdNI TOOHOS

a3ldiLNaai
SAON3TIVHO 3LVIAINNI

a31d1LN3dl 39NVHD
AJ04 S3AILINNLYOddO
JALVIA3INNI

<

SHANLEVd
INIWIAOHdNI
TOOHOS
ANV T3INNOSH3d
ALIHOHLNY

1VOOT A9 d31H40ddNS

SS300dd NOILO3 T3S
NOILVNIVAZ
ONINNV1d

SNOILdO a3id1LN3dl
JNO0J1NO

IN3INdOT13A3IA
AJ04 S3AILINNLYOddO
40 M3IA3Y J1931VilS

dIHSY3ava
ANV 43HOV31avaH
A9 d3140ddNS

SNOILdO 40 SISATVNY
ANV NOILVNIVAS
SHONHINOO

SYUNIT HE31SNTO
A8 d3140ddNS



(44

pieAuad Japun UOISaAA

Alewud 30 ea

Aewd pamopug syos) Ag|sion
Aewnd 39 mojspug

Aewud 39 spoqqy uoydwelg
|ooyos YbiIH 844y uyor ay1

Arewnd 39 yoInyonyn
Aewld spieuospi 1S

Aewud 39 anoibue
Arewd aide) sbuny
Aewnd 39 youpoos
Arewd ied playysy
|ooyos YbiH 8juAy uyor 8y 1

Arewud 0y s.ydesor s
Aewd Oy slainey sioueld 1S
Aewd 0y s.Ape1InQo
|ooyos ybiH OY sAel 1S

Aewd yainyolayed

Alewd Aaj9s3 yoinyojoeyoip
Arewld umoibuo]

Arewind plogio

|ooyos YbiH pjaipie

19)sn|) )seg ssoy

19)sSN|) }1SOM\ SSOY

19ysn|) s Auep 1S

191sn|) AsjeA uaploo

Alewld Joud a)01S
Alewid uoisnT

Jolunp Jajsuiwoa
SjuBjU| J9}SUIWO0DT
uojjoquiiy

‘Aewd 39 s, sswer 1S
Arewild 39 uojbuia|
weyuapog

‘Aewilid 30 s,[9BYDIN 1S
ab9)]0D J8)SuUIlN BY L

Aewd 390 9oJely yonpy
Aewd Aingpan

Kewud [elyooied Joujse]
Aewd 39 As|peln
Arewld 30 |lemjoD
Aewud 39 Aingsog
Aewd uouadysy

looyog ybiH plaleseln uyor

Arewnd 39 yoig yony
Aewid As|pep

Aewud uoxnuy| g auojsbury
Aewid Aemies)

Aewld pjojeH sAem3
Arewud 39 J8buoys|n
|ooyos ybiH auoisbury

Aewd 39 abplquad
Alewd uoibury

Aewd 390 Assipie]
Arewd Asjpwiy

looyog ybiH supimeH ApeT

19)SN|) 13jsuIWoa]

19)sn|o Aingpa

diysiaulied auojsbury

19)sn|g uojbury

Aewnd suiep 1s

Alewd yooligep

Arewd 39 yainyomeq o
Kewd apisionry

Arewud Aoe| swoH
Awapeoy plojaleH a8yl

Kewud 3D auinoguypn
piseAwoug ‘Alewld 30 s.J8)ed 1S
Arewild 39 aquoouad

Arewid 39 aje9) Aapng

Alewld uoydweyyooig

Arewd Ainquapalg

869)10D

saljuewnH yjagezi|3 usanp

Alewld 30 sned 1S

Arewld 39 piojipJon

Aewnd suipsembn-]

Arewud susq uoydweH
adoyumo- ‘Alewd 39 s Alep 1S
1eooan|g ,spJojaisH jo sdoysig

Arewiid uoibuiyipn

Arewud uoibuljjopn

Arewid uonng

Aewd 39 adnjiue) sewoy] 1S
Aewud 39D ,sewer 1S

Alewiid usplep

Aewud spuejpeoig

[ooyos ybiH auoissjly

13)sn|) aAM yinos

J9)sn|) piefwoug

19)sn|) s, doysig

19)sn|y auoysajAy

sy31SN1I TOOHIS

STOOHOS AUVINIRId ¥3d334 ANV SH3LSNTI — € XIANIddV




174

Jajsulwoa ‘Alold 8yl
plojelsH ‘esnusn AInquooy ay |
plojeioH ‘s,pineq 1S

J8)SUILI0SaT |00YDS PIaISa M
|00yog plaljoolg ayL
‘uojsiewoe|g piojelsH
‘lo0yoS UNOY siieg

19)Isn|H Nid 19)sn|H sjooyass |e1oadg
Aewd Asjqoapp
Alewd aiowbipn Arewd Ayuu g Aewud

Arewild uopgqoys

Aewud 39 uoelI0

Alewld pemopus aulpJemiulan
Arewid 39 puejsbury

[ooyos ybiH a1owbipp

Aewid 39 sembng uopeus
Aewud aiowepndg pJioT]
Alewd 30 Jow|oH

Alewd ybing

|00yoS YBIH SS0I08}UYAN

pamopug 8A\\ UO uojune)s
Aewnd 30 uAmi@

llyuspal) ‘Arewd 30 sAlep 1S
Aewild 39 uokd uoue)

|ooyos ybiH Asjqoapn

19)sn|) alowbip

19)SN|) SSOI29YM

19)sn|) Kajqoapp




APPENDIX 4 - CLUSTER MEETING DRAFT AGENDA AND KEY PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

Clusters should all have regular, termly, minuted meetings of Governors, Headteachers and
Local Authority and Diocesan representatives as required. These meetings should have
access to financial and pupil data and evaluation of standards relating to all schools and
other members of the clusters to promote discussion and strategic planning. (Appendix 1 -
Models of Leadership in 21% Century). This will draw upon the reviews for all schools and the
sustainability issues around financial and school role data.

The agenda should include discussion of schools facing significant challenges as well as
those facing a change in leadership. Succession planning should feature additionally as a
regular standing item. Reviews of different options should be considered with wider
dissemination of this discussion whatever the outcomes, alongside considering strategic
changes to groups of schools. It is clearly up to Cluster schools to decide how best to
organise the precise details but local authority and Diocesan officers will offer support and
facilitate cross-cluster work where needed.

The HSTG has also considered a range of factors which may affect a large number of
schools and although none of these on its own impacts upon the future of the school and
many are relative, together they can have a negative impact upon children and staff. Overall
we need to find ways of working to support change to deal with them. Therefore the cluster
of schools should consider, with Local Authority and Diocesan officers, approaches for the
following criterion to support schools:

Sustainability Criteria
e Headteachers receiving very little non-teaching time compared to previously;
e Senior managers in the school do not receive appropriate non-contact time;

¢ Budgets for Continuing Professional Development (CPD) are being cut - including
supply cover;

e School has had to make redundancies, either in teaching or support roles;
e Decisions being made to balance the budget rather than to enhance learning;

e School development plan indicates that staff at the school will be unable to continue
to fulfil the school improvement agenda for the next three to five years, given the
developing conditions in the school;

¢ Changes affecting the day to day experience of pupils/ staff in the school;

e Anxieties regarding numbers on roll — characteristically the drift downwards
prompting questions from parents about viability and increasing pressures in the
budget;

e Day to day management (in practical terms) becoming more difficult because there is
no flexibility of staffing and a very small number of staff find themselves frequently
called upon to undertake tasks for which they are inadequately prepared or trained;

e Vision and strategic management are replaced by the struggle to survive.

24




APPENDIX 5 - HEREFORDSHIRE STRATEGIC HOUSING PLANNING
APPROACH

The relationship between the strategic planning of housing and that of educational provision
is both important and mutually dependent. The HSTG considered the current approach in
Herefordshire to housing as part of its work. The Children and Young People’s Directorate
staff also met with Council colleagues responsible for planning to agree a joint approach to
consider future housing proposals and the inter-relationship with any developments
regarding schools.

The HSTG received a paper outlining key housing issues from the Council’s Planning Policy
Manager and the information has now been updated as set out below.

Herefordshire’s current planning policies are set out in the Unitary Development Plan (UDP)
which runs up to 2011. The UDP is due to be replaced by the Local Development
Framework, part of which, the Core Strategy, is expected to look forward to 2026. The Core
Strategy, in turn, must comply with the regional plan in the form of the West Midlands
Regional Spatial Strategy (RSS).

The Regional Spatial Strategy is currently being considered by the Secretary of State but at
this stage it is already known that it is intended to allocate at least 16,600 new houses to be
built in Herefordshire between 2006 and 2026. Furthermore, half of those, 8,300, are
expected to be provided in and around Hereford itself.

These housing figures may sound ambitious and, in the case of Hereford, they are. A further
8,300 houses for Hereford represents increasing the size of the City by around 30%.
However, in the Market Towns and Rural Areas a different picture is emerging — 8,300 new
houses in this case represents a slower housing growth than has been experienced in recent
years.

The Local Development Framework will need to deal with much more than just housing, but
in essence, much of the infrastructure needed for the County between now and 2026 will be
directed by the needs of new housing including roads, utilities, employment and retail
development and social “infrastructure” such as schools and health facilities. Other policy
areas will include preserving the County’s natural and historic heritage, climate change
issues, minerals and waste and a variety of other planning issues.

Another critical housing feature is the provision of Affordable Housing — Herefordshire has a
particularly wide “affordability gap” for private housing.

25




The typical “pupil yield” for Herefordshire was recorded in the 2001 census as follows:

Size of dwelling 2+ bed 2/3 bed 4+ bed

Pupil vyield per | Flat/apartment house/bungalow | house/bungalow
school

Pre-school 0.011 0.023 0.034

Primary school 0.093 0.163 0.267
Secondary 0.059 0.111 0.228

Post 16 0.005 0.005 0.005

Youth 0.026 0.035 0.069

So, for example, a development of 100 three-bedroom houses typically generates 16
primary school age children. Few, if any, villages will have access to that amount of growth
in the period 2006 to 2026.

The Core Strategy is being produced in close co-operation with the Herefordshire
Partnership to ensure that it truly reflects the Council’s wider objectives as the “Spatial”
element of the Sustainable Community Strategy.

The Council has been keen to engage with the public and other stakeholders to take the
necessary planning policies forward and has carried out two major consultation exercises in
2007 and 2008. The next stage will be setting out our “Placeshaping Options” for the
development of the County — this consultation is expected to take place in January, February
and March 2010. Once the consultation responses have been analysed, later in 2010, the
Council will then need to submit its draft Core Strategy to the Secretary of State for a public
examination, probably towards the end of 2010, with the final adopted version due for
publication in 2011.

Full details of the Local Development Framework can be found on the Council’'s website:

www.herefordshire.gov.uk/Idf

26



APPENDIX 6 — STRATEGIC PLANNING INFORMATION

The HSTG considered a wide range of data, information and analysis over the course of its
work. The Group acknowledged that the data was often produced at specific points in time.
The data is dynamic in the sense that it changes at frequent intervals. However, the
underlying trends were worth considering and the changes in data were not fundamental in
terms of altering the overall picture.

The range of data included the following and much of it was presented by school cluster:

e Pupil numbers by school, current and projected and a range of associated trend
information;

e Locations of pupils in relation to the school they go to, and to clusters of schools,
presented in map format;

e School capacity;

¢ Financial information relating to projected numbers.

27




ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

28



PRINCIPLES TO GUIDE THE PROVISIOM OF EDUCATION IN

HEREFORDSHIRE IN THE 21 CENTURY

Introduction

Herefordshire Council is commitied to werking in partnership with parents, schools,
settings, colleges and thair stakeholders togathar with other parnars to meat tha widar
Evary Child Mattars agenda and the requiramants of tha Childran's Act. A prime aim is
to ansure that the school system is fit for purpose, will sustain improvament in the years
ahaad, and is able to meset the changes and challenges to come. This does include all
five outcomes for children, given the significant impact schools can have on the broad

life of a child.

This Statement of Principles will guide our work, set our standards, underpin our valuas
and inform the future organisation of schools to enable us, with partners, to give the best
opportunities and the best outcomes for all leamers. Our aims for all our children and

young people are:

+ that they all can have the bast start and maximise prograss in thair education;

+ that through their lsaming and antitlament they can develop all their abilities
and talents to achieve the highast standards;

* that through high guality provision and support they can realise the highest

aspiration and expectations for their benafit and that of the whole community;

Principia sioGuidatha P oy isioncfEd Loation ind 1 5100 nbusy Fnsid das 1

29



111

* that such a sound foundation will prepare them for a positive and fulfilling adult

life as citzens living in a global contaxt.

To deliver this vision, resources will have to be used to maximum effect. The provision of
school places and school organisation are majer determinants in how resources are
dllocated and expanded. Once the principles on which to base educational provision
have been agread, the review of school provision will make proposals which will daliver

the vision. Decisions taken now will shape provision over the next 20-30 years.

In devaloping the Statement of Principles we have taken account of the vision, ambitions

and local priorities set out in the

*  Herefordshire Partnership Plan;

*  The Children and Young People's Flan;
* The Eary Years & Childcare Plan;

= The Education Assat Managament Plan;

+ The 14-18 Leaming Entilement for Young Paople.

Inthase strategic plans thare are commaon themes aiming to build an equal and inclusive
society; to realise the potential of individuals and communities, to seek continual
improvement and to provide excellent education, fraining and learning oppartunities in
Herafordshire for all ages.

It iz noted that the Local Authority does have a changing role in terms of school
provision. Mo longer ame its statutory responsibilities centred on providing sufficient

places and maintaining standards of teaching and learning. It also has duties to seek

Pi v EdonolE: 1510a ntuy Finald dag 2

30



more diverse provision and offer cheoice to parents. The DCSF envisage that the Local

Authority will act as a strategic planner, commissioning places from schoals.

Principia sicGuidatha P v isioncfEd uoation ind 1 510a ntusy Finak dac 3

31



1. The Best for All of Herefordshire's Children and Young People

We place the childyoung person, hisher needs and the devalopment of his'her
potantial, at the centre of all we do. We base our sirategios and decisions on what will

benofit the education andwaelfare in the widest sense of all Hersforashire's children and

young peopla.

In line with the hofistic approach under Every Child Matters, we beffeve that, with
consistent nuriure, support and encowragement from their schools, peers, family and
community, our chidreniyoung people can succeed in their leaming and grow info
maiure, healthy, well-rounded individuals who contiibute positivaly to sociely.

We seek the greater involvement of children and young people, individually and
collectively, in the development of thalr leaming and seff-esteem by laking account of
lsamear volce, opinions and assessments in a varlely of forms  We value their

caontribition to devaloping provision and appropriate educational pathways.
Eractical Steps
* The Local Authority in comjunction with School Improvement Partners will provide
advica, support and challenge to secure continual improvement in the work of

schools dalivering all five outcomes;

*  Schools will be encouraged to develop extendad sarvices for children and families;

Principia sicGuidatha P v isioncfEd uoation ind 1 510a ntusy Finak dac 4

32



* The role of schools in providing services and codocated bases for multi-
professional teams daelivering services across the five outcomes will be considerad
in the development of integrated services, and creation of ‘teams around the child’;

* The Shadow Partnership Board and Youth Council will be consultad as part of the
current school review;

* The statutory requirement to review any school placed in a negative Cfsted
Category will be achieved through a report with recommendation for any future

action to the Cabinet Member for Children & Young People.

2. Equity:

We balieve that all children and young people should be equally valued and should have
a common entflemant in their school, sefings and in the commumnity educationsl
partnerships. We belisve that educalional strength, experiise and experience showd be
shared for the bengfit of all, and the enterprise and innovative capacily of individual

schools must coniribute fo the collective resources in the county.
In an era of dversity, specialsm and declining numbers, parental preference can best be
addressed within a counfy-wide strategic framework, which ensures a high quality

entitierment for af, supplemented by enrichment opporfunities avalable through

coffaborative working between schools and ofher providers.

Practical Steps

Principia sicGuidatha P v isioncfEd uoation ind 1 510a ntusy Finak dac =

33



In order to achieve the aims of eguity and excellence for all in the comtaxt of limited

fimancial resourcas and falling ralls,

* We acknowledge the need to review and refine the funding machanisms for
schools to establish greater parity betwsen schools, and also broadan
opportunities for pupils in the overall provision;

*  Wa will encourage and facilitate networking and opportunities for collaboration;

*  Advice, support, training and resources will be made available to schools to allow
them to be inclusive with appropriate aceess to the curriculum for all;

*  Schools need to be supparted in developing skills to meet the full range of pupil
neads, carefully monitoring outcomas and targeting resources to greatast affact;

*  Current transport arrangaments will be revised in light of national initiatives to
ensura that expenditure is focused on sanvices which improve access to thare

groups maost in need.

Principia sicGuidatha P v isioncfEd uoation ind 1 510a ntusy Finak dac &

10

34



3. Partnership:

With other agendes, we positively embrace responsibiliies set out in the Children Act
2004, and this will be reflected in our vision, strategies and plans. We befieve in open
and constructive partnership working with and betwesn schools, key agencies and
parants’carers o ensure we doliver a first dlass education sevwvice that mests the neads
of each learner. Indeed in a rural area, parinership working befwesen schools is likely fo

be the anly way in which some specdific needs of individual lsamer can be mei.

Practical Steps

To achieve better outcomes for our children and young people, we will work together
with partners to create new structures or arrangaments in the development of a flexible
leaming organisation that can successfully face new challengas as they emerge. At
present, this includes a review of the role of the school in association with the private
and voluntary providars in dalivaring the Foundation Staga to childran under &, and the
waork within the 14-19 Strategy to develop individualised/personalised currcula for all

pupils, prior and post-186.

4 Diversitg
We recognise the benefits of considering diversily of provision in purswit of equily,
inclusion, improvement and innovation, so that prowision can be shaped o mest the

particular circumstances of various areas of the County.

Principia sicGuidatha P v isioncfEd uoation ind 1 510a ntusy Finak dac 7

11

35



Practical Steps

The local authority will consider action which will

& zalpet from the range of national initiatives i.e. Academies, Trusts, Fedarations
(and where appropriate adapting them to local circumstances), to support the
fransformation of primary and secondary schools to sustain a first class service;

* endorse and promote new amangements in school organisation such as co-
locations and amalgamations of infant and junior or primary and secondary
schools, margers and federations, whene these am the most appropriate means
of sustaining or improving standards and services in the locality, and that
improvement is demonstrable;

* gncourage community focused schools, at times working in clustars or networks,
to provide local access to high quality education for children of all ages and
adults, and to offer access to other services such as Health where that is
appropriate;

* achieve co-located provision with other agencies on school sites to further the
effective delivery of the ECM agenda through the aligned development of
children's centres and extended savices;

+ considar different legal status for schools, whare this is judged to bring significant

benefit to children and young people.

Principia sicGuidatha P v isioncfEd uoation ind 1 510a ntusy Finak dac g

12

36



5. Leadership:

Strong leadership from the local authority, headleachers and school governing bodies is
essontial fo meet the evolving agenda and to manage the changes. We recognizse the
strangth of leaders in Herefardshire, and will continue to support and challenge them to

ensure a high qualily experience for laarners through a period of changs.

Practical Steps

We will work in partnership with headteachers and governors to create:

* a shared vision amongst leading professionals built upon common values
and principles;

+ a passion for excallence;

* acommitment towaorking collaboratively with many partnars for the banefit of
Herefordshire learners;

* acommitment to each other to support, to challenge and to lead;

* a willingness to consider the development of new ways to disseminate best
practice and genarate new appreaches to improve the sarvica;

* with the cooperation of Goveming Bodies, internal arangements which allow
headteachars at least 50% non-teaching time;

+ the opportunities for differamt models of school leadership through, for

example, federated schools.

Principia sicGuidatha P v isioncfEd uoation ind 1 510a ntusy Finak dac 8

13

37



6. Additional Meads:

We belleve in equal opparfunifies and in positive, active intervention for chifdren with

addifional needs and those who are vulnerable.

Practical Steps

We aim to ensure that:

* the needs of thase children and young people are identified at an early stage so
that the school and, where necessary, specialist staff can imervane speadily and
appropriately with greater emphasis on in-school provision;

* a continuum of provision is developad which has greater flexibility to ansure
accaess to the bast outcomes for an individual as no single school or setting can
maat all needs at all times;

* there is appropriate transition or transfer arrangements for pupils between school
and specialist settings, which include short-term intervertion or part time
placemeants, and flexibility betwesen sectors;

* a broad, personalised cumiculum is provided and presented in an innovative,
vibrant, exciting and challenging way. This will offer, particulary at K53 and K54,
a diverse menu of atternative cumiculum patways to meet the needs of

individuals and, in o doing reduce the incidance of exclusion;

Principia sicGuidatha P v isioncfEd uoation ind 1 510a ntusy Finak dac 10

14

38



+ those pupis who hawe become disaffected or have been excluded will be
encouraged and supported to re-engage in their education within their own

school or at another local school as quickly as possible so that they have the

maximum chance of sucoass;

* Heraefordshire's spacialist provision is developed so that only a few childran with

the most complax low incidance nead will have to go outside our boundaries.

Principia sicGuidatha P v isioncfEd uoation ind 1 510a ntusy Finak dac 11

15

39



Resources:

We recognise that a high quality of feaching and learning ewists in Herefordshire

schools. However, we also acknowledge the need for schools fo be fully fit for purpose

for the chalenges already posed in the first wo decades of the twenity-first centfury, and

to be appropriately resourced in terms of finance, staffing, materials, equipment and

accommuodation.

Practical Steps

In arder to achieve this

The Local Authority will continue to campaign for more equitable funding for
Herafordzhire;

resources will be focused to achieve maximum affect and will ba directed to
priarities;

the LMS Scheme will be reviewed to reduce the resources allocated under non-
pupil factors e.g. floor area;

proposals will be brought forward to reduce the percentage of budgat spent on
non-teaching costs;

e-learning opportunities will be advanced through ICT systems and
infrastructures;

capital investmant will ba mada, as esources allow, to ensura that buildings and

facilities support tha drive to improvemants in teaching and leaming;

Principia sicGuidatha P v isioncfEd uoation ind 1 510a ntusy Finak dac 12

16

40



+« parmanant need will be met in permanent builkdings, which, where provided
through new capital imwestment, will be built on sustainable prinipcles;

+ resourcas will be focused on those areas which have greatest impact on teaching
and learning, through by reducing surplus space through changes in school
organisation and in the LMS Schama;

* schools will be supported in developing and sustaining parnerships to improve
local access to specialist staff, resources and services which can be better
provided collaboratively than individualty;

* fraining programmes will be provided to ensure that all staff have access to high
quality training and development to maintain and improve standards and to

demonstrate and disseminate best practica.

Principia sicGuidatha P v isioncfEd uoation ind 1 510a ntusy Finak dac 13

17

41



8. A Community of Schools:

We are commiited fo maintaining a communily of schools in Haerefordshire that primarily
sorve thair focal area but may also aflow for parenial preference, accessing the
cumiculum and extended senvices on a strategic counfywide basis. In maintaining this
commitmant to qualily and excallence in a time of falling rolls and increasing demands,

we recognise that we cannot compromise on qualily in §mes of scarcily.

Practical Steps

* The review will produce a robust Strategic framework within which all
maintained schools, whatever their status, will have a place;

* Those schools exploring changes of status will be supported by the Local
Authority on the undarstanding that the changs of status will not affect the role
of that school in the strategic frameworl;

+ The Mambership of Schools Forum and the Local Admission Forum will be
reviewed in light of any changes in school status;

*  We will endeavour to restrict pupil travel time to primary schools so that no child
or young person, unless by choice, has to travel more than 30 minutes to

schooaol.

9. Schools within their Community:
The tangible and often intangible value that both primary and high schools can have in

their community is acknowledgeabls, and every affart should be made to improve that

Principia sicGuidatha P v isioncfEd uoation ind 1 510a ntusy Finak dac 14

18

42



relationship. First and foremost schools should be valued for presenting excellent
aducation for children living in the area they serve. Through the extended schools
initiative schools should increasingly offer additional experiences to their childran,
sanvices for their parents, and to members of the public in the locality. As publicly fundad
and maintained buildings schools are one of the most valuable assats in the public
domain in Herafordshire. Full use of thess assets should ba sought, but in a way which
does not undarming their core rola.
Practical Steps
The Local Authority will:

* Encourage and support schools to offer wider range of services;

*  Advise on and support appropriate third party use of school buildings and sites

managed through school governors;
* Consider the community provision made by the school in any debate owver

changs.

Principia sicGuidatha P v isioncfEd uoation ind 1 510a ntusy Finak dac 15

19

43



INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT’S REPORT ON SCHOOL FUNDING

HEREFORDSHIRE SCHOOL FUNDING

1. This paper is an attempt to set out in clear and understandable terms the arrangements
for funding Herefordshire schools. It demonstrates the impact of maintaining the status
quo as well as considering the implications for any future changes. All scenarios are
hypothetical and are set out purely as an aid to the Task Group’s considerations.

2. The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) from central government is paid as a ring-fenced
specific grant and must be used in support of the Schools Budget as defined in the
School Finance (England) Regulations 2008. It is the main source of income for the
Schools Budget and can be used for no other purpose. There are specific requirements
to ensure appropriate use:-

i. At notification stage the authority is required to submit a statement certified by the
Chief Finance Officer that the DSG is being deployed in support of the Schools
Budget.

ii. At outturn stage the authority is required by the Accounts and Audit (Amendment)
(England) Regulations 2006 to append an additional note to the Statement of
Accounts confirming the deployment of the DSG in support of the Schools Budget
(Appendix 1).

iii. The Chief Finance Officer is also required to confirm final deployment of the DSG in
support of the Schools Budget in connection with the Section 52 outturn form.

iv. The Secretary of State reserves the right to recover the grant if there has been any
breach.

3. The DSG is based upon a per pupil formula and issued to all English local authorities
with responsibility for education to enable and support the delivery of provision, services
and statutory processes for all children and young people.

i. The current methodology (Spend Plus) underlying the allocation of DSG to individual
local authorities is determined by central government and has been used for the
years 2008-9, 2009-10 and 2010-11. A national review of the distribution formula for
DSG is currently being undertaken and will be in place from 2011-12.

i. The Department for Children, Schools and Families (DCSF) allocation to
Directorates is calculated on the January School Census submissions from schools
and nurseries. A fixed amount is identified per pupil and this is then multiplied by the
totals submitted through the School Census.

44



iii. Local authorities are responsible for determining the split of the grant between
central expenditure (to support appropriate and statutory central services) and the
Individual Schools Budget (ISB) in conjunction with the Schools Forum which makes
recommendations to a council’s Cabinet on such allocations.

iv. The ISB is deployed directly to schools through a locally agreed formula allocation.

4. Itis worth setting Herefordshire within the national funding context for schools and noting
that national funding reflects factors such as deprivation which affect urban and rural
areas in different ways. The county has one of the lowest funding levels of the nationally
distributed DSG at an overall ranking of 147 out of 149. Consequently, DSG allocations
for Herefordshire fall well below the average for the country. In 2008/2009 the DSG per
pupil allocation in Herefordshire (not including any grants) was £3,687 whilst the national
average was £4,066. Any financial planning has therefore to consider the low baseline
from which the authority starts. It is not anticipated that the current revision of the funding
allocation process at national level will significantly improve the position in Herefordshire,
though officers and Members have been keen to highlight the issues facing a rural
authority.

i. Table 1 -illustrates the actual DSG funding for Herefordshire up to 2008/9.

Year | Pupil Amount per % per pupil DSG Total % cash
Data pupil increase . increase
(rounded)
£
06/07 | 23,705 3,297 78,151,000
07/08 | 23,427 3,523 6.9 82,535,000 5.6
08/09 | 23,101 3,687 4.7 85,162,000 24

(Source: Teachernet, Final Allocations of DSG 2008/9)

45




ii. Table 2 - uses the Government’s assessment as at October 2008 to project

through to 2011 assuming no change in the current model of provision.

Year | Pupil Data Amount % per DSG Total % DSG Total for
_ per pupil | pupil _ cash the LA excl the
inc the increase inc the inc academy

academy | (rounded) academy
£
£ £
09/10 | 22,759 3,830 3.9 87,176,000 | 2.4 84,291,000
10/11 22,562 4,002 4.5 90,296,000 | 3.6 87,411,000

(Source: Teachernet, Revised Indicative DSG Allocations 2008-11)

Any future revised figures from central government will separate pupil
numbers, and hence finances, for the Hereford Academy, which will make
direct comparisons with previous years more difficult.

= These tables evidence the impact of falling rolls upon the total amount
of DSG received, but this is in part masked by the yearly increase in the
amount of per pupil funding.

= The yearly increase is made in order to meet inflationary pressures.

= The actual cash increase is much lower than the per pupil increase for
each period as a result of the reduced pupil numbers.

= |tis evident that in relative terms overall funding is reducing as a result
of a decrease in pupil numbers.

Table 3 identifies the decline in pupil numbers between 2006-7 and 2010-11
and the related reduction in overall funding through DSG:

Year Status Pupil Amount per DSG
Reduction pupil Reduction
£ £
06/07 - 07/08 Actual 278 3,523 979,394
07/08 - 08/09 Actual 326 3,687 1,201,962

46



5.

08/09 - 09/10 Actual 342 3,830 1,309,860

09/10 - 10/11 | Projected 197 4,002 788,394

Average 286 3,760 1,075,360

It is important to recognise the full implications of the reduction of this DSG
allocation. As shown Appendix 1, a proportion of the funding is legitimately spent
on centrally held services and the remainder goes into schools. The funding of
Individual School Budgets is through a complex formula agreed with schools
known as Local Management of Schools or LMS. In 07/08 schools received an
average of £2,500 per pupil on roll supplemented by additional funding for
Additional Pupil-led funding (such as nursery classes), Special educational Needs,
Social deprivation, Site Specific (such as playing field maintenance costs) and
School Specific (such as rates, small school protection, and flat base allocations
for premises and management costs).

Using 2008-9 to illustrate:

Vi.

Based on the Government’s figures there is a loss of 342 pupils between
January 2008 and 2009 and one less pupil means £3,687 less in the DSG
(based on 08/09 funding rates).

. For each pupil lost, a school budget will be reduced by an average of £2,500

for pupil related funding.

For each pupil lost, £1,187 will need to be found from within central services
funded by DSG.

. An annual reduction of 342 pupils will mean a reduction in funding of £406,000

(i.e. 342 x £1,187) which will need to be found from centrally retained services
such as Pupil Referral units (£0.895m), Special Educational Needs Support
Services (£1.376m), Banded Funding (£0.858m), Nursery Education Funding
(£2.923m), Fees for pupils at independent special schools (£0.951m) and other
central staffing budgets such as school admission and asset management.

If the reductions in pupil numbers disproportionately affect primary schools,
then the amount required from centrally retained budgets will be greater.
Fixed costs in primary schools form a greater proportion of the budget, and
therefore the pupil related funding in primary school budgets is only £2,000
per pupil leaving a shortfall of £1,687 per pupil.

It is unlikely that significant reductions can be made in some of these areas;
however, because of their statutory nature. To continue to provide these

47



Vii.

statutory services it is anticipated that further reductions in per pupil funding
will be required every year to make up the shortfall.

Overall pupil numbers are projected to continue to fall until 2018 at the same
rate and therefore it is possible that these budget reductions will have to be
found each year until 2018.

. The full impact upon schools and services of falling rolls and DSG finances will

also be affected by the following:

Fixed costs (rates, premises costs, salaries of headteacher and secretary) may
remain constant or increase in line with inflation whilst overall budgets reduce;
Maintenance of standards and improvements in achievement and attainment
will require investment;

New initiatives and National Strategies will require investment;

Parental preference may impact further upon pupil numbers in settings;
Staffing profiles and appointments within schools may require additional
funding.

. There is already an increase in the number of schools experiencing financial

difficulties and operating with deficit budgets and this is set to continue. Planning
is underway with these settings to ensure that schools address the budget
difficulties. Even so it will clearly be increasingly challenging to maintain the
current models of provision and probably untenable in the medium to longer term.

Table 4 identifies the number of schools with deficit budgets since 2003:

Year Primary | High Special | Total number Total
Schools | Schools | schools Deficit
of schools
£
03-04 0 0
04-05 0 0
05-06 2 2 11,000
06-07 4 2 2 8 252,000
07-08 6 2 1 9 398,000
08-09 4 1 1 6 262,477

(Source: School Budget Team)

48



8.

NB Not all the schools in this category are small schools.

In order to further identify the future funding implications for schools, the table in
Appendix 2 sets out indicative school budgets according to school size and estimated
average pupil population. This financial model does assume that trends will continue and
includes adjustments for inflation. The figures shown include current small schools
protection allowance for Primary Schools at £109.80 per pupil below 200 on roll and for
High Schools at £215.35 per pupil below 655 on roll. These amounts have been fixed on
the recommendation of Schools Forum for the next two financial years i.e. until end of
March 2011. It is noteworthy that in the primary sector 63 schools have below 200 pupils,
and in the secondary sector 6 schools fall below 650.This means that 69 schools will
receive some form of protection.

The methodology for DSG allocation is set until 2011. This gives some degree of
certainty in funding projections to that point. In order to demonstrate the affect of falling
school rolls on individual schools over the three year period, the table in Appendix 3
outlines indicative budgets according to cluster allocations using January 2008 pupil
numbers. (It is anticipated that a model using January 2009 actual pupil numbers will be
available by the end of July.) However, the allocation per pupil varies from school to
school. This is because each school has an individual set of circumstances which
determine the ISB allocation it receives.

10. Maintaining the status quo in terms of numbers of settings means that:-

i. The total small schools protection element was £958,609 in 2008/9. Schools Forum
agreed that the budget for small schools protection should be frozen at the 2006/7
cash total and this will continue for the next two financial years i.e. until the end of
March 2011. If the number of schools requiring an element of protection increases,
the amount per school will reduce. However, this is effectively reducing the overall
amount for distribution to all schools.

ii. Every school receives a fixed base allocation for management and premises as
shown below in Table 5.

2008/9 | 2009/10 | 2011/12

£ £ £

Primary 29,292 | 30,083 | 30,714

Secondary | 13,681 | 14,051 | 14,346

Special 11,876 | 12,196 | 12,453

49



(Source: School Budget Team)

ii. As agreed by Schools Forum, every school in Herefordshire, regardless of how
many pupils, receives a minimum level of funding. The following simple example
(Table 6) illustrates this by showing the minimum a school received in 2008-9,
without showing pupil funding and without showing specific funding such as playing
field maintenance or the current Key Stage 1 class size element:-

Small schools Base allocation for Base allocation | Minimum funding
protection management for premises
(without pupil
£ £ £ related funding)
£

Primary *15,372 25,473 3,819 44,664
(60pupils)
Secondary **33,379 8.029 5,652 47,060
(500pupils)

The figures shown include current small schools protection allowance for Primary
Schools at £109.80 per pupil below 200 on roll and for High Schools at £215.35 per
pupil below 655 on roll.

* (200 -60 =140 x £109.80)

** (655 - 500 = 155 x £215.35)

11. Trends in falling pupil numbers and attendant reductions in funding will require a re-

evaluation of existing provision necessitating consideration of a schools reorganisation.
The local authority has a duty to ensure that it achieves the most effective use of
resources available in the quest to raise the achievement of all children and young
people in its schools. This process could be assisted by increasing funding to directly
support teaching and learning in schools by reducing levels of funding currently
maintaining individual premises in various forms of protection. It is evident that any
school reorganisation producing fewer schools will result in a combination of savings
including fixed costs for individual premises and the small schools protection element. All
remaining schools will benefit from these savings as they will stay within the ISB for
redistribution via the funding formula across a smaller number of schools. This strategy
has worked in other authorities and has proven to be a successful model leading to the
development of enhanced provision.

50




12. Several pertinent financial considerations will emerge as a result of any school
reorganisation, the most significant being possible staff redundancies and the additional
cost of transport for pupils. It is possible to provide more detailed and accurate financial
plans for future provision design once the Task Group is able to provide the key criteria
on which to base any such exercise.

51



Appendix 1: Disclosure of deployment of Dedicated Schools Grant

Financial year 2006/7 Statement
Source: Herefordshire Council’s Published Accounts 2006/7

The council’s expenditure on schools is funded by grant monies provided by the Department
for Education and Skills, the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). DSG is ring-fenced and can
only be applied to meet expenditure properly included in the Schools Budget. The Schools
Budget includes elements for a restricted range of services provided on an authority-wide
basis and for the Individual Schools Budget, which is divided into a budget share for each
school. Over and under spends on the two elements are required to be accounted for
separately.

Details of the deployment of DSG receivable for 2006/07 are as follows:

Individual
Central Schools
Expenditure Budget Total
£000 £000
£000
Original grant allocation to Schools Budget
for the current year in the authority's
budget. 8,324 70,012 78,336
Adjustment to finalised grant allocation (185) 0 (185)
DSG receivable for the year 8,139 70,012 78,151
Transfer from DSG to Capital (220) 0 (220)
Transfer from DSG to Sickness Reserve (44) 0 (44)
Actual expenditure for the year (7,769) (70,503) (78,272)
(Over)/under spend for the year 106 (491) (385)
Planned top-up funding of ISB from council
resources 6 0 6
Use of schools balances brought forward 0 602 602

52



(Over)/under spend carried forward to
2007/08 112 111 223

Financial year 2007/8 statement

Source: Herefordshire Council’s Published Accounts 2007/8

The council’'s expenditure on schools is funded by the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG)
provided by the Department for Children, Schools and Families. DSG is a ring-fenced grant
and can only be applied to meet expenditure properly included in the Schools Budget. The
Schools Budget includes elements for a restricted range of services provided on a council-
wide basis and for the Individual Schools Budget, which is divided into a budget share for
each school. Over and under spends on the two elements are required to be accounted for
separately.

53



Details of the deployment of DSG receivable for 2007/08 are as follows:

Individual

Central Schools
Total Expenditure  Budget Total

2006/07 2007/08 2007/08

2007/08

£000 £000 £000
£000
78,336 Original grant allocation to Schools Budget for
the current year in the authority's budget. 8,317 73,575 81,892
(185) Adjustment to finalised grant allocation 504 139 643
78,151 DSG receivable for the year 8,821 73,714 82,535
0 DSG brought forward 112 111 223
(220) Transfer from DSG to Capital 0 0 0
(44) Transfer from DSG to Sickness Reserve (45) 0 (45)
(78,272) Actual expenditure for the year (8,200) (73,120) (81,320)
(385) (Over)/under spend for the year 688 705 1,393
6 Planned top-up funding of ISB from council

resources 45 0 45
602 Movement in schools balances (239) (239)
223 (Over)/under spend carried forward 733 466 1,199

Financial year 2008/9

The formal statement relating to 2008/9 is not yet available as the council is still in the
process of finalising its accounts.

54



Draft DSG note to 2008/09 Accounts

Central Individual Total
Schools

Expenditure Budget 2008/9

£000 £000 £000
Original Grant Allocation to Schools Budget 8,920 75,564 84,484
Adjustment to finalise grant allocation 0 678 678
Sub-total 8,920 76,242 85,162

less finalised recoupment re

Academies 0 -1550 -1550
DSG receivable for year 8,920 74,692 83,612
DSG Brought forward 0 1,199 1,199
Transfer to sickness reserve -6 0 -6
Transfer to school rates reserve prior to 2008/09 0 -868 -868
Actual Expenditure for the year 8021 74397 82418
Undperspend 905 805 1710
Planned top-up 0 0 0
Movement in school balances 0 -181 -181
Underspend/overspend C/fwd 905 624 1519

55



Note: DSG carried forward for the ISB includes £186k for rates rebates in
2008/09

LEA Benchmarking Information

Herefordshire compares favourably with its statistical neighbours in relation to the
amount of DSG and school grants spent on central expenditure. The following table
illustrates the relevant elements per pupil for 2008/09:

Individual Central Central Total Schools
School Budget expenditure expenditure Budget
+ grants as % of
£ total £
£ available
Herefordshire 3,879 532 12% 4,411
Gloucestershire 3,767 708 16% 4,475
Shropshire 3,703 885 19% 4,588
England (mean) 4,178 633 13% 4,811

Source: DfES Leagateway benchmarking,
Section 52 data — statistical neighbours

14" May 2009

More detailed information can be provided from Section 52 Benchmarking information
if required.

56



JAS)

9€8°292'13 | 961'79Z°L3 | 961°0.2°L3 ocy GeY ocy L 009-16¢ Aewnd
¥06°2983 v.G'€883 G12'9683 G62 90¢ g 14 05¢-1sz AMewnd
L09°€093 1GG‘G193 916'6293 L0Z Lz ] 4 L 052-10Z Aewnd
6vL‘CLY3 8€L'9LV3 LL6'Y8Y3 G91 991 691 vl 002-1S1 Aewnd
€€0°0VE3 GOE Ve 8.G'6VE3 LLL €Ll GLL 14" 0S1-101 Aewnd
81.'v523 926°L623 869'8523 SL SL SL (4 001-15 Arewnd
2150913 ¥SE'091L3 122°1913 ov oF oF € 05- Arewug
LLIOL 0L/60 60/80 0l Atenuer | go Adenuer | go Asenuer

139dn4g v1NWY04 SY3IFGNNN TidNd IDOVHIAVY ST100HOS 'ON 3ZIS + 3SVYHd

Z Xlpuaddy

1102-800Z — NOILVTINdOd A9 S139dNd TO0OHIS IAILVOIANI




8G

"1 L0Z Y24e JO pua [;3un "a'| sieak |ejoueuly om} }xau
8y} 10} WNI04 S|O0YIS JO UOIjepUBWILIOID] BY} UO Paxl) Udaq dABRY Sjunowie asay] "60/80 Jedk [eloueuly 1oy sjooyss YbBIH 10} ¥61°98Z3
pue sjooyog Alewld 10} GL¥‘Z/93 JO djel [e]0} e Je uol}dajoid S|ooYydS |[ewS apnjaul Yyoiym suoljesolje 396pnq ||ns s|ieap ajge} ayL

LIS'L19'€3 | 0S9°8€9'€3 | 06V'8PL'€3 6.6 886 SL0l GLOL-1S. uBH
ovL‘6SY'Cc3 | ¥SS'20S°C3 | 6.¥'865°C3 €89 €69 0LL 0S.-159 UbH
0.9'V€9°L3 | €6.°8€9°L3 | SIP'€99°L3 VA4 4 VA4 4 (314 059-00¢  UbH




69

I T ——————————————
753 BEL D) BOB B08'E T DLE TERT FLL BT T BES TLOL HILENID HOBNHIEIL S
LT VB0 BBE [ EXEE 53 VALT  FeD 9 3 IWLOL 93N 1 AUvAltd HOBNHOE3L5d
FIEE WES L5 oz IERE EFE FoL B SO0 F = ] # | ILiE AHWWIEd HOBNHOESISS  L9nd
SFS'E D&z'TOT 1L BI5'E 0E5'PLT ] BIS'E BTEELT bt ] # | BT AHWFIED ATI0ES HOWNHITSWHIN - 05103
EEE EST'LLL St #ED'F sEr'sLL tF TEL'F O=E" 151 124 i Mz AV IEE MAMOLENDT S5i03
EI5'E FEI'TET CE] LIS'E BEL'SFT 53 SES'E HESEFT £3 i EDT AEWWIND OHO4403  FHIOS
LTE'E SOE'00F' 1 BIE E5B'E [ B PIE'E OFLPLF L HIE # | zEDR HEHH 013148V "HOWNHOESISS  0L1EDd
HALEMED OTE3R4HNS
[#tcc  BBTBLIL (143 [Tee'® Iesc L BLbT LT BFFTFL TITT W11 93LEMD SA0HE
T D TLBE | LBDLERE o0k TWIOL HILEN13 AHVAIEd §d0HEIE
mEZ  DEFGiC B0F TEG T == [ BEET OOk ZEE EIE L T TEVAIEd =0 OUCJIOH0h | Fi0d |
FEE'T IT0'ELF il T [ gkl SELT =T ESE \ ik AHWAIED SHICUYIENT 55103
LET LR Hitr #05'E ERO'EsD L (T ] 85T 56 e’ | TEP L EEEE AMWAIEA T3 &1 18 OH0-EE3H Fial=]
THE'E BEF'TEL ooz FELE ETH'ELE 8LT TE'E ES5 558 TEL \ I50T AHNFIED NS0 NOLJYH "ON0SSE3H - LT00E
LE0'E EB3'TST 55 EEME BIFPET ] ISk'E EDOMDET ] \ SZEE AMWFIES T SAEYH LS SJOHNMOS  TTHE
BFIE FOLSTE R 381 599'E LSESE'Y  BEVE OeLE SETFF TELE " 008k AWOD3ME SOH0S3WSH 30 dOHEIE 'J80SE1EH  ToEeg
HILEMTD BdOHEIE
BOCT OLF Eva S EIDT TWLOL HILEN1D INDLET LAY
j TR TELEEL T B L IWLOL HALENED AHVNIdd INOLETTAY
SEEE (Vg 58 B E IPLT5L ] BE5E PIT 16T v N EES JHVWIED NOLOMIHLIM,  e2h0d
SOR'E it s o5 LEE'E Toe'nEE vk EMTE EEEEE TIh | s AHWRIRES NOLDNITIEM 2003
THUE EEM'OOT t LIB'E 635351 = ELE'E Fi-op- 5 N ¥SIT AHVPIEL MOLLMTS sii03
BET'E IT5'15T ] TIT'E Pa0'EET 0s PITE BOLSET ] o | 5HE AMWRIES NSOHWW  55H03
WE'T E5C'3LS EBL BTLT ESETLS oLz ST LLEEES BIT | TEEE AHvWIED  SE409
"ID SAMTILNWD SWROHL L8 OH0SSE3H
BST LEE'ERS T S65'C BBEFTS ooz BOS'T THT RS [T | ZEEE A¥WWIHd ‘T30 B3R LS 'ON0SEEEH  SE0d
LL'E E3'BE B5T SOHE TIErrE Tz BSO'E 0207506 957 | 950z ANWWIED BONYIOWONE ‘JH0S383H sT103
PLUE LBLOB0E GLB LES'E PEFLISTE 588 BOS'E BESTSYE THTL | sup HENH SHOLESTAY "OH0=SEMEH LxEna
HILEN1D INCLETTAY
[ErE=] FE]
O rF aER'sF i o] 4800
el pruRr WNGOR)  BOCURT BNEINE "ON
LLLET ] ELIET
uo{pEmL| WILT 130
WALT OLAR00T
EELIRAE TN
mdnd Wipng  EOJ U0 oH nnd JWbpnE  Eou w0 oy ndnd Wopng  Bo-uRr 43H SHIMID
ad sod aed
POy LT A T ] Uy RNALOY  PEjRUEESS Junowy RMEUOY  §0JDOOM JNENED  §340 IWWN IOOHIE 180D
LLDLOE DHEROE E0fa00T HILENTD AQ $1390NE TOOHIE INLYION -§ xpuaddy

&00T =unr




09

W8T E  BLPEO0E  ETEL FEIL TWLCL LMD SNOLEONIN

T BT S B 3 WiGL S3LEN 12 ASvPESd SNOLTONIH
I emiiE EE LT ] = TelT  GLZis ok W | BLOE AHVAIEd 30 HOWlE HOW | 2310
|ET  I05'0EF LiL SIB'T Ry oLt TBIT  TOLSEE ZIL o | e AHVAIR ATHWW 9510
e 585'3k5 a3l LEZ'E PROEES il OITE BUOES EIL o | sE0T AHVAIEG MOLKNEHL ONY SNOLSEMN k0T
FEEE L gt a5 E69'E =T £} BEF'E 12 L L] ESOT AEVIIEE AN €203
£ZE'T  SEE'TSE Pzl S5E'E oEFESE Tzt 0BT LrSEE ELE o | s OUOHVH EVANE  LZID
£00'E TMESE £5k EBE'C FEESE ¥t SIET SRS o3k o | wZDE AMVAIE D EESENOHSTS  EH0S
LEFE FEVERET BEd 133'E DESTEET ESE LEE BRUTWT LTE] | wzoe HEM SNOLSOMH 50503

HELEMD INOLIONI

IThE  EeEEChE  FEEL [BELE  LELTicE  BLEL 1B DELFEZE BEE L TE1CL HALEND AENE0= 1

T Baf T ¥IBE T ELTL PBET | FEE B8 LT L UL HALEN T AEVAIEd AHNB0S ]
[Erre TEL BT o5 EIVE Ve LT ) FIRE  ESLIET o5 W | E5EE PR e e TN T
=1 EZE'TET L Bl LB9'E OBb282" L T ERL'T BOETLE L &3t nr BE0T AW IHd AHMBOET griod
LIEE B39'E5T o8 ZZE'E ESTELT e IEE  BELIE 8 L AMVPIR WIHDOHY MOMLSYS 0TI
4rE SHLRDE T LED'E IaVEnE zok EOFE  BSELZE L0k W | siEE AHVWING TDATIOVED SIS
oET  DOE'EES Lk 0SE'T SETIS Lik ISHT TS Lk W | EZoE AMVAID TD TIWEODD SIS
OET 3OS ozk EIE'T SEFLEE ok MEET  SETIME Bk W | sooE AMVWIND IO AMNES0E  £0ME
;ET  SELUSE £l AT S9ELEE 131 0SET  BLEESE Lk W | sooz AHVPIRE NOLSIJHEY  LDI0S
PISE IFE'EST 5L I55'E SASELLT 9aL BESE  GUFRUT B W | gsoe HEH TELEEEVN NHOP 3HLANNBOST  2E0d

HILEMID AHNETST

ROEE  SSCEEL  BELE DEEE  SeEESEL TEL T TWLOL HALEN D T THAH HHOT

(B0 ee0ieew  Bov L 0T EeRlieF EIF L TWICL HALEM D AHYAIEd S 1HA8 HHOT
Ey TR 7 BEIE =3 T TBOE  CTFRLIE T3 W | SBEE AEwAIEd S0 HoBNHOLEM  FEio
RE EST'EST €8 ZET'E RIS LT 52 ISTE OMIST 8 w | eBEE AHYPIEG 30 OHWANIS-HIONMN-NOLE3M  SLH03
|IT  EOFELF S8k 58S'T MITELE rEk BEST  PIOELF ik w |55 AMVARND QHOS YA, 32103
LEE BELbLL 5k E¥3'E 35K TEL 05 TP OTFEEH ] w | Ee AHYPIRS BONVNOSA LS OLHE
LEET  ESVHS aTE FIE'T ELT L85 hE 00T ADEEIE IEE w | BEIE LMW WeYd TTEIHEY SAN-NO-SS08 23103
£39°E 0EE'sLL ar ZEE Eb3'EEL o] IIFE  TEFEEL 5 w | i5EE AMVAIRG 3D ANOHENYTT  PSI0D
EhLF BE'SET 53 S5L'F  OELLE 52 BIEE  BEVIEE =] w | e AEVPIN TOVET  LPLES
OOE'E BBE'S51 o ¥EE'E LEL'ESL fa e =L Er w ¥EOT AWHIE L T D S.EMN £riog
meT TR art EEL'T 0ss"enk st PELT  BESSIF 5k E AEWHIEd 84400 ATEEOE ST
WE'T  SIE'SEE Lk HEE'T BOFETE SkE 0SFT  BTSHEE Ik w | ssmE AHWWIND FOHOWOODO0D  +THE
LSHE EES'BOE 85 ELVE 85 FE £ TEFE  TESEE 35 w | e AHYFIEE 30 MOLSORSE S0H03
EEEE V55'ELE ik SHFE LIPS kb PEEE  EBSFEEE BhE w | soEE AMYAIE IO BLLOBEY NOLJAYES  +0I03
LOFE DS5'OPSE LML LES'E EETESSE 085 395F  TOEEISE o35 w | Bzee HEIH FTHAN NHOM SHL ‘SUN-NCO-SE08  LIEDS

HILEMID R0

TeE  BAvBECE  GERE D BEET  BELFRRE o WiOL 53l 1o SO0HEaAM

T 08k L Z80E Bl 0 L BI0E | EFLEEE BET L WAL HILEMD AHYNIEE I00/HE3M
SUDE ZEEDG0F S5E ZIDE TS BB0E  ERLEZFF EE WA | EBEE AEWAISd SOISHSNE | SEi0E
STHE TEFRIT a5 585'E IpFE5L as 0BSE  LFDOE 75 W | L AMWPRS “3'D HOWMHONSO TULT £5i03
THEE IEE'FIT 55 ZHCE 3L ] TLE BSLURIT EH] L AdWWID ASYTIRNOH  OFlea
EME FEEIND L 143 EEE'T SPEENDL  BSE BEET  DESELDH 33E ¥ | im0z AHWAIEG SHULEYA 15 '0N0SS%3H 3003
TEET DT Izt 200'E WL TP SIOE  SOFRDL air wH | E8OT AMWAIE NOOWSTHYR ‘ON0=3%3H  TEl03
£56°E 189 IBYT o] B9E'E EITSSE 09 S BESOAUT ML v | e ARSOVIY OM0SSEIH oxnd

YILENTD IDOEILM

&00T =unr




19

S EH0 BT E VBT | CLCFLLE A TYLOL HILEMTD GAHVIN LE

EEAED [T5] L = oL BIZ T L] TWLOL HALEMNTD AUvAlEd TAHVN LE
FIET EFE LM ELL I FaE &0l BMET [E4T 3 &08 Ed TLEE AHWHIEA T SHSB00 18 SAM-NO-EB0Y &30
oFST ZOFeS T 25T LMETS Fiad ZET ESLES sz me | sEeE AMVWIEd  FEl03

O BHIAVNVE SIOAVY- LB "TH0=SEEH
1857 BIETSS a0z 257 LERESS Fiad 3657 BSTUNS £0z me | peee AHYPIED “TH SACYTHNC 'OHO=S%SH  £0103
LIEE FLLFET 553 ZBE'E MTLET  ESS BT PEOEEET 553 o G HOIH M SANYM 15 'THOSSMSH  +E0d

HILFNTD FAHVM LE

S0E  OBELELE =T ZEF'E  PEFFLTE  LDB BEFE  IEDIZTE ) WLOL EELENTD OV AROHE

ENE T TLE  BELEWE  Gee BEFE  SOOFIOE BoB WiCL H3LEM 13 ABYAIHd OHVARCHE
BT (R 55 L3 955 12T ] BEFE  BLLIEE I3 ¥ | eOiE AEwPIEd 30 JNENCELEM | D2ia
ST 5528l EH] oLE'E 5E5LEL EH] ESHF'E BLEEEL 3] # | zzee LMW 3D ZENCONSY 3903
PEFE ¥5E'BEE L6 EE5'E TOTSSE 85 Eba'E TP TFE 1] = D4OE AW "T°D SLWE AT RETE LEiDg
2627 BOMSES 551 21T RS 551 sEFT  SesEEs 00z # | sz ANV BRALSE 18 THVANCES  S0i0a
88T ESTONE EpL E¥E'Z PEYLTE Bl ET OFEEr E5k = | sz AEVPIRED (OHVANCHE NOLSWHNICHE 20103
[=133 IB5'FIT o S96'E SCL'EST EC] BS5E  LEEST 3 @ |z AHYVIED AHNENSOSNE  S0HE
T EBE' FBLE 85T ELB'E BT WOE LOF TEDLTL EDE # | rooe HOIH HLISWZINS NSEN0 (Ouvamousl  00E0d

HELENTD OV AROHE

(ForE | IEODRRE | BERL BEEE | PLLLLrE | BLEL BELT | DDBILTE BRE T TPL0L HALEN 1D HLTHIRNOT]

TEOE . LODOPLE . SI0L BEDE . BOLESLE  ACDL TOUE . WA OELE TFOL HALEM 1D AHVRIES Sl TRINDS
STSE BOT'IET i} LE'E ISOSPT EL S9EE POFTSE =13 [ BFIT AHWRIIEG (H3 I SNIROT 1) HOMHL IHOLS €403
TEET  LED'sEE Zht SE6'Z TREREE ELL SM0E BESERE 506 W emz AMNPIEAROLSNT L5103
£EE De5'TET 8 T3 50L'96T ] KT PLEEET ] LIS AHYPIES T NOLOMIN SELSNINCET 5103
SEET  ¥SE'EDS 113 S66'Z FOOTIS TEE BEET  FSLE BEE W HOMNM ESLSNINDST b5HE
e SHLERL 1 E30'E BEFLTL Fizd MBI EEFTEL £ET L SLNYN EELSNINOST  05HE
o0'E 884'TET ] EED'E STERLT 05 TOLE  SEOTED [ LTS AHWWING S0 SSRWT LS NOLIOEMN TR0
LEE'T  §Es'aE 201 ¥56'Z OZT0ME 501 IS5T BRLTME ale LS AMVPIRG TDRTIIVHON LS WYHNIODE  Z0ia
LIO'F  FEFIOET bi5 Wo0'F BRETIET RS BaS'T  EFITECT 03 W | o 3IDITIOD HSLSNIN THL HILSNINCET SEnd

HILENTD HALEHINGT

GG BFE FILE  FEEElBE  E3E BOFE LT RET BLE TWLGL S3Len 0 HOLONIA

- — ——

YeOE 0BT LFEL  BEF IE0E | EBLEREL 03T BPUE | BLESET L a5p AVLOL HALFND AHHIEA HOLOHIN
TODE ¥OL BEL 35 SIBT 80T =T B BTeT  BISEEL 5 AT | S8ec AHWAISd O 0 So0mENEd | S50
mET  FESLS 14 TEE'T 30% L85 [1::4 TRET  BESEES 0T H1 | sE0z AHYWIED NOLEMN P03
ET5E 80'9ET 3 SEHE BEFTET £ OsTE BRVMET 3 H1 | 5EDE ANVIIHD TOATISONYS  SHHE
TaFE S0L'TST £ frd 3 LB0'EET =1 MWEE ke o8 H1 | ooz AMWHIEG ATTERTY 00L0E
oeE'E EFE LIS i LT3 [ = = ERLE BSLEDSL rIr H1 | zzoe SMDATYH ADVT NCLEMIN 20509

HILENTED HOLOMIH

&00T =unr




29

ESE T BILT  BLOESFE 9806 e BECDINEE B IWLOL HElH
VALE  GLCLESE 3 BALE  EFSLE3E  EE IZRE | LCEOELTE IFF W | SFOF HEAR SUORDINM | EFEOS |
EBLE EEUTRE 35 0TEE FIMRLLF 53 388'E DTRELLE g5F | sror HOIH AZTBOANM  CHEOS
MIS'E  OSSTRSE HO'E MES'E  EEC'ESSE  DBE 3899'E CDE'GKSE 3 | sTE HEIH TTHAN NHOM SHL SANFNC-SS0H  HHEOS
ot EETL 33€ 5EFE WFCDTEE BSE $SE'E DFLRMEL 2% 4| zEOR HE® TSSMA ‘HIMNHIEALSd  DHEOS
LT PEFIDET FI5 TP BIIMET BIS BSE'E  EFITEET £09 wm |z IOITIOD WALGNIN IHL WALSNINOTT  E0E03
WS'E  LE'ESET 5L ISE O SEUEMLT AL BES'E  BIFRLLT il w | zzop HEIH O35V KHOE JHL ANNS0ST  BOE0D
OEB'E P L5 Elr 6L E 1Fa'ILEs'E B0 EGL'E L5809 #F Wl i SNIHAH AT NILENIN £DEOS
WBE'E  RLVEHET 558 199°E DES'DEET  ES8 LS'E BSLESFE s ® | zor HOIH SNCLEBNIN  S0E0S
DaL'E LTDESE'E LB 0L CEO'SEE'E  BEE ¥ELE DE9EEE'E 568 | pLop HEIH SE0USEUMHM 'OHOJTUIH 50603
LIE'E  PAUHET 568 L WTIFET  EES EH'E  PED'SEET 53 ws | Losr HEIH " SANYN LS 'TN04Tu3H  #OC0S
EIB'E  LESLERT 3 BIFE  OC9'ISST 099 IFE'E BESIALT oL W | Lo AMSOVDY 'CMOJINIH  EDEODS
BRI PUSIE'T  SELL 53E  SSESET  EELL OLEE LSE'TTE'Y TELE B |00SF  IVOOSMTE BONMOSSMIH 40 JOHERS 'OH04TMIH  I0E0S
BE JSUDEDE 6B ME RIGISTE 5B EDS'E  BEY'TSIE I W | sioe HEIH SNOLST A 'CN04TNIH  10E03
96 EE'LELL BEZ EIE'®  BMBIOTE BOE L0'F  ZEDLIZ'L 133 = | +ooe HESH HLIEVENE NI3ND (OUVANCHEl  DOEOS
Hoouog UbE
PEBT LAl 9LPOE  B8L Gl BEBT @GO HILBE  FOLEE T80 OCHCHLiE FIFEL - IWLIOL AHVAIED O |
[Be0E  cPIE3LL  829% FBOT  GA000LL  L8FE I00E  SOEBLEL TIFE TWIOL L8N 10 §80HOALIHM
BEBT  SLSGEEF  GIBL BERT  LLAFIEF AT L T SEBELTF SLGL TWLOL L5 M1 AHVNIEd SEOHDELIHM
ELEE 33 TEhE  IEBBOE 13 TSHE  ZEGEEE 3 | zoie JEVAIEd =0 SWHENE NOLLTHIE | Fos0s
933'c oeE'mew' L ] Era'T STE'SIF'E 55 Fi-:rd EES'E3F'E 5¥5 L [¥a-4 AHYIIEL ALINMEL TE04THTH BEMIZ
Das'T LLE'LES'E 365 BEST  GEE'SER'E WIS S08'C BIE'REFE s | Leoz AHVWID SEONYONDS OHOT 'OHO4TUIH  LEMIS
BB TOWESL ¥ E39T  SEE'DRL BIZ Se8'T  BTEUEL Tz W | sz AMVPIR ‘30 WINOOH 'GHOJIEIH  BZMIS
TIME  EESE 3 SIE RLE'EDE E SEVE  ESE'RED =3 | szoT AMVAIED TIHDWENE D03
D3L'E LTDESE'E 106 DiLE CEO'SEE'E BB ¥ELSE  DD9SEEE £ | rior HOIH GE0NSELHM 'TH04TUIH 50603
HILEID FROHIALHM
LEE  SLEWEE  MOL SEET  BOCBESE  oROL EW'E  LELBESE 590'L IWLOL S3LEMD FHONOLM
EIOE  BECWIEL 3] BBUT UGB EEEL  pAg T80E  OIELLEL 508 TWICL HALEN 10 AHVAIED JHONGIA
BS0E  FESEEE Fr.y PIOE  SLEZBE TEF EEET LTy EET W | esiT THVAIED SU0MDIM  CEHS
EBB'E SELERE = En S69'BET 65 EL0'w CEE'IFT 53 W ShILT AHYWIELD NOOBOHE NIt ]
TIaT  LSESE i EZLT  FEE'ESF Tk ST SHRER 5Ll w | Es0e ANVWIND TONOLI MO  FOIE
DPL'E TAUSET 56 EELE  SSE'LME 6 IBVE  ELDOZE Lok w | EbEe AMVAIEG CSMOONS INICUVMULNIET  EFel3
FIME  PRLOEF 331 SIE DRE'CIR EEH FW'E BIZOER LEH W | TreE AHYPIRSd T ONVISDNIN  FELOS
FICE ELTDES'E B SILE  EFSLEFE  EEE ITR'E LTE'ORLE L¥F w | ror HEIH JWOMDING EVEDS
HILEMTD FUONOLM
FaerE | EEREEEE | 88 BIST | TTLIEE | tog SraE | BOTLBCT 0 TTLOL HELEN10 LS T0aM
BIDE | OPS el BET TECE | BT LOBL  BAY TELE | BEBLOEL BET TRLOL HALENTD AETWId A3 TE03M
EREED SEL S6hE  SCEDER 15t FFIE  GCIFOS 151 L T EWHIESd AZB03M | BL0F |
FS'E  EEEHET 8 BISE  BIEIE £8 SOLE LPEEIT 55 W | auee AMVAIEE OSMOONS SANFHO-NOLNMYAS 203
DY EECEL 55 AEF  EEFIFE EE oFEE  BIO'GRE 3 W | oo AHVAIEE TTRANTID  BHHO3
DALT  SE'ERF 654 53FT  ETEOF 94 €8T BSIFSE 251 | aTo AEVAIED TIHNSOSED T GANVILE LS
INT'E EEE'EET 68 SETE  L¥S'IED 55 IMI'E BIE'RLE 8 | sioe AMWPIlHd T NOAdNONYD  CLA03
EAL'E  ESUTRL 2 T g T B Se'E  DE9ELLE B5% W | sror HEIH AZTBOAM  THEOD3
HILEMID ATTE0IM

&00T =unr



Issued 2004 - School Organisation Plan
Section 2 - Policies Relevant to the Provision of School Places

B.

217

218

Maintenance of high standards

Most areas of the County are served by one school, gecgraphy and travelling times
limiting choice. In recognition of the practical constraintz on parental preference,
therefore, the LEA accepts that it is imperative for standards to be maintained at the
highest possible level at all schools. Thizs i done through the Education
Development Plan.

Education Development Plan

The EDP recognizes the current structure of school provigion (notably the large
number of small primary and high schools, ) and the context of falling roles. With that
background, the EDP has identified 7 priorities in the school improvemnent
programme. There are listed below, with comments provided on the links fo the

SOP.

EDF Priority

Link to SOP

1. Raiging attainment in the Early Years towards
the early leaming goals and in primary educafion,
especially numeracy and literacy.

The support offered through the EDP reflects the
reliance on private and voluntary settings in early
years, and the large number of small primary
schoole where mixed aged and sometimez mixed
Key Stage teaching is found.

7. Raising attainment at Key Stage 3

The organigation of high and primary schools in
partnerships should facilitate a smoother transition
from Key Stage 2 to Key Stage 3.

3. Raising attainment at Key Stage 4 and post- 16

Thig in part is being processed through the 18-19
curmiculum is one sirategy which will help.

4. Tackling underachievement and namowing the
performance gaps though a focus upon PE, sport
and the creafive aris

The Specialist College Initiative iz one way in which
thiz can be pursued.

5. Support for Schools causing concem

The S0P contains the ultimate sanction of reviewing
thie future of a school in special measures.

6. Inclusion

Provision for children with special education needs is
largely in mainstream schoole, with places available
in special schools for those with particular needs.

7. Using ICT to improve teaching and leaming in a
rural county

Mew technology iz sesn as one way fo maintain
existing provision and improve standardz at a time of
falling rollz, by encouraging collaboration between
schools and sharing good practice.

63




219

220

21

222

223

In the inferests of maintaining high standards, the Council provides appropriate
financial and curriculum support for all schools, however small individually they may
become. This ig in line with the Audit Commiszion’s view expressed in Trading
Places’ where it states:-

“if small schools and small sixth forms are not going fo be closed as part of an LEA's
efforts fo secure the night number of places in the right locafions, then ofher ways
must be found of managing the financial and educafional problems that they create.
For exampie:

* Financial support to small schools vis profection factors in the LMS
formula should be targefed to those schools that the LEA believes fo be
essential. LEAs can also promofe clustering arrangements, which bring
groups of small schools together fo share experiise and resources (for
exampie, specialist teaching staff whom none of the schools could fund
wehelly from its individual budget); and

+  Sixth forms with @ number on roll of less than 150 showd be reviewed to
ensure educational and financial health. Where problems are identified in
a small sixth form, but closure is not felt fo be desirable or possible, LEAs
showld explore the scope for encouraging colaboration with offer sixth
forms, the organisation of consortia or franchising arrangements.”

In Herefordshire, financial support for small schools is provided through the budget
formula, by a combination of lump sum allocations per school, and through
supplements for small schools with pupil numbers below defined thresholds so that —

(a) even the smallest primary school can afford 2 teachers and other resources;
(b) even the =smallest high school can afford at least 12 teachers and other
Tes0UICces.

The Council alzo recognizes the more limited curriculum and social experences that
small schools can provide. The Council, therefore, seeks to provide for wider
opportunities by supporting, through its Education Development Plan, joint activities
by groups or clusters of schoolzs. Consideration is being given fo proposals to extend
these activities under the Extended School Initiative. The Council will also actively
support more formal co-operative arrangements between schools, but believes that
these can only be successfully created without imposition where there iz a
willingness in achools to move to such amangements. The LEA will raize the
possibilities of such parnerships where the situation arises, eg. due to a
Headteacher leaving or pupil numbers falling to the detriment to staff and cumiculum
provigion.

The prioritiez within the Education Development Plan alzso take account of the
significant proportion of both primary and high schools where the number of pupilz in
particular year groups i small. Specific attention iz given to managing the literacy
and numeracy strategies in mixed-age or whole Key Stage classes, and to
addressing the issue of leadership through training, on-site support and by updating
documentation related to the management of small schools.

Review of Small Schools and Surplus Capacity

The Audit Commission's advice, in the national report referred to in paragraph 3.18,
recommends that primary schoolz with fewer than 90 pupils, and high schools with
fewer than 600 pupils aged 11-13, should be identified to “defermine whether these
small schools should be retained or expandediclosed”. (Trading Places: ‘The Supply
and Allocation of School Places’). Herefordshire Council believes that such figures

64



224

2.25

2.26

227

provide a useful general guide. However, some adjustment needs to be made for
rural areas, as the DFES recognises in its draft guidance (received 3™ August, 1999)
to SOCs —

The Secretary of Stafe is concerned that in considerng sfatutory
proposals School Organisafion Commiffess and Adudicafors have
regard to the need fo preserve access fo a local school for rural
communifies. There showld therefore be a presumpfion against the
closure of rural schools. This does not mean that no rural school
showd ever cloge, buf the case for closure shouwid be strong and the
proposals clearly in the best inferests of educalional provision in the
area. The fransport implicafions of rural school closures showld also
be carefully considered, including the welfare of the children, the
recurrent cost to the LEA of fransporting pupils fo school further away,
the effects on road fraffic congesfion, and the environmental costfs of
pupils traveliing further fo schools. The overall effect on the
communify of closure of the village schools should alzso be faken info
account. Defailed guidance on parficular factors that need fo be
considered in deciding such proposals is given at the end of this
section.

Having congidered the Audit Commission and DfES advice, it iz accepted that, other
things being equal, there are significant educational advantages for a 5-11 primary
school to have at least 3 teachers. Under Herefordshire's funding amangements,
schools with 60+ pupile can nomally afford 3 teachers on a full-time bagis, whilst
schools with 50+ pupils can normally fund abouwt 2% full-time teachers, making
possible 3-teacher class amangements for the mornings or aftemoons. It iz below
such levels, therefore, that the educational wviability of small schools should be
reviewed. Similary, the Council accepts that the ideal minimum size for an 11-16
secondary school iz 3 or 4-form entry (450-600 pupilz). Where such ideal zizes are
not practical, however, the Council ensures that s amangements for funding for
schoolz provide reasonable levels of teaching resources (2ee paragraph above), =o
that a good range of curriculum options can be offered.

Herefordshire Council is committed to maintaining a good level of support for amaill
primary and secondary schools, and advocates the maintenance of existing funding
levels for sixth forms in schools, where such arrangements are appropriate. It
believes that surplus space should initially be addressed through seeking alternative
use rather than clogure. At the same time, however, the Council does recognise that
there comes a point at which the maintenance of an individual school or sixth form
may need to be considered in the inferest of ensuring that resources are used
efficiently to achieve good value. Accordingly, the Council looks carefully at the
annual retumn of surplus capacity in schools fo decide whether or not fundamental
review of particular =chools or areas is required.

The Council alko provides for thorough review of the circumstances when pupil
numbers drop below defined levels at individual schools, though the Council also
believes that small schools should be able o operate with a degree of reasonable
certainty about their medium term future. The Council's overriding aim is to provide
schools of a high standard, always seeking improvement, and it would undermine
that objective if schoolz were disfracted by continual uncertainties conceming their
future existence. Any decigions concemning the future of particular schools would
need to take account of community, transport and envircnmental factors as well as
educational considerations.

The Council would normally review schools in the following circumstances.

65



2.28

229

2.30

|

2.32

2.33

Primary schools

(a) a school with fewer than 36 pupils in the September of a school year, or a school
whose numbers are expected to fall below that level within the following 5 years,
would be reviewed by the Council, in consultation with the relevant Diccesan
Education Authority where a Church school iz concerned.

(b) schools with 26-45 pupilz, which would be monitored by the Director of Education,
with the relevant Diccesan Director of Education where a Church school is
concerned, fo assess whether or not numbers are likely to drop below 35 pupils
within 5 years, and to determine whether or not there are other grounds for
concern about the future of the school;

(c}) where a pyramid of primary schools has unused capacity at a level that could
accommodate the closure of the smallest school, with up to 15% unused capacity

sfill remnaining if such possible closure were to occur, or

(d) where a school is identified by Ofsted either ag having serious weakneszes or in
need of special measures;

If, following such review, a school is judged to be currently viable, then no further
review of that school would be undertaken for at least 5 years, unless pupil numbers
were to fall by a further 25% below the level congidered during that review.

High schools

() where a high school has fewer than 200 pupilz on roll at the start of a school
year, or

(f) where a high school has sufficient unused capacity for all the existing and
projected pupils to be accommodated in the nearest alternative school with up to

15% unused capacity still remaining if such possible closure were fo ocour; or
{g) where a school is identified by Ofsted either as having serious weaknesses orin

need of special measures;
Sixth forms (16-18)

The Learning and Skillz Council has the responsibility for planning post-16 education,
including the power to make proposals for opening, enlarging or closing Sixth Form
provision.

The OfES has published a consultation paper on Learning fo Succeed - School
Sixth Form Funding. The document reiterates earlier statements that each sixth
form would be guaranteed itz current sixth form funding, provided pupil numbers are
maintained.

That assurance iz welcome in providing a broadly secure framework in which the
provizion made within individual schoolz can be reviewed though it is noted with
some concem that the safeguards do not promise budget increases for schools
whose numbers rige. Discuszions are continuing with the DFES in an effort to ensure
that the guarantes operates effectively for small sixth forms, serving isolated rural
communities.

The potential for closer collaboration with local colleges and with other schools is
being explored, with a view to widening the options and guality of provigion for
students in smaller sixth forms by the Herefordshire Association of Colleges and
Schools. Having considered wvarious options, there iz a consensus that
improvements to the existing framework of provigion is the best way forward.

The review of post-16 provigion by independent consultantz in 2002 commissioned

by the LSC confirmed that co-operation to improve existing provision is the best way
forward.

66



2.4

2.35

2.36

Mursery Units in LEA Schools.

There is a concern that a significant number of places in LEA nurseries are not used.
From dizcussions with schools, it appears that many parents prefer the more flexible
amangements available in private and voluntany playgroups including earier starting
times and longer sessional care than offered in the 13 LEA nurseries where 5 two
and half hour sessiong per week are available. Given that all 3 and 4 year olds can
have free early years education from April 2004 and follow the same foundation
stage curriculum whatever the setfing, the schools with nurseries do feel that they are
at a disadvantage despite the undoubted quality of provigion. The LEA iz congidering
the wvarious issues involved including encouraging schools to work with voluntary
providers to achieve full day care on the school gite. In the meantime it is therefore
proposed that a policy fo review those nurseries which are less than S0% full in
September of each year be adopted, assuming that capacities are reduced from 30
to 26.

Review of Catchment Areas

The community organigation of schools in the County depends on precize definiticn
of catchment areas. There are, however, circumstances in which paris of the
established catchment areas need fo be reconsidered, most frequently when
significant houszing development and transport patterns cause the community focus
to shift. It might also be appropriate to reconsider catchment areas where differential
changes in pupil numbers causze some 2chools fo be overcrowded, while others
reasonably nearby still have spare capacity. Major issues to do with provision of
catchment areas — whether generated by achool or parental requests or by planning
conziderationz — will be presented to the School Organisation Commitiee for
information and comment following consultation with all relevant groups and
individuals.

Although alteration in catchment areas may appear an easy and simple means to
balance pupil numbers to places, in practice it iz not and should only be undertaken if
there are long-term benefits in making those changes. Change cannot necessarily
happen overnight as it i good practice to allow and to honour transport
ammangemenits of existing pupils.

67



The Strategic Development of Education for the 21%' Century
Terms of reference for Task Group
Introduction

The Council decision on 21 January 2008 was that there would be no closures or major re-
organisations of high schools during the lifetime of the current administration. The Council
would continue to apply the existing Small Schools Policy for primary schools and that no
closures would happen outside of that policy. The Small Schools Policy will be implemented
appropriately.

Following on from 2 December 2008 conference and building upon the 21% Century
principles document which had previously been agreed with head teachers, this task group
has been established. The challenges facing Herefordshire are:

Continuing to improve the quality of educational outcomes for children and young people
The impact of falling rolls

Financial

Workforce reform, in particular succession planning

Purpose of Task Group

The task group is advisory to the Council and any decision on school provision will be
political.

To establish a set of criteria to underpin the future of education and learning provision which
can then be applied to establish a strategic development plan for the next ten years. This
criteria will provide a framework upon which decisions will be made.

The task group will report regularly to the Chief Executive, to ensure direction, timeliness
and cross check any issues that may require a broader, cross Council, County and partner
approach. The Chief Executive and Director of Children’s Services will then feed outcomes
into the normal political process.

Membership protocols

To bring together views of education and the communities

Work will be undertaken in an open and supportive way

Members of the task group will work in the interests of the whole county

Minutes disseminated in three days. Minutes will record action points and key

discussion points.

May bring in representatives as required, e.g. bursars

e Enquiries from the press would be referred to Carla Preston (press office) and the
independent chair.

e Regular updates immediately following the meeting would be agreed by the Cabinet

Member / Independent Chair and Director of Children’s Services

68



Membership

Independent Chair — David Brown

Cabinet Member, ICT, Education & Achievement
Director of Children’s Services

Head of Improvement and Inclusion

Head of Planning, Performance and Development
Planning Policy Manager

Parish Liaison and Rural Services Manager

Representatives:

Diocesan Representatives:

Roman Catholic x 1
Anglican x 1

Head teacher representatives:

Primary Schools x 4
Secondary Schools x 4

Governors Representatives:

Primary Schools x 1

Secondary Schools x 1:

The task group will be supported by officers from the Council, including finance, planning,
transport, admissions and school improvement and others as required.

Way of working

Task group members should form sub groups to look at a basket of issues, e.g. transport,
finance, NOR.

Existing information should be used as much as possible

Each group should prepare work outside of the meetings and use the Task Group meetings
to discuss findings, check progress against timeline and find solutions to any potential
difficulties

Areas for the task group to consider:

To agree a set of principles which can then be applied for the drawing up of a draft model of
schools provision prior to full consultation. It may be that more than one model can be
designed for consultation.

69



The Task Group will look at the different dynamics of Herefordshire — market town, rural, city

etc.
Teaching Community Transport Commissioning | School Staff
provision
& Learning
Quality Position in Rationalisation Population Profile
) community and _
Achievement use of schools | Fuel costs Trends Recruitment/
. ) Retention
Narrowing the Council-led Parental choice | Parental
gap preference Well-being
work _on Rurality
Tools to support sustalnap!e Pupil views
eg VLE, ICT communities
Access
Sustainability Finance Services for Size of Schools | Diversity of
pupils and the Provision
Community
Schools Revenue CYPD employed | Optimum size Community,
VA,
Environment Balances Partner services | Small schools
Foundation,
Use of overall Co location of definition / policy | st
budgets and services
split Federations,
Clusters
Governance
Assets Pupil Support | Inclusion
&

Development

State of assets

Capital
investment

14 — 19 agenda

Extended
schools

Early Years

The needs of
children and
young people-
ECM as key
principle

The Task Group will have flexibility to consider any other issues as they arise.

70




Timeline

January 2009 Agree terms of reference, membership,
outline work programme

February to April 2009 Identify and analyse available data and

information to devise a menu of criteria
May 2009 Initial report containing draft criteria
May 2009 — July 2009 Officers develop strategic plan of

provision using criteria, including options
as appropriate

November 2009 Results put forward to the Cabinet for
consideration and agree a strategy for
formal consultation and change
management

Documents — Considerations

Principles for 21% Century Education in Herefordshire 2007
Primary Strategy for Change

Building Schools for the Future expression of interest

Data books 1 and 2 for clusters

Housing new build plans / data

PCT birth rate data

Map.

Updated Version 2 — 2 February 2009

71




GLOSSARY OF TERMS AND ACRONYMS

= CPD - Continuing Professional Development

= CRB - Criminal Records Bureau — safeguarding checks carried out on all staff
working with children and young people

= DCSF - Department for Children, Schools and Families

= HSTG — Herefordshire Schools Task Group

= [NSET - In Service Training — for school staff

= MFL — Modern Foreign Languages — curriculum area

= NCSL — National College for School Leadership

=  SENCO - Special Educational Needs Co-ordinator

= SIPS - School Improvement Partners

Falling rolls: refers to the decreasing number of children and young people attending our
schools.

Surplus capacity: gives a percentage and actual figure for each school indicating the number
of vacancies.

National Strategies: refers to curriculum, standards and initiatives set by central government
that schools have to deliver.

72



Herefordshire
Council

NHS

Herefordshire

HEREFORDSHIRE SCHOOLS TASK GROUP REPORT

RESPONSE SHEET

1. Cluster Working Recommendation (pages 6 and 7)
Strongly Agree Disagree Strongly
Agree Disagree

CWR1

CWR2

CWR3

CWR4

CWR5

Comments:

2. Considerations Regarding School Leadership (pages 8 and 9)
Strongly Agree Disagree Strongly
Agree Disagree

LR1

LR2

LR3

LR4

Comments:

73



3. Considerations Regarding Sustainable Schools (page 10)

Strongly Agree Disagree Strongly
Agree Disagree

3.1 Surplus Capacity

A

Cc

Comments:

3. Considerations Regarding Sustainable Schools (page 11)

Strongly Agree Disagree Strongly
Agree Disagree

3.2 Falling Rolls

A

B

Cc

Comments:

74




3. Considerations Regarding Sustainable Schools (page11)

Strongly Agree Disagree Strongly
Agree Disagree

3.3 Primary Pupil Numbers

A

B

C

Comments:

3. Considerations Regarding Sustainable Schools (page 11)
Strongly Agree Disagree Strongly
Agree Disagree

3.4 Secondary Pupil Numbers

A

B

Cc

Comments:

75




4. Considerations Regarding Finance (page12)

Strongly Agree Disagree Strongly
Agree Disagree

F1
F2
F3
F4
F5

Comments:

5. Considerations Regarding National Strategies (page 13)

Comments:

Please circle whether this is a:

Personal response  or Professional response

If professional, please state profession

Responses to the consultation can be submitted through:

= the web consultation link www.herefordshire.gov.uk/consult

= via email to schoolstaskgroup@herefordshire.gov.uk

» via post to: F.Lennon Children & Young People’s Directorate, PO BOX 185,
Blackfriars Street, Hereford. HR4 9ZR

76






APPENDIX 2

Consultation List

Children & Young People’s Directorate

Herefordshire District Councillors

Parish and Town Councillors

Schools

School Governors

Independent Schools — Hereford Cathedral, Lucton, St Richards, Waldorf,
Coddington Court

Children’s Trust

Herefordshire Safeguarding Children’s Board

Probation

Leadership Forum

Schools Online

Roman Catholic Diocese

Church of England Diocese

Government Office West Midlands

Community Safety Drugs Partnership

Herefordshire Community Development Partnership
Herefordshire Partnership

South Wye Regeneration Partnership

Secondary Advisory Committee for Religious Education (SACRE)
Local Admissions Forum

Schools Forum

Colleges — Art, Tech, 6" Form, Holme Lacy

Herefordshire Voluntary Sector Assembly

Community First

Herefordshire & Worcester Youth Offending Service

(HALC

School Library Service

Rural Media

Halo

West Midlands Consortium Education Service for Travelling Children
Children’s Centres

EYS Forum

Play Partnership

Early Years settings

Youth Groups

Youth Council

Children’s Interest Groups

CSIP Children’s Lead Strategic Health Authority Birmingham
Learning & Skills Council

Connexions

West Mercia Police

Children & Young People’s Shadow Boards

Herefordshire Council of Voluntary Youth Services (HCVYS),
Worcestershire County Council

Shropshire Council

Gloucestershire Council

Powys Council

Chamber of Commerce






Appendix 3
The Strategic Development of Education for the 21°* Century

Terms of reference for Task Group
Introduction
The Council decision on 21 January 2008 was that there would be no closures or major re-
organisations of high schools during the lifetime of the current administration. The Council
would continue to apply the existing Small Schools Policy for primary schools and that no
closures would happen outside of that policy. The Small Schools Policy will be implemented
appropriately.
Following on from 2 December 2008 conference and building upon the 21%' Century
principles document which had previously been agreed with head teachers, this task group
has been established. The challenges facing Herefordshire are:
¢ Continuing to improve the quality of educational outcomes for children and young people
e The impact of falling rolls
¢ Financial
o Workforce reform, in particular succession planning

Purpose of Task Group

The task group is advisory to the Council and any decision on school provision will be
political.

To establish a set of criteria to underpin the future of education and learning provision which
can then be applied to establish a strategic development plan for the next ten years. This
criteria will provide a framework upon which decisions will be made.

The task group will report regularly to the Chief Executive, to ensure direction, timeliness
and cross check any issues that may require a broader, cross Council, County and partner
approach. The Chief Executive and Director of Children’s Services will then feed outcomes
into the normal political process.

Membership protocols

e To bring together views of education and the communities

¢ Work will be undertaken in an open and supportive way

o Members of the task group will work in the interests of the whole county

e Minutes disseminated in three days. Minutes will record action points and key
discussion points.

e May bring in representatives as required, e.g. bursars
e Enquiries from the press would be referred to Carla Preston (press office) and the

independent chair.
Page 1 of 4



e Regular updates immediately following the meeting would be agreed by the Cabinet
Member / Independent Chair and Director of Children’s Services

Membership

Independent Chair — David Brown

Cabinet Member, ICT, Education & Achievement
Director of Children’s Services

Head of Improvement and Inclusion

Head of Planning, Performance and Development
Planning Policy Manager

Parish Liaison and Rural Services Manager

Representatives:

Diocesan Representatives:

Roman Catholic x 1
Anglican x 1

Head teacher representatives:

Primary Schools x 4
Secondary Schools x 4

Governors Representatives:

Primary Schools x 1

Secondary Schools x 1:

The task group will be supported by officers from the Council, including finance, planning,
transport, admissions and school improvement and others as required.

Way of working

Task group members should form sub groups to look at a basket of issues, e.g. transport,
finance, NOR.

Existing information should be used as much as possible

Each group should prepare work outside of the meetings and use the Task Group meetings
to discuss findings, check progress against timeline and find solutions to any potential
difficulties

Areas for the task group to consider:

To agree a set of principles which can then be applied for the drawing up of a draft model of

schools provision prior to full consultation. It may be that more than one model can be
designed for consultation.

Page 2 of 4



The Task Group will look at the different dynamics of Herefordshire — market town, rural, city

etc.
Teaching Community Transport Commissioning | School Staff
& Learning provision
Quality Position in | Rationalisation Population Profile
Achievement community and Fuel costs Trends Recruitment/
use of schools Retention
Narrowing the Council-led Parental choice | Parental
gap work on | Rurality preference Well-being
Tools to support | sustainable Pupil views
eg VLE, ICT communities Access
Sustainability Finance Services for | Size of Schools | Diversity of
pupils and the Provision
Community
Schools Revenue CYPD employed | Optimum size Community,
Environment Balances Partner services | Small schools VA,
Use of overall | Co location of | definition / policy _II:_oundatlon,
. rust
budgets and | services
split Federations,
Clusters
Governance
Assets Pupil Support | Inclusion
&

Development

State of assets

Capital
investment

14 — 19 agenda

Extended
schools

Early Years

The needs of
children and
young people-
ECM as key
principle

The Task Group will have flexibility to consider any other issues as they arise.

Timeline

Page 3 of 4




January 2009 Agree terms of reference, membership,
outline work programme

February to April 2009 Identify and analyse available data and
information to devise a menu of criteria

May 2009 Initial report containing draft criteria

May 2009 — July 2009 Officers develop strategic plan of

provision using criteria, including options
as appropriate

November 2009 Results put forward to the Cabinet for
consideration and agree a strategy for
formal  consultation and  change
management

Documents — Considerations

Principles for 21%' Century Education in Herefordshire 2007
Primary Strategy for Change

Building Schools for the Future expression of interest

Data books 1 and 2 for clusters

Housing new build plans / data

PCT birth rate data

Map.

Sharon Menghini
Director of Children’s Services
Updated Version 2 — 2 February 2009

Page 4 of 4



AGENDA ITEM 7

Herefordshire
Council
MEETING: CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE
DATE: 29 SEPTEMBER 2009

TITLE OF REPORT: |14 — 19: MACHINERY OF GOVERNMENT,
CHANGES TO CONNEXIONS, LSC TRANSFER

PORTFOLIO AREA: |ICT, ACHIEVEMENT AND EDUCATION

CLASSIFICATION: Open
Wards Affected

County-wide
Purpose

To update Scrutiny Committee on the current position relating to: Machinery of Government
Changes/Learning & Skills Council (LSC) transfer and Connexions transfer. This paper
contains a brief over view of the Connexions transfer process — please refer to Cabinet
papers of 10 September 2009 for detailed information. Copies of the report have been
supplied to members of the Committee and are available on request.

Recommendation(s)
THAT Scrutiny Committee:
(a) note the process established for transferring of LSC staff

(b) Note the delivery arrangements following consultation process
for the transference of the Connexions services from
Herefordshire and Worcestershire Connexions Company into
Herefordshire Council

Key Points Summary

. As part of the national Machinery of Government (MoG) arrangements the transfer of
the LSC and Connexions to the local authority are outlined in this paper and more
details are contained within the briefing paper attached as Appendix 1. This is a
statutory requirement.

. LSC staffing transfer: LSC staff have been identified to transfer over to Herefordshire
Council, the transfer process will be completed by March 2010, with a staged transfer
occurring over the forthcoming months during the 2009/10 transition period.

. Transfer of Connexions Service: It is proposed that the Herefordshire strand of the
Connexions service is brought into the local authority and integrated within the re-
organised Children and Young People’s Directorate. Connexions staff will sit across

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Maureen Kelly Interim Head of 11-19 Integrated Services on (01432) 261880

11



three service areas: strategic leadership and quality assurance will come from the
improvement and inclusion service area with input from community operations. The
information advice and guidance (IAG) service area will sit within improvement and
inclusion where it can maintain independence. The targeted service will sit within
community operations and is an excellent example of where front line locality team
support should work effectively. Finally the significant data and performance
management requirements will be integrated in the planning. Performance and
development service area, which will improve efficiency of data collection and analysis
for the children’s trust. Staff will be managed and supervised by appropriately qualified
staff.

Alternative Options

1 LSC staffing transfer: There are no alternative options; this process is a statutory
requirement following the Machinery of Government changes

2 Transfer of Connexions service: The transfer process could have included greater
delegation of elements of delivery to schools, colleges and work based learning
providers. This option was rejected because it places Herefordshire Council out of
line with regional partners and would reduce the ability to deliver creative service
improvements and does not maintain the impartiality required.

Reasons for Recommendations

3 LSC Staffing Transfer: The arrangements for staff transference are recommended
because they provide both individual LSC staff and Herefordshire Council with the
best way to improve service delivery, whilst taking into consideration the challenges
that arise from moving staff from one organisation to another.

4 Transfer of Connexions Service: The arrangements for the transfer of the
Connexions service are recommended because they are the best way to improve
both service delivery and outcomes for young people within both the emerging new
organisation structure for Children’s Services, the effective implementation of the 14-
19 reforms and the current financial climate.

Introduction and Background

5 Following a national directive that the MoG would need to be implemented locally,
Herefordshire and other regional local authorities have been working to effect a
smooth transition by April 2010.

LSC Staffing Transfer:

6 From April 2010, responsibility for securing sufficient education and training provision
for all young people, including those aged 16-19, and 19-25 year olds being
assessed for a learning difficulty and/or disability, as well as juveniles in custody will
pass from the LSC to local authorities.

7 As part of this process Herefordshire Council has been allocated the equivalent of six
members of staff. Through consultation, the LSC have advised us that five current
members of staff will transfer into the Local Authority. They are at the following
levels:

1 x Partnership Manager: Alexia Heath — Experience of contract with FE

12



10

11

12

3 x Partnership Advisor's:  John Riley — ESF/ Capital Projects
Roger Fielder — Apprenticeships/ work based learning
Christine Sheppard - SRG

1 x Administrator: Suellen Holloway — Experienced administrator

In addition there is one further Band 3 (Partnership Manager) role vacant within the
local authority.

The LSC have matched staff to roles and Herefordshire Council has now received
the above individual staff names and details. Local authorities have had no influence
on the matching process; it has been conducted wholly within the LSC. Nevertheless
for the vacancy within Herefordshire that has not been filled by the matching process
we should receive a funding allocation instead of an individual.

It is intended that the new staff will sit within the Improvement and Inclusion Service
Area within 11-19 and Integrated Services. Any data officers transferring will sit
within the Performance Planning Team. We will also have to make arrangements to
support young people with learning difficulties and disabilities. Once our initial
staffing has been determined, more detailed planning can take place.

Transfer of Connexions Service:

In response to the Machinery of Government Changes and within the context of
Herefordshire Council’'s Children and Young People’s Directorate reconfiguration a
task group was established to consider the implications for Herefordshire - The
Connexions service currently operates as an independent company providing a
range of support services for young people primarily aged 14 +. The Local Authority
through grant funding purchases such provision. The transfer of the duties and
resources of the Learning and Skills Council to the Local Authority will directly impact
the commissioning of Connexions Service.

Current National, Regional and Local Government strategies indicate a requirement
to develop integrated youth support policy which encompasses all aspect of business
aimed at supporting young people between the ages of 11 — 19. The decision to bring
the Connexions service in house is timely so that preparations can be made for the
efficient transfer of the service by March 2010 (in line with the LSC transfer).

Key Considerations

13

LSC Staffing Transfer: It is proposed that LSC staff transferring into Herefordshire
Council are brought into the 11 -19 Integrated Services (Improvement and Inclusion
Service Area) The date for the LSC Staff transference process to be finalised is
March 2010, however planning for this has taken into consideration the needs of both
the service area and individual staff; therefore the process will be managed over the
forthcoming months during the transition year 2009/ 10 in order to integrate staff and
methods of working.

13



14

15

16

17

18

Time line for proposed Induction activities:

August 2009

Names/ details of staff transferring received

3™ September 2009

Herefordshire Council ‘welcome packs’ issued to transferring LSC staff

By end of September 2009 (date to be confirmed) —

Introduction to Herefordshire CYPD 14-19 Team — to include representatives of the
Secondary National Strategy Team, representatives of IT Team who support the
Area Prospectus and Common Application Process (14-19 Team).

January 2010

All Staff Briefing — half day Sharon Menghini

March 2010

Diversity Training — half day (HR)

Artemis — to be confirmed (WFD Strategy)

March/April 2010

Corporate Induction — full day (HR)
Health & Safety — half day (HR)

The above list is not exhaustive and further activities will be planned in. However,
the above Induction activities will also be aligned with the needs of the Connexions
staff as appropriate.

As part of the Induction process, transferring staff will be also be introduced to the
various networks supporting 14-19 local implementation in order to familiarise
themselves with the organisations involved and the local approach to
implementation.

The Interim Head of 11-19 Integrated Services and the HR team, are currently
developing a full and comprehensive timeline of induction events which will also take
into account the needs of the Connexions transfer.

Regular (monthly) meetings between the Interim Head of 11-19 Integrated Services,
14-19 Strategy Manager, Herefordshire Council HR team and the LSC lead person
have now been agreed and an action plan outlining all the activities/issues that need
to take place/be resolved over the next six months is currently being developed by
this team to ensure that the transfer is timely and as smooth as possible.

14



Transfer of Connexions Service

19 Responsibility for funding for Information Advice and Guidance provision transferred
to Local Authorities across England in April 2008. Connexions Herefordshire and
Worcestershire as the local provider has continued to provide the remaining services
as an interim arrangement whilst the counties consulted upon the model for delivery
from April 2010. The recommendations outlined in the cabinet paper attached reflect

the need to move towards a more permanent arrangement once Cabinet approval
has been confirmed.

Community Impact
20 LSC Staffing Transfer and Transfer of Connexions Service
The Government’s long-term strategy for children is to make the UK the best place in
the world for children and young people to grow up. The changes in the current
delivery arrangements that Herefordshire Council are making will impact on the
whole of the County of Herefordshire by:
e placing 0-19 commissioning under the CYPD enabling local decision-making at
the right level;
e more fully integrate the commissioning of services and provision for young
people to support delivery of raising the participation age and access to the
14-19 entitlements;
o provide greater focus on strengthening the role of local authorities and

Children's Trusts as champions of young people; and
o provide greater impetus for implementing the Common Application Process.

Financial Implications
LSC Transfer

21 Not applicable as all funding will come direct from Government to support the
transfer.

Connexions Transfer

22 See Cabinet papers.

Legal Implications
LSC Transfer

23 The transfer is a statutory requirement.
Connexions Transfer

24 See Cabinet papers.

Risk Management

25 Consideration should be given to;

15



e LSC Staffing transfer: There is considerable expertise within the LSC to inform
the commissioning process, without integrating LSC staff during this transition
year Herefordshire Council runs the risk of falling behind the required timescales
for the commissioning process for 2010/ 11.

¢ Transfer of Connexions Service: Please see attached risk register within the
Cabinet report.

Consultees
26 Transfer of Connexions Service : See details of the Cabinet report.
Appendices

27 Herefordshire Council — Machinery of Government Update Briefing 4 June 2009
(updated 7" September 2009)

Background Papers

Cabinet Report of 10 September 2009: Connexions transfer and new delivery arrangements

16



Herefordshire m
Council Herefordshire

Working together for the people of Herefordshire

Appendix 1

Herefordshire Council

Machinery of Government Update Briefing
4 June 2009 — Updated September 7" 2009

Introduction

From April 2010, responsibility for securing sufficient education and training provision for
all young people, including those aged 16-19, and 19-25 year olds being assessed for a
learning difficulty and/or disability, as well as juveniles in custody will pass from the
Learning and Skills Council (LSC) to local authorities. In addition, the Young People’s
Learning Agency (YPLA) will be established as a Non-Departmental Public Body (NDPB)
to support local authorities discharge their planning and commissioning functions and to
ensure funding and budgetary control within the system.

Context for the changes

The Government’s long term strategy for children is to make the UK the best place in the
world for children and young people to grow up. The changes in the current delivery
arrangements that we are making will:

e place 0-19 commissioning under the leadership of local authorities enabling local
decision-making at the right level,

e more fully integrate the commissioning of services and provision for young
people to support delivery of raising the participation age and access to the 14-19
entitlements;

e provide greater focus on strengthening the role of local authorities and Children's
Trusts as champions of young people; and

e provide greater impetus for implementing the Common Application Process.

These changes need to be set alongside initiatives to improve learning routes and
support to integrate services for young people, and are crucial to the successful delivery
of the historic raising of the participation age to 17 by 2013 and 18 by 2015. The 16-19
transfer will put in place the infrastructure to enable every young person to access the
most individually appropriate, engaging and high quality provision - and will give local
authorities the tools they need to deliver the best outcomes for young people.

A diagram of the proposed structures is attached to this paper.

The role of local authorities

Local authorities are at the heart of the new network. Collaborative groupings at sub-
regional and regional level will be crucial to ensure that strategic planning and effective
commissioning decision making across areas is aligned and comprehensive.

Local authorities’ role as Strategic Planners will encompass:

e planning to meet local resident learning needs;

. planning to meet collective learning needs across travel to learn patterns (this
includes advocating for young people who travel across boundaries to learn to drive
up quality, retention and achievement);

. planning to take account of multi-stakeholder requirements — parents and carers,
employer, communities and partner agencies; and

17



. convening and supporting collaborative working through the Local Area
Agreements, Children’s Trusts and 14-19 Partnerships.

Their role as Lead Commissioners within sub-regional groupings (SRGs) will comprise:

e meeting the needs of all who learn in local authority areas through a sustainable
provider base (this includes learners with specific needs — e.g. Learners with
Learning Difficulties and/or Disabilities (LLDD) and young offenders);

e collaboratively agreeing learning required across travel to learn patterns by working
sub-regionally and regionally; and

o working with colleges and other providers as strategic planning partners and by
agreeing high quality provision through negotiation and dialogue.

In addition to the above they will have a crucial role to raise aspirations through:

. delivering raising the participation age, improving attainment targets for Level 2 and
3, and reducing the Not in Education, Employment or Training (NEET) cohort;

o effectively delivering Every Child Matters outcomes for all young people by joining
up services and leveraging the strategic commissioning role within Children’s
Trusts;

e managing the environment to enable transition throughout a learner’s journey; and

e managing the market and ensuring provider quality is maintained and raised for 16-
19 learning provision.

Local authorities already have considerable expertise and capacity in relation to their
wider commissioning role — for example in commissioning childcare places and targeted
youth support services. To enable local authorities to take on their new duties we intend
to transfer staff with the appropriate expertise, knowledge and skills to deliver. We will
also ensure that local authorities are supported through the developing role of the YPLA.

The staff transferring to each local authority will have been identified by the LSC as
discharging those functions that are transferring to the local authorities under the
Machinery of Government changes. Those functions are described in the draft local
authority Framework document that DCSF have developed with partners. The LSC have
used a set of role descriptions to identify those staff that match to those functions.

LSC staff will be working alongside local authority staff during the transition year 2009-
10, and transfer formally on 1 April 2010.

The precise organisation, structure and roles within local authorities from April 2010 is a
matter for the individual local authority, and so during this period we expect them to
clarify how individuals will be integrated into their existing teams. We would anticipate
that this will include discussion with the individuals involved. Contractual terms and
conditions are, of course, protected under the terms of the transfer.

The role of the YPLA

The YPLA will be a ‘behind the scenes’ slim line NDPB, with a fundamentally different
remit to the LSC. It will be principally a supporting and enabling body, designed to
support local authorities in fulfilling their new duties, individually and in SRGs and
Regional Planning Groups (RPGs). In particular the small number of YPLA staff based
in each region will provide regional planning and commissioning support, information,
advice, analysis and specialist expertise. The YPLA Board will have significant local
authority membership.

The YPLA'’s responsibilities will be to:

18



e ensure budgetary control of the £7 billion being transferred to local authorities to
enable them to carry out their new functions;

. provide a national commissioning framework to help local authorities commission
provision;

. promote consistency and simplicity in planning by providing a national statement of
priorities and developing and operating the national funding formula;

. provide strategic analysis services to support the planning and commissioning
process:

. provide data on participation, attainment and economic development in local, sub-
regional and regional areas;

e work with the RDAs and other regional partners to provide information on future
skills needs in an area for both young people and adults, as well as any other
economic and labour market intelligence;

. co-ordinate the support and provide secretariat services for the RPG;

. work with local authorities to support and facilitate the production of commissioning
plans at local, sub-regional and regional levels to ensure their coherence and fit
within the national budget.

e fund and performance manage open Academies on behalf of the Secretary of
State. Posts will transfer to the YPLA from the DCSF to undertake this work.
Whilst the precise arrangements are still to be worked through, it is clear that the
YPLA will be the best-placed organisation to bring that support and challenge linked
to the overall funding and commissioning process.

The role of Government Offices (GOs)

The transfer of funding from the LSC to local authorities means that there will be no
single line of accountability for the achievement of key participation, attainment and
Public Service Agreement (PSA) targets from provider through local, regional and
national structures. Additional posts in GOs will provide the necessary 16-19 learning
and commissioning expertise to ensure the best interests of young learners are at the
heart of the new performance management arrangements and that these arrangements
support local authorities in the delivery of the entitlement and attainment and NEET PSA
targets.

19



Key Implications for Herefordshire Council — updated 7" September 2009

1) Sub Regional Groupings

As part of these changes we are continuing to work with neighbouring Local Authorities
in a Sub Regional Grouping. The main driver for this is to ensure that learners who
cross authority boundaries to learn are able to access suitable provision. Herefordshire
have agreed to work with Worcestershire, Shropshire and Telford and the Wrekin in a
loose partnership; travel to learn patterns are low across all county boundaries, but there
are similarities between the make up of the authorities. The Sub Regional Grouping will
become an important body in negotiating local provision to meet the national and
regional budgets.

Sub Regional Groups were required to submit ‘stage 2’ proposals by the end of February
2009 which provided information regarding the groups plans in a range of areas such as
governance, collaboration and strategic contribution, resources and capacity, policy and
planning, quality and targets.

In response to this The Sub Regional Grouping has drafted a Memorandum of
Understanding and dispute resolution proposal as well as working to a live action plan to
ensure that we meet all required timescales.

There is currently one working part of the Sub Regional Group to specifically look at
Information, Advice and Guidance (IAG) to ensure that learners are able to access the
same information, wherever they live.

Information is yet to be provided which will clearly define the responsibilities that
must be completed by individual LA’s and those which can be delivered by a
‘shared’ service — clarification on this should be provided in the form of the
Commissioning Framework (Consultation period commences Autumn 2009)

2) Staffing Transfer
We have now been notified that we have 5 members of LSC staff transfering into the
Local Authority.

1 x Partnership Manager: Alexia Heath — Experience of contract with FE

3 x Partnership Advisor’s:  John Riley — ESF/ Capital Projects
Roger Fielder — Apprenticeships/ work based learning
Christine Sheppard - SRG

1 x Administrator: Suellen Holloway — Experienced administrator

In addition there is one further Band 3 (Partnership Manager) role vacant within the local
Authority.

The LSC have matched staff to these roles and LAs have had no influence on the
matching process; it has been conducted wholly within the LSC. Nevertheless for the
vacancy within Herefordshire that has not been filled by the matching process we should
receive a funding allocation instead of an individual.

It is intended that the new staff will sit within the Improvement and Inclusion Service Area

within 11-19 and Integrated Services. Any data officer’'s transferring will sit within the
Performance Planning Team. We will also have to make arrangements to support young

20



people with learning difficulties and disabilities. Once our initial staffing has been
determined, more detailed planning can take place.

The terms and conditions of employment for staff transferring from the LSC will be
protected for two years.

Further resources are expected for roles that are carried out regionally — Audit,
Contract, Finance, LDD and Health & Safety. Confirmation of this is awaited.

3) Timeline for changes

The Sub Regional Grouping has been meeting since November 2009. We are working
to a detailed action plan that will take us to April 2010. The summary timeline for activity
is as follows:

Date Activity

June — September | Draft Memorandum of Understanding and Dispute Resolution
2009 Policy and consult

July 2009 Receive initial indicative staffing numbers and posts and agree and
(Actual date | begin work shadowing processes.

received August | To Date: (7/9/09)

2009) Confirmed allocations received,

1 x Band 3 vacancy — Vacancy offered to LSC staff, no suitable
staff available, Vacancy still available.

Initial meetings set up with LSC partnership director

Rolling programme of monthly meetings with LSC partnership
director established

Introduction to the 14-19 Team (half day) by end of September
Comprehensive Induction programme currently being devised.

Summer 2009 | Review LSC commissioning framework, test commissioning
(date tbc once | scenarios to enable commissioning plan to be developed.
framework Framework not yet released, understanding is the framework
released) will be out for consultation October 2009 with a view to being
ready to use for 2011/2012

September 2009 | Continue to receive staffing allocations. Develop and agree the
staffing structure. Carry out gap analysis of knowledge and skills
transferring and plan accordingly

Set up an internal post-16 funding steering group

October 2009 Memorandum of Understanding Cabinet sign off

Agree arrangements for sharing information including data/transport
policies and other awards

Agree Protocols for impartial IAG

Establish contacts with neighbouring authorities outside of SRG

Work closely with LSC colleagues to commence the annual
commissioning cycle for 2010/2011

December 2009 Agree final staffing structure. Advertise vacancies if appropriate.

Agree provision requirements for vulnerable groups including those
with learning difficulties and/or disabilities.

January- March | Detailed work to take place with LSC to determine allocations.
2010 Discussions with Colleges, School Sixth Forms and providers

April 2010 Formal transfer of LSC staff

21




4) Connexions Service

Responsibility for funding for Information, Advice and Guidance (IAG) provision
transferred to Local Authorities across England in April 2008 and Connexions
Herefordshire and W orcestershire as the local provider has continued to provide
services to date. In April 2010 it is proposed that Connexions Herefordshire and
W orcestershire is taken in house in both Herefordshire and in Worcestershire
local authority areas.

IAG is high profile on government agenda, National IAG Quality Standards have
been produced a new bill is in place and new national guidelines are due out.

Local Authorities need to position Connexions services within the context of:

The reform of 14-19 learning

The 2005 Education and Skills W hite Paper

The 2007 Children’s Plan

Raising Expectations W hite Paper

2008 Next Steps 14-19 Update Paper

Post-16 funding transfer from the Learning and Skills Council (Machinery of
Government)

e The Raising of the Participation Age as set out in the Education and Skills
Act 2008

Wi ithin Children’s Services we are reconfiguring in order to be able to address the
range of existing, new and evolving challenges and demands placed upon us. The
plans for the development of the Connexions service are set within that agenda and
include the developing plans for the locality teams. A consultation on a proposed model
for service delivery of the Connexions service from April 2010 onwards will soon be
launched. Two recommendations emerged from the early work of the Connexions
Development Group — either to bring the service wholly in house or to bring the strategic
lead and associated services in house and to tender for the front line delivery. The
preferred option is the former. The Connexions Development Group is working to tight
timescales to ensure that the transfer is smooth; the planned cabinet discussion is 10
September 2009.

Conclusion

These changes are fundamental to the way that we will work in Children’s Services and
across the whole of our education provision, and commissioning provision is at the heart
of this. This is not simply a return of colleges to the Local Authority as some suggest,
and new and different relationships will need to be built for the benefit of learners both
now and in the future.

This process is fast moving, and there will be much more to report — an update briefing is
recommended in December.

Areas Requiring Further Clarification:

22



Herefordshire

Council
MEETING: CABINET
DATE: 10 SEPTEMBER 2009

TITLE OF REPORT: | CONNEXIONS TRANSFER AND NEW DELIVERY
ARRANGEMENTS

PORTFOLIO AREA: | CHILDREN SERVICES

CLASSIFICATION: Open
Wards Affected

County-wide

Purpose
To approve the transfer and new delivery arrangements (Appendix 1 and 2) for the Connexions range

of services and functions from Herefordshire and Worcestershire Connexions Company to
Herefordshire Council in April 2010.

Key Decision

This is a Key Decision because it is likely to be significant in terms of its effect on communities living
or working in Herefordshire in an area comprising one or more wards.

It was included in the Forward Plan.
Recommendations
THAT: the transfer and new delivery arrangements of the range of Connexions Services

from the Herefordshire and Worcestershire Connexions Company to
Herefordshire Council be approved.

Key Points Summary
e It is proposed that the Herefordshire elements of the Connexions service are brought into the
local authority and integrated within the reorganised Children’s and Young People’s
Directorate;
e Connexions staff will sit across three service areas:
o Strategic leadership and quality assurance and Information, Advice and Guidance (IAG)
functions will come from the Improvement and Inclusion Service area with input from

Community Operations;

e The IAG service area will sit within Improvement and Inclusion;

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Kathy Roberts Assistant Director, Improvement and Inclusion (01432) 26 0804

Connexions Transfer and New Delivery Arrangements 26Nov08



The targeted service will sit within Community Operations;

Data and performance management requirements will be integrated in to the Planning,
Performance and Development service area.

Alternative Options

To bring the strategic lead and associated services in house and to tender for the front line

delivery. This could have included greater delegation of elements of delivery to schools, colleges and
work based learning providers. This option was rejected because it places us out of line with our
regional partners and would reduce our ability to deliver creative service improvements.

Reason for Recommendations

2

The proposed arrangements will improve both service delivery and outcomes for young people
within the emerging new organisation structure for Children and Young People’s Directorate
and the current financial climate.

The new arrangements further develop and deliver our practices in response to government
expectations.

Introduction and Background

4

Strategies emerging from national, regional and local governments indicate a requirement to
develop an integrated youth support policy which encompasses all aspect of business aimed
at supporting young people between the ages of 11-19.

The Children’s and Young People’s Directorate is restructuring in order to address the range
of existing, new and evolving challenges and demands placed upon it. The plans for the
development of the Connexions service are set within that agenda and include the plans for
the locality teams and the aims of the Herefordshire Public Services.

The Connexions Service works across Herefordshire and Worcestershire currently operates
as an independent company and provides a range of support and activity for young people
primarily aged 14+. Such provision is purchased by the Local Authority though grant funding.

In response to central government legislation regarding the Machinery of Government
requirements for April 2010 a Task Group was established to consider the implication for
Herefordshire Council. The significant changes for the Connexions service will be: the transfer
of the duties and resources of the Learning and Skills Council (which currently supports and
funds provision and placement for young people aged 16+) and is scheduled to become part
of the Local Authority from April 2010.

This decision is required now so that timely preparations can be made for Connexions to be
efficiently transferred to the local authority on 1% April 2010. Similar arrangements are being
made in Worcestershire.

Key Considerations

9

It is proposed that the Herefordshire elements of the Connexions service are brought into the
Local Authority and integrated within the reorganised Children and Young People’s
Directorate. Connexions staff will sit across three service areas; strategic leadership and
quality assurance and IAG functions will come from the Improvement and Inclusion Service
area with input from Community Operations. The Information, Advice and Guidance (IAG)



service area will sit within Improvement and Inclusion where it can maintain independence.
The targeted service will sit within Community Operations and is an excellent example of
where front-line locality team support should work effectively. Finally the significant data and
performance management requirements will be integrated in to the Planning, Performance
and Development service area, which will improve efficiency of data collection and analysis for
the Children’s Trust. Staff will be managed and supervised by appropriately qualified staff.

10 Responsibility for funding for Information, Advice and Guidance (IAG) provision transferred to
Local Authorities across England in April 2008 and Connexions Herefordshire and
Worcestershire as the local provider has continued to provide services to date as an interim
arrangement.

11 IAG is high profile on the government agenda, National IAG Quality Standards have been
produced, a new bill is in place and new national guidelines are due in September 2009. Local
Authorities need to position Connexions services within the context of:

The reform of 14-19 learning;

The 2005 Education and Skills White Paper;

The 2007 Children’s Plan;

Raising Expectations White Paper;

2008 Next Steps 14-19 Update Paper;

Post-16 funding transfer from the Learning and Skills Council (Machinery of Government);
The Raising of the Participation Age as set out in the Education and Skills Act 2008;
Building 21% Century Schools — ‘Your Child, Your Schools, Our Future’ White Paper June
2009.

12 The Connexions service must be available for all young people 13-19" and up to 25 for young
people with learning difficulties and disabilities including those young people placed in county
by other Local Authorities. In Herefordshire this is approx 15,6007 total young people.

13 The current arrangements have ensured that Herefordshire is making good progress in many
areas and we are proud of our current achievements:

e The number of young people not in employment, education or training (NEET) has
historically been low;

e The number of young people whose current learning destination is unknown is low;

¢ Participation in education post-16 is high and there are defined arrangements for those
who drop out;

e Targeted work is improving outcomes for more vulnerable young people.

! Although in Herefordshire our strategy is for 11-19 year olds
2 Source: Office of National Statistics



The ongoing challenges are:

Increased emphasis and focus on impartial Information, Advice and Guidance and the
importance of ensuring the best outcomes for each individual;

Not to allow our NEET figures to ‘plateau’;

To ensure best use of resources and capacity to deliver the full range of Connexions
services, through an integrated approach;

To implement the changes brought through the Machinery of Government Transfer of post-
16 funding, increased responsibilities around 14-19 and the Integrated Youth Support
agenda;

The development of school curricula (which has reformed Key Stage 4 learning, and
placed different requirements onto Key Stage 3) has highlighted the need for impartial
advice and guidance to assist learners in year 9 and below to negotiate the options
process and understand the collaborative courses and alternative pathways that are
available for them to access at institutions throughout the County in key stage 4 (year 10);
The continual need to demonstrate value for money, while maintaining current Personal
Advisor time, in an arena of increasing demands on reducing funding sources.

14 Staffing - Herefordshire Connexions staff have been identified for transfer into Herefordshire
Council. There are a small number of Head Office staff who have not been identified to
transfer as their work is not predominantly on the Herefordshire Connexions contract, these
functions will be examined and allocated to local authority staff if required. Dialogue with staff
is taking place about issues to do with transfer: job roles, terms and conditions, working hours
and pay, and a formal consultation period will take place with Connexions HR and Unison.

Community Impact

15 Schools have indicated clearly that they want to keep their Personal Advisors (PA) roles,
functions and input to remain unchanged and this should be maintained as a priority part of
the holistic school community resource for young people.

16 Young people have clearly indicated that the Connexions brand and city centre building should
be maintained. The arrangements for transfer or disposal of capital assets is being discussed
with Worcestershire County Council and Connexions in line with DCSF advice,

17 IAG advisors must have strong links with specialist training providers who can provide
occupational careers advice and have a good knowledge of local employment sectors and
links with employers.

Financial Implications

18 The service is currently funded through the Area Based Grant and we know indicative
budgets between now and April 2011, although the actual amounts are to be ratified through
with the Children’s Trust. Detailed budget plans are being discussed with Connexions.
Through economies of scale and reducing duplication of service delivery we intend to achieve
the challenges, priorities and new ways of working identified at the start of the document, while
maintaining frontline delivery within the available budget.

08/09 £1,548,216
09/10 £1,470,000

10/11 £1,394,000



It is clear from these figures that the funding available to the Local Authority will reduce in
2010/11. If the funding continues to fall by -5% in future years then the Connexions service will
have to be downsized to continue to deliver services within a reduced budget allocation.

Connexions current budget in 2009/10 is set out below. The final column provides an estimate
of the required budget for 2010/11 after adding pay inflation at 1% and adjusting for private
company accounting practices that differ from the council.

2009/10 2010/11
Connexions Herefordshire Budget Assumptions
Budget Council indicative
budget
Income from Area Based Grant -1.469,703 -1,394,246 ABG income only
Other income -8,038 0
Total Income -1,477,741 -1,394,246
Personal Advisors 891,048 899,958 +1% pay inflation
Other Delivery Staff 30,684 30,991 +1% pay inflation
Other staff — managers & admin 222,300 224,523 +1% pay inflation
Premises Costs 40,964 49,277 +2.5% price inflation
Administration Costs 34,760 34,696 +2.5% price inflation
Office equipment & other assets 38,000 Treated as capital by
Connexions
Travel 22,200 22,755 | This may reduce in future
with less need to travel
to/from Worcester
Re-allocated head Office charges 251,109 77,667 | Assume previous spend on
ICT and data.
Total Expenditure 1,493,065 1,377,868
Loss/Profit on Herefordshire (15,324) 16,378
contract
Capital - Office Equipment 15,731 0 Incl as revenue
Capital - Other Assets 21,359 0 Incl as revenue
Other Connexions Contracts 263,587 Different arrangements for

funded from income — mostly from
Herefordshire Council

these contracts may apply
in 10/11.




19 Liabilities

20 The Council is still waiting for final TUPE transfer list of staff and salary costs; however an
indicative budget has been prepared on the basis of a 1% pay increase in line with council
staff, for all current Connexions staff that transfer. The assumption is that few, if any
Connexions Head Office staff are eligible for TUPE transfer. It is also important to note that
existing Connexions salaries are not comparable with Herefordshire “HC” rates as the rates of
pay are higher within the Connexions Service.

21 The existing and deferred pension liabilities will be transferred to Herefordshire Council and
Worcestershire Council. The specific percentage split will be the subject of further discussion
between the two bodies; however they are in agreement to act as guarantor for this element.

22 Compensatory Added Years are not liabilities of the Fund, but must be met £ for £ by the
employer concerned. Should there be any of these payments, either already in place or arising
from actions between now and the end of March 2010 then full payment will need to be made
by Connexions to the fund.

23 Connexions employees are a part of the Worcestershire Local Government Pension Fund as
are Herefordshire Council staff. Any staff moving across to the Local Authority would remain in
the same pension fund. No pension deficit would capitalise at this time. Any identified share of
such a deficit would transfer to Herefordshire Council and be added to any pension deficit
already in place with Worcestershire LGPS.

24 Current Connexions Board — the company is limited by guarantee with no share capital. The
members of the company have each agreed to contribute £1.00 to the assets of the company
in the likelihood of its being wound up. There is no liability on Herefordshire Council for any
debts of the Herefordshire and Worcestershire Connexions Company.

25 Accommodation — Herefordshire Council is committed to locality working across the Children’s
and Young People’s Directorate and the accommodation that will be required is being
reviewed. The Connexions Building is based in the centre of Hereford and is currently owned
by the Herefordshire and Worcestershire Connexions company. It has a high footfall and is
well known by learners. The future ownership of the building is not yet clear and legal advice
is being sought.

Legal Implications

26 The proposal is consistent with legislation and guidance terms.

27 TUPE transfer into the Local Authority employment is a regulated process which will be
implemented in all cases.

28 Legal services are currently advising regarding the redistribution of assets of the Connexions
Company including the lease associated with the accommodation.

Risk Management

a. The Connexions Service has significant data tracking, reporting and analysis
requirements as part of its national specification, quality and performance management
arrangements. It uses a significant amount of ICT and software to complete these
functions. Full or partial loss of these services would significantly hamper service
delivery, credibility and performance. Early discussion have already taken place with
the corporate ICT department and the new ECM systems ICT manager within
Children’s Services and has been placed on the Directorate ICT plan for quarter 3



2009/10.

b. The loss of the Connexions building in St Peters Square Hereford would hamper
service delivery in the short term as it is well known and has a high footfall; we are
seeking clarification on the ownership of the building as part of the winding up of the
Connexions Herefordshire and Worcestershire Company.

Consultees

29 A consultation took place between 29" June and 19" August 2009 and was aimed at
stakeholders who have an interest in the Connexions and associated services. Stakeholders
were divided into three groups: service users, professional groups, and the wider community.
A range of different approaches have been taken to make groups aware of the proposed
changes and are able to contribute to the consultation, these have included focus groups,
attendance at strategic meetings, and included posting the consultation documents to all
named key stakeholders as well as placing the consultation on Herefordshire Council
Consultation pages of the website. (Appendix 3)

30 Key messages from the Consultation:
a. Maintain existing delivery and service
b. Impartiality of advice and guidance

c. Efficiency savings should release resources to support an extended workload as the
Connexions remit is extended downwards to Year 7 and upwards to 19+.

d. The need to create the distinction between the functions of commissioning and
provision, particularly with regard to students with LLDD (Learners with Learning
Difficulties).

e. Maintain the current city centre building and the Connexions brand

31 Of 13 responses 3 expressed concern with the placement of LLDD within the Additional Needs
Service of Improvement and Inclusion. The concern related to the operational delivery of
services for LLDD sitting within the potential commissioners of such services. However, the
Additional Needs Service will deliver strategy and quality assurance for all services and
provision delivery for children and young people with additional needs. The strategy aims to
pull all such providers under the one area in order to ensure consistency, quality assurance
and equity of access for all. With LLDD sitting outside of this framework there is a potential for
a lack of consistency and management of these issues. The recommendation is therefore to
retain LLDD within the Additional Needs Service.

Appendices

32 Appendix 1 — Herefordshire is Making Connexions April 2010 Consultation Paper
33 Appendix 2 — Herefordshire is Making Connexions April 2010 Supporting Information
34 Appendix 3 — Connexions Consultation Summary

Background Papers

35 Consultation responses

36 Young People’s responses to consultation






5 Herefordshire !L‘ZZE

Council Herefordshire

Children and Young People’s
Directorate

connexions

Herefordshire is Making Connexions
April 2010

Consultation Paper
June 2009

‘Making a positive difference to the lives of children and young people’



Introduction

Herefordshire Council is reconfiguring the Children’s and Young People’s Directorate in order
to address the range of existing, new and evolving challenges and demands placed upon us.
The plans for the development of the Connexions service are set within that agenda and
include the developing plans for the locality teams and the aims of the Herefordshire Public
Services, which are:

Improved outcomes

Excellent Services

More focus on customer experience

Efficiency

This paper sets out a proposed model for service delivery of the Connexions service from
April 2010 onwards.

Responsibility for funding for Information, Advice and Guidance (IAG) provision transferred to
Local Authorities across England in Aprii 2008 and Connexions Herefordshire and
Worcestershire as the local provider has continued to provide services to date. In April 2010
it is proposed that Connexions Herefordshire and Worcestershire is taken in house in both
Herefordshire and in Worcestershire local authority areas.

IAG is high profile on the government agenda, National IAG Quality Standards have been
produced, a new bill is in place and new national guidelines are due out.

Local Authorities need to position Connexions services within the context of:

The reform of 14-19 learning

The 2005 Education and Skills White Paper

The 2007 Children’s Plan

Raising Expectations White Paper

2008 Next Steps 14-19 Update Paper

Post-16 funding transfer from the Learning and Skills Council (Machinery of
Government)

¢ The Raising of the Participation Age as set out in the Education and Skills Act 2008

e 21% Century Schools

A further information paper is available to accompany this document and a glossary of terms
is provided at Appendix A

What are we consulting on?
Herefordshire Council is seeking to consult on:

1. The future management and delivery arrangements for the range of services currently
delivered by Connexions;

2. The priorities for service delivery and outcomes for the new arrangements (within the
constraints of the national specification and statutory duties).

‘Making a positive difference to the lives of children and young people’



Who is this consultation aimed at?

This consultation is aimed at a wide stakeholder group of those who have an interest in the
development of Information, Advice and Guidance and Targeted Services in the county.
Stakeholders have been divided into three groups:

1. Service users

All young people aged 11 -19 years

Those aged 20 -24 with Learning Difficulties
Specifically young people who are NEET
And, specifically young people in Transition

2. Professional Groups

Connexions staff

Children’s and Young People’s Directorate staff

Secondary Schools — including governing bodies and Herefordshire Association
of Governors

Colleges

Independent Schools

Learning and Skills Council

LSC funded work based learning providers and other training providers
Private care providers

Children’s Interest Group

NHS Herefordshire

Government Office for the West Midlands

Chamber of Commerce

Cabinet and Councillor Members

Children’s Trust including all 5 outcome groups

Targeted Youth Support Services

Adult Services

3. Wider Community

Parents and Carers
Businesses and employers
Faith Groups

The Third Sector

Young people have been consulted through the Every Child Matters Survey in February 2009
and will also be invited to take part in specific focus groups. Connexions staff will be
consulted through a discrete consultation that is appropriate for employees who are going
through a TUPE process. 14-19 Consortium will be formally consulted on through this paper
as will schools and colleges through their established meetings. Employers will be consulted
through the Chamber of Commerce representative who sits on the 14-19 Consortium.
Cabinet and Members briefing will be arranged prior to any decision making process that will
be part of a key decision.

‘Making a positive difference to the lives of children and young people’



What is the process?

Consultation questions form part of this document, which we would ask you to consider and
return. The consultation period will run from Monday 29 June until Wednesday 19 August
2009. A report will be produced within three months of the consultation closing. A timescale
for consultations and implementation is detailed later in this paper.

What is the vision?

Our Children & Young Peoples Plan 2008 — 2011 sets out our vision to improve the lives of

children and young people by creating and implementing an integrated set of services.

e We will use the transfer of the Connexions service as an opportunity to enhance and
improve the service currently delivered to the young people of Herefordshire.

e We want to hear from young people and other key stakeholders to help us determine the
priorities for service delivery and how the Connexions service will work in partnership
with other organisations to provide the right support to young people.

e We want to develop the Connexions service as part of the wider plans for locality teams

Two recommendations emerged from the early work of the Connexions Development Group
e Option a: to bring the service wholly in house.
e Option b: to bring the strategic lead and associated services in house and to tender for
the front line delivery.
The preferred and recommended option is option A. This brings us in line with our regional
partners and allows for greater creativity and improvements in delivery.

We need to consider the non-negotiable targets, statutory legislation and specified non-
statutory targets as we plan the service that we will deliver (see supporting information for
detail).

Consultation Question 1: Do you agree with the vision of the proposed
changes?

Strongly agree / Agree / Disagree / Strongly disagree

Comments:

‘Making a positive difference to the lives of children and young people’



What are the priorities and objectives for service delivery?

The Connexions service must be available for all young people 13-19" and up to 25 for
young people with learning difficulties and disabilities including those young people placed in
county by other Local Authorities. In Herefordshire this is approx 15,6007 total young people.

The current arrangements have ensured that we are making good progress in many areas,
and we need to build on this. We are proud of our current achievements:

The number of young people not in employment, education or training (NEET) has
historically been low;

The number of young people whose current learning destination is unknown is low;
Participation in education post-16 is high and there are defined arrangements for
those who drop out;

Targeted work is improving outcomes for more vulnerable young people.

The ongoing challenges are:

Increased emphasis and focus on impartial Information, Advice and Guidance and the
importance of ensuring the best outcomes for each individual;

To ensure best use of resources and capacity to deliver the full range of Connexions
services, through an integrated approach;

To implement the changes brought through the Machinery of Government Transfer of
post-16 funding, increased responsibilities around 14-19 and the Integrated Youth
Support agenda;

The development of school curricula, which has reformed Key Stage 4 learning and
placed different requirements onto Key Stage 3;

The continual need to demonstrate value for money, while maintaining current
Personal Advisor time, in an arena of increasing demands on limited funding sources.

In Autumn 2008 all schools, colleges and training providers were assessed against the
National Standards for IAG. Some specific additional requirements have been identified and
we have built up a comprehensive picture of what else needs to be done. Such requirements
include:

Support and training to schools and colleges and post 16 providers in relation to
Careers Education and IAG;

More work with learners at Key Stage 3 and below to ensure that learners have the
skills they need to make their own decisions as part of our transformation from 14-19
to an 11-19 service;

More work at Key Stage 5 to ensure young people make the right choices;

More support for learners who are undertaking an apprenticeship;

More support for young people aged 11-25 who require additional support to access
post-16 learning. This includes carrying out statutory reviews, Section 139a
assessments (formerly known as Section 140 assessments) and applications for out of
county residential placements;

Work with young people placed by other local authorities in residential schools and
care homes in Herefordshire and work with Herefordshire students placed outside
Herefordshire;

! Although in Herefordshire our strategy is for 11-19 year olds
% Source: Office of National Statistics

‘Making a positive difference to the lives of children and young people’



¢ New requirements for work with Jobcentre Plus on New Deal for some 18 year olds;

e Successful ongoing implementation of the September Guarantee;

e Improved data analysis and evidence and research gathering to ensure the right
provision is commissioned.

We need to consider all of this in a new light to make sure that we take a strategic integrated
approach to the future of Connexions services in the context in which we are working.

Consultation Question 2: Do you agree with priorities and objectives?
Strongly agree / Agree / Disagree / Strongly disagree

Comments:

Proposals for Service Delivery from April 2010

It is proposed that the service is brought in house and integrated within the reorganised
Children’s and Young People’s Directorate. Staff will be transferred into Herefordshire
Council and sit across three service areas. Strategic leadership and quality assurance
functions will come from the Improvement and Inclusion Service area as well as Community
Operations. The IAG service area will sit within Improvement and Inclusion where it can
maintain independence from targeted delivery work. The targeted service is an excellent
example of where front-line locality team support should work effectively. Staff will be
managed and supervised by appropriately qualified staff.

‘Making a positive difference to the lives of children and young people’



A diagram of the proposed Local Authority structure is shown.

Director of
Children’s Services

1 1 1 1
Assistant Director Assistant Director Assistant plrector Assistant Director
3 Planning, .
Improvement & Community Performance & Safeguarding &
Inclusion Operations Vulnerable Children

Development

4 N 4 N
Head of Head of Head of Service Manager
Additional Needs J Development Performance (AReferraI antc; -
ssessmen
\_ J . /

4 N 4 N
Head of Data Service Manager
Localities (Fieldwork) -

LDD
Specialist
Team

- J - J
4 ) Targeted 4 Service Manager h
Head of Services _Head of (Safeguarding and | _|
Improvement Team Children’s Trust Looked After
S ) L Children) )

( ) Advisors Workforce
Head of Development
11-19

Integrated Services

Head of
IAG Team Access, Capital
Commissioning and

Planning

Information

Services
Taam

‘Making a positive difference to the lives of children and young people’



Detailed information of the functions of each service is available in the supporting
information. The number of posts in each team remains to be established. Connexions PAs
will retain their name. There will be administrative support for all sections as appropriate.

Consultation Question 3: Do you think the overall delivery model with a
separate IAG service and targeted work in locality teams is appropriate?

Strongly agree / Agree / Disagree / Strongly disagree

Comments:

Consultation Question 4: What do you value from the current Connexions
Service?

Comments:

‘Making a positive difference to the lives of children and young people’



Consultation Question 5: What else would you like the Connexions service to
deliver?

Comments:

Consultation Question 6: How might Connexions contribute to Key Stage 3
as part of an integrated 11-19 Strategy?

Comments:

‘Making a positive difference to the lives of children and young people’




Managing the change

A Connexions Development Group has been in place since October 2008, charged with the
business of establishing how the service will look from April 2010. Membership includes the
Children’s and Young People’s Directorate, Local Authority HR and Finance, Connexions and
Schools and Colleges who feedback and gather views from colleagues. We would now like
to consult with all partners on the proposals, including young people.

Staffing - All Connexions Herefordshire staff have been identified for transfer into
Herefordshire Council. There are a small number of Head Office staff who have not been
identified to transfer as their work is not predominantly on the Herefordshire Connexions
contract. We will identify who will carry out their functions. Dialogue with staff is taking place
about issues to do with transfer: job roles, terms and conditions, working hours and pay, and
a formal consultation period will take place with Connexions HR and Unison. The Local
Authority HR Team is carrying out detailed analysis and comparisons of posts. There will be
changes to ways of working and for some staff the move to the Local Authority will be a big
change. We will manage this through open communication channels with transferees and by
using the time between now and April 2010 as an opportunity for directorate staff and
Connexions staff to start to work more closely together.

Finance - The service is currently funded through the Council’'s Area Based Grant and we
know indicative budgets between now and April 2011, although the actual amounts are to be
ratified through the Area Based Grant processes with the Children’s Trust. Detailed costings
and estimates are being considered. Through economies of scale and reducing duplication of
service delivery we intend to achieve the challenges, priorities and new ways of working
identified at the start of the document, while maintaining frontline delivery.

Accommodation — We are exploring locality working across the Children’s and Young
People’s Directorate, and the accommodation that will be required. The Connexions Building
is based in the centre of Hereford and is currently owned by the Herefordshire and
Worcestershire Connexions company. It has a high footfall and is well known by learners.
Herefordshire’s vision is to further develop Connexions accommodation in the heart of the
city and localities.

‘Making a positive difference to the lives of children and young people’
10



We are now inviting responses to this consultation document, the timeline for the transfer is
as follows:

Month Date | Activity
June 2009 18 | ¢ Development Group Meeting
29 | ¢ Consultation Begins
July 2 | e« 14-19 Consortium Board meeting
20 | ¢ Development Group meeting
August 5 | ¢ DLT update on responses to date
19 | ¢ Consultation Closes
24 | ¢« Development Group meeting
25 | e DLT Approval
27 | o Chief Executive Approval
e Changes to proposals based on consultation results
September 10 | ¢ Cabinet meeting for approval of key decision
21 | ¢« Development Group meeting
October e Ongoing development
November o Final staffing transfer lists agreed
December o Transfer of Data from Connexions for 3 month shadow before go
live
e Recruitment to staff vacancies
January 2010 e |ocality teams implementation
February e Ongoing development
March e Ongoing development
April 1 | ¢ Connexions staff formally transfer to the Local Authority

Consultation Question 7: Have you any other ideas or comments you would
like to make about the proposals?

Comments:

‘Making a positive difference to the lives of children and young people’
11




Appendix A: Glossary of Terms

EET

HR

IAG

LLDD

LSC

PA

PRUs

NEET

in employment, education or training

Human Resources (sometimes called Personnel)
Information, Advice and Guidance

Learners with Learning Difficulties and Disabilities

Learning and Skills Council (the body which plans and funds post-16 education
until April 2010

Connexions Personal Advisor
Pupil Referral Units

Not in employment, education or training

Section 139a Assessment Transition assessment for young people who have been identified

TUPE

UNISON

WBL

as requiring extra support

The Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations (the
protection arrangements for employees’ terms and conditions when a business
is transferred to a new employer)

A public sector union

LSC funded work based learning providers

Please return to this form by 10am on Wednesday 19" August 2009 to:

Anne Hayde, Herefordshire Council, PO Box 4, Plough Lane, Hereford, HR4 0XH

or email to ahayde@herefordshire.gov.uk

‘Making a positive difference to the lives of children and young people’
12



5 Herefordshire !L‘ZZE

Council Herefordshire

Children and Young People’s
Directorate

connexions

Herefordshire is Making Connexions
April 2010

Supporting Information
June 2009

‘Making a positive difference to the lives of children and young people’



Introduction

This paper accompanies the document entitted Connexions Service April 2010 -
Consultation Document and provides some background information which may be useful in
responding to the consultation.

The paper is divided into three sections:
1. Targets, statutory legislation and specified non-statutory requirements
2. Detail of the different functions of the Connexions service

3. How the service is currently delivered

Section 1: Targets, statutory legislation and specified non-statutory
requirements

Targets
1) Reducing the proportion of 16-18 year olds not in Education, Employment or Training
(NEET) in 2010/11 t0 4.7%

2) In partnership with Schools, LSC and other Children’s Services:

Increasing the proportion of 19 year olds achieving level 2;

Reducing the under 18 conception rates;

Increasing the percentage of young mothers in EET;

Improving levels of school attendance and attainment pre 16;

Reducing the use of Class A and other illicit drugs in young people under 25;
Reducing the numbers of 16-18 year olds unknown;

Increasing the % of 16-18 year olds in learning.

Statutory Legislation

e Section 8, Employment and training Act 1973, Amended under Trade Union Reform
and Employment Rights 1993 (Careers Education and Guidance);

e Section 114, Learning & Skills Act 2000 (Encouraging people in education and
training);

e Section 140, Learning & Skills Act 2000 (Assessment to support transition for young
people with LDD);

e The Education and Skills Act 2008;

e Section 6 of the Education and Skills Act 2006;

e The Apprenticeship and Skills Children and Learning Bill 2009.

Specified non statutory requirements
e The maintenance of the Client Caseload Information System for the management and
tracking of young people 13-19 and up to 25 for those with LDD;
e The provision of specific information regarding Benefits Liaison;
e The provision of information relating to financial support for young people EMA, Care
to Learn and support through applications.

‘Making a positive difference to the lives of children and young people’



Section 2: Detail of the different functions of the proposed Connexions
service

The Universal Careers Education and IAG Service will include support for the schools,
colleges and training providers. This will range from Key Stage 3 to Key Stage 5, although
the focus will remain on the transition at the end of Key Stage 4. Some work may also take
place with Primary Schools as a way to prepare learners and give them the skills required to
make the right choices later on. PAs will remain linked to an institution and there will continue
to be negotiation around priorities. Universal PAs will be impartial, have high levels of
expertise and knowledge around opportunities for education and training as well as of the
changing face of the qualification system, Higher Education and the employment
opportunities both locally and further afield. They will have a keen eye on ensuring that
participation in post-16 education and training continues to rise.

PAs will both run group sessions and conduct one to one meetings with learners. They will
complete action plans as appropriate. They will carry out Section 139a assessments for
learners who require additional support.

The LLDD Support Team will support Special Schools, Pupil Referral Units as well those
young people who are in mainstream schools who have complex needs. They will also
support young people from other local authority areas placed into care establishments in
Herefordshire and for any Herefordshire young people who are placed out of county. They
will lead on the assessments for out of county residential placements. They will also be
responsible for those with LDD who are NEET.

The Information Services Team will be a small team and will be responsible for the
production of appropriate information materials. This will include publications for young
people, parents, carers and families as well as materials for schools, colleges, training
providers and employers. They will also manage the website and ensure that it is up to date,
relevant and appropriate. There will be some overlap between this team and current
functions in the 14-19 Team, in particular to do with the Youthzone website which houses the
14-19 Prospectus and Online Applications (the Common Application Process system). There
will be an opportunity for an enhanced strategy in this area and clarification for young people
of what information is found where.

The Targeted Support Services will be based within the new locality teams. These PAs will
be responsible for working with those young people in schools and colleges who have
additional support needs. The PAs will carry out and support CAF assessments, multi-agency
working and other requirements of the Targeted Youth Support Agenda. They will work with
the NEETs who have the most acute needs and who are not ready to be placed in education,
employment or training. The service will be available to young people at risk of disengaging
or failing to progress as part of the overall Integrated Youth Support Strategy.

‘Making a positive difference to the lives of children and young people’



Other key areas:

Workforce Development will be a key function in the new structure. It will sit with the rest of
the Workforce Strategy team within the Children’s Trust. There is a requirement for all PAs to
be trained to a minimum Level 4 and there is a range of appropriate qualifications — examples
include Post Graduate Diploma in Careers Guidance, Qualification in Careers Guidance,
LDSS, and NVQ4 Advice and Guidance. The Workforce team will ensure that all staff are
qualified at the right level. All staff will need to undergo annual assessments against national
standards and an ongoing programme of professional development will be put in place,
including the enhanced requirements for trainee PAs

Data Coordination will be led by Performance Team. The requirements are extensive and
fundamental to the smooth operation of the service. Every 13-25 year old is entered on the
electronic case management system (CCIS). For each contact with a learner this must be
logged and all young people are tracked at all times. There is a particular emphasis for 16-19
year olds and the system flags up all young people at intervals ranging from 3 months to 12
months and requires a further destination to be identified or confirmed. PAs are responsible
for ensuring their caseload is correctly represented on the system. This system provides a
wealth of detail which is submitted to the DCSF monthly electronically, and which can be
used locally for analysis of trends and of need. As well as high level data analysis there will
be a requirement for support for the CCIS system and for training for PAs. This function will
be carried out within the Performance Team.

Marketing, Publicity and Public Relations — there will be opportunities to celebrate learner
achievement and progress and to raise the profile of the Local Authority. This will take place
through existing channels of sharing good news including Local Authority publications and
through the press and online media. There is a national requirement to retain the Connexions
brand, and locally we are happy to do so as it has a positive association for learners and is
well recognised. We will ensure the branding also reflects that Connexions is part of the
Local Authority.

Record Management — each young person receiving guidance will have an up to date and
relevant Action Plan. In addition to this every contact is logged electronically on CCIS. For
many young people this will be supplemented by other information held in a paper based
record. This will be kept securely.

Other services — Connexions also provides a number of other services. These are being
reviewed to determine where they will be delivered in the future.

Info Box: What is Information, Advice and Guidance?
Information, Advice and Guidance (IAG) is an important element of the Integrated Youth
Support Service and young people’s Personal, Social and Health and Emotional and Well
Being. The term IAG is widely used, and in the context of Careers Education, Information,
Advice and Guidance (CEIAG) involves:
e Careers Education provided by tutors, learning providers, teachers and lecturers.
e Careers Information provided by schools, college and work based learning staff,
youth support workers and Connexions staff
e Advice and Initial Guidance provided by school, college and work based learning staff,
youth support worker and Personal Advisers
e In depth Impartial and Specialist guidance provided by Connexions and specialist
agency staff
CEIAG in Herefordshire schools, colleges and work based learning provision is configured in a
range of ways with responsibility at a variety of levels e.g. at curriculum or deputy head level, or
careers teacher or work experience coordinator level.



Section 3: How the service is currently delivered

Current delivery is based on the outcomes specified in the contract between Herefordshire
Council and the Connexions service. These relate to the statutory requirements and targets
detailed previously.

There are currently 31 institutions eligible for Connexions Services. Partnership agreements
are in place and these outline the respective roles, responsibilities and contributions of each
partner. Each institution is allocated a number of days based on a formula.

There are currently two teams of Connexions Personal Advisers (PAs) with a Team Manager
and a small number of senior PAs. Teams are based on three locality areas: city, south and
north. One team supports learners who are in education, employment or training (EET), and
the other supports those who are NEET. In addition to this there are a number of other
services provided by Connexions. The teams are:

1. EET Team

EET PAs are based in schools and colleges, special schools and Pupil Referral Units
(PRUs). PAs will commonly work across 2 or 3 institutions. PAs have a mixed caseload
of providing the universal service and targeted support. The nature of targeted work may
differ within institutions and is dependant on the pastoral systems and processes within
each school or college. PAs are expected to work with senior members of staff
responsible for curriculum and pastoral welfare in addition to heads of years, SENCOs,
careers teachers, tutors and work related learning coordinators.

In mainstream schools PAs will also undertake work with statemented students and those
with learning difficulties and/or difficulties (LDD) and are supported by Special Needs PAs
who work with complex cases in mainstream schools and young people in special schools
or units within mainstream schools/colleges. Special Needs PA’s undertake complex
casework and support the young person and their family/carers including in the
preparation of applications for out-of-county residential placements. All staff will undertake
Section 139a (previously 140) Assessments.

2. NEET Team
PAs working in NEET (not in education, employment or training) teams have a varied
caseload ranging from those young people ready for placing, to those requiring intensive
long term support, plus young people who are on pre-vocational learning.

Each training provider has a link PA and NEET PAs provide a duty service to the main
centre and to the outreach facilities in Ross, Ledbury and Leominster.

3. Other Services
Central services are currently based in Worcester at the Head Office, and as well as HR,
Training and Finance include provision of data and information services including the
website and other printed materials.

‘Making a positive difference to the lives of children and young people’






CONNEXIONS CONSULTATION SUMMARY

Herefordshire is reconfiguring the Children’s and Young People’s Directorate in order to
address the range of existing, new and evolving challenges and demands placed upon us.
The plans for the development of the Connexions service are set within that agenda and
include the developing plans for the locality teams and the aims of the Herefordshire Public
Services, which are:

e Improved outcomes

o Excellent Services

e More focus on customer experience
o Efficiency

Herefordshire Council is seeking to consult on:

e The future management and delivery arrangements for the range of services
currently delivered by Connexions;

e The priorities for service delivery and outcomes for the new arrangements (within the
constraints of the national specification and statutory duties).

This paper outlines a summary of comments relative to the consultation.

1. Do you agree with the vision of the proposed changes?

7 | Strongly Agree
3 | Agree
2 | Disagree
0 | Strongly Disagree
Comments:
CC-RP 001 | A It will more readily facilitate the integration of tier 2 (targeted services) across
Children’s Services.
CC-RP 003 | A | think it is important that services that impact a young people adopt a joined up
approach
CC-RP 006 | SA | The ability to direct Connexions type Services from within schools and
children’s services — will allow us to modify their work into our own IAG plans
and visions
CC-RP 007 |D The slow speed of decisions, rigidness and lack of creativity that hinders other
department will not create the responsive and flexible service that young
people require.
CC-RP 008 | SA | Option A in the light of the vision, is infinitely preferable, and will more easily
encourage working in partnership with other organisations.
CC-RP 010 | SA | The Service must encourage individual career ambitions that are realistic and
achievable and for the majority relate to the local and national jobs market.
CC-RP 012 | SA | OK to bring Connexions in-house but don’t lose one of their great strengths —
their impartiality and client centred approach.
CC-RPO013 | D They will be reviewed differently by all stakeholders




2. Do you agree with the priorities and objectives?

2 | Strongly Agree

9 | Agree

0 | Disagree

0 | Strongly Disagree
Comments:

CC-RP 001 | A | The ongoing challenges and new requirements have been correctly identified. A
further key challenge is to find the resources to enable the new requirements to be
fulfilled.

CC-RP 006 | A | I would like to see — making employer links in the community and helping to
facilitate better employer engagement in schools as a priority

CC-RP 007 | A | To be more inclusive of other agencies in delivering services to NEET young
people.

TO place greater emphasis on useful, work-skilled having to solve NEET, not just
any training with little purpose

CC-RP 008 | A | Drop-out rates post-16 and effects on NEET numbers continue to be frustrating
despite improved arrangements for notification by post-16 providers, and
subsequent action by Connexions Service

CC-RP010 | A | The prime service of our new Connexions Service must be to provide timely,
impartial and accurate career advice and guidance to mainstream pupils as a
priority.

CC-RP 012 | SA | Make sure there is enough funding for an expansion of the service to 11-19 year
olds. All young people are entitled to an equal service.

CC-RP 013 | A | Extra services require extra people

Appendix 3
Page 2 of 5




3. Do you think the overall delivery model with a separate IAG service and targeted work in
locality teams is appropriate?

3 | Strongly Agree
5 | Agree
3 | Disagree
1 | Strongly Disagree
Comments:
CC-RP 001 | A | With regard to a separate IAG service and targeted work in locality teams
CC-RP 001 | D | With PAs with LDD responsibility being placed in LDD Specialist Team
CC-RP 003 | A | Would agree that is important to have a joined up approach
CC-RP 003 | D | Am unclear about distinction between LDD Specialists team and IAG Team as
one
CC-RP 004 | SA | Knowledge of local areas is crucial
CC-RP 007 | D | There is already a lot of suspicion around council run services amongst young
people. This will not be perceived as impartial and will put off a number of young
people from accessing the service.
CC-RP 008 | A | Could be conflict of interest between assessment of needs, and the financial
decisions related to levels and funding of support.
CC-RP 010 | SA | IAG Advisors must have strong links with specialist training providers who can
provide occupational careers advice.
CC-RP 012 | SA | Connexions is an established brand with young people and the name should be
retained
CC-RP 013 | SD | By loosing the larger team structure, communication between PAs and support

will be less effective

Appendix 3
Page 3 of 5




4. What do you value from the current Connexions Service?

Comments:

CC-RP 003

Impartiality of advice

CC-RP 004 | Continuity of service

CC-RP 006 | Their flexibility, willingness to attend CAF, PSP meetings

CC-RP 007 | Advocates on behalf of young people — sometimes against LA decisions

CC-RP 008 | Good performance statistics relating to NEETs and Unknowns, some of the best, |
believe, in the country.

CC-RP 012 | A city centre “drop in” location

CC-RP 013 | ltis possible to develop firm relationships with a named PA built on trust and mutual

respect

5. What else would you like the Connexions Service to deliver?

Comments:

CC-RP 003 | Advice at younger age

CC-RP 005 | IAG from Y8 — Y9, Y10/11 and 16+
Support for potential NEETs

CC-RP 006 | Meet employers / career conferences

CC-RP 007 | Could contribute more to wider agendas such as accommodation issues

CC-RP 010 | The remit is currently very wide and nothing more should be added which could
dilute core services

CC-RP 011 | Improved understanding of the barriers faced by 16-25 year olds with
severe/profound Multiple Learning Difficulties

CC-RP 012 | More work with employers to generate employment opportunities for young people

Appendix 3
Page 4 of 5




6. How might Connexions contribute to Key Stage 3 as part of an integrated 11-19
Strategy?

Comments:

CC-RP 001

It is important that schools have good Careers Education and Guidance in key stage
3.

Develop information resources suitable for KS3 students.

Provide support and IAG to those who are not in schools, excluded or in receipt of
elective home education.

CC-RP 006 | Provide clear data on the local “job market” which could be used in Geography or
PSHE lessons
CC-RP 010 | Advice and guidance Diploma options

7. Have you any other ideas or comments you would like to make about the proposals?

Comments:

CC-RP 001

It is vital that, as a minimum, current resource levels are maintained and, if the new
requirements outlined on page are met that front-line resources are increased.

CC-RP 003 | I hope that the amount of time that Connexions staff are able to spend in school can
increase to deal with the need for IAG at a younger age

CC-RP 004 | We are pleased with the service as it stands, changes are welcome if they are
appropriate to our needs

CC-RP 007 | No explanation of why take in-house — other than it is how others do it

CC-RP 010 | It should be a high profile organisation with its own identity, not just seen as “a
department of the council”

CC-RP 012 | Keep it in the centre of town

CC-RP 013 | ltis vital that the outlying services remain in towns other than Hereford

SUMMARY FEEDBACK FROM YOUNG PEOPLE

e The Connexions Transfer needs to pay particular attention to the image of
Herefordshire Council with Children and Young People and ensure that
dissatisfaction with the Council does not translate to the Connexions Service once it
becomes part of the Local Authority

o The Connexions logo is a brand that is trusted

e The work of this consultation clearly chows an overwhelming high regard for the
Connexions PAs in Herefordshire

¢ The integration of Children and Young People’s services has significant potential to
provide a comprehensive and cohesive web of professionals to provide the very best
for children and young people.

Appendix 3
Page 5 of 5







AGENDA ITEM 8

i Herefordshire
Council

MEETING: CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE: 28 SEPTEMBER 2009

TITLE OF REPORT: | CAPITAL BUDGET REPORT 2009/2010

PORTFOLIO AREA: CHILDREN’S SERVICES AND ICT, ACHIEVEMENT
& EDUCATION

CLASSIFICATION: Open —
Wards Affected

County-wide
Purpose
To scrutinise the capital budget position for 2009/10 for the Children & Young People’s Directorate.
Key Decision
This is not a Key Decision.
Recommendation(s)
THAT Committee note and comment on the report as part of its scrutiny function.
Key Points Summary
. With the exception of previously reported delays with the delivery of The Riverside School and
the Holmer Flood Alleviation Scheme, the capital programme is being delivered on time and to

budget.

Alternative Options

1 This report is a monitoring report. There are alternatives in terms of the format if Scrutiny
Committee wishes to have information presented in a different way.

Reasons for Recommendations
2 Monitoring report
Introduction and Background

3 This report provides a summary of the planned capital expenditure for the Children & Young
People’s Directorate in 2009/2010.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Rob Reid, Head of Access & Capital Commissioning on (01432) 260920

CapitalBudgetReport0.doc

23



Planned capital expenditure for 2009/10 is around £30 million.

Key Considerations

4,

Update on capital schemes for 2009/10

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

The Minster College — Building Schools for the Future One School Pathfinder -
21,000,000 (£7,201,349 to be spent in 2009/10)

This scheme continues to progress well and is on schedule to complete in the summer
2010.

While the new school has been designed to accommodate the upper end of possible
future student numbers within the catchment area and, in time, from new housing, the
school will have significant spare capacity when it opens. The Local Authority
continues to work with the headteacher and governors to mitigate this. An area of
surplus capacity is being developed to accommodate a multi agency integrated
children’s services team within the new building.

The Hereford Academy - £23,000,000 (£9,066,000 to be spent in 2009/10)

Planning permission for the new build has been approved. At the time of writing this
report, approval of the final business case by Partnerships for Schools is imminent.
This will release the funding for the project and Willmott Dixon Construction will then
commence work immediately. The scheme is within budget and the new buildings are
due to complete in the spring of 2011. Students and staff will then move into the new
buildings, allowing for the existing buildings to be demolished and the final external
areas to be landscaped. The whole scheme is due to complete in the autumn of 2011.

Primary Capital Programme - £3,000,000 (2009/10) + £5,378,000 (2010/11)

This is the national Government fourteen year funding programme for major
investment in primary schools and primary age special schools. Herefordshire will
receive its first year’s allocation of £3,000,000 this financial year and £5,378,000 in
2010/11, giving a total of £8,378,000 over the two financial years. Funding amounts
beyond this have not yet been announced by Government.

Cabinet has committed £7,378,000 of the first two year’s funding to the building of a
new all through primary school in Leominster, to replace the current Leominster Infant
and Leominster Junior schools. A Project Team has been formed, comprising of the
headteachers and governor representatives of the current schools and Local Authority
Children’s Services, Property Services and Human Resources officers, to deliver the
new build school and to carry out the statutory school reorganisation process to
establish the new school. Amey will provide the consultant architect and design
service.

Herefordshire’s Primary Strategy for Change identifies the balance of the funding from
the Year 1 and Year 2 allocations, £500,000, as being available as a ‘match funding
pot’. Consultation with schools will take place this autumn on a mechanism for primary
schools to bid for funding for capital schemes from the ‘match funding pot’ and the
criteria to be used to determine priorities for receiving funding.

Locally Coordinated Voluntary Aided Programme (LCVAP) - £1,600,000

24



4.5

4.6

4.7

Capital funds for Voluntary Aided schools are allocated to local authorities from the
Department for Children Schools and Families. In conjunction with the Roman
Catholic Diocese, the Anglican Diocesan and Staunton-on-Wye School, which is
Herefordshire’s only non-denominational voluntary aided school, the Local Authority
coordinates the programme of investment. The works identified are either large
maintenance schemes or improvement schemes, although certain ICT installations are
also permitted. The figures quoted are always in 100% but 10% has to be found
locally using School’s revenue budget or the Trustees’ own account. Bids are invited
from aided Schools around June/July each year with submissions having to be made
by the end of September. The Department for Children Schools and Families are
advised of the programme by the end of November of each year. Any scheme
approved requires competitive tenders to be obtained and submitted to the Department
for Children Schools and Families for approval. Grants are paid on receipt of invoices
and the final account requires receipted invoices and certificates of completion from
the professional advisors.

The proposed programme for 2009/10 is:

St Joseph’s RC Primary — completion of new school hall - £300,000
Pembridge C of E Primary — Remodelling of accommodation - £300,000
Bishop of Hereford’s Bluecoat School — Boiler replacement - £100,000
- Re-roofing - £30,000

Staunton on Wye Primary School — contribution to school build ~ £300,000
St Paul's C of E Primary — Replacement roof £55,000
St Michael’s C of E Primary — kitchen conversion - £17,000
Leintwardine C of E Primary — Admin/staff area remodelling - £150,000
St Mary’s C of E, Fownhope — replace rooflights - £30,000
St Mary’s RC High — Re-roofing £40,000
- upgrade lighting to classrooms £40,000
Whitchurch C of E Primary — Re-roofing £60,000
Brampton Abbotts Primary — remodelling £128,000
Access contingency -

(to meet Disability Discrimination Act requirements) £50,000

Capital Maintenance Programme - £1,940,828

This allocation is managed by the Council’s Asset Management and Property Services
Team to address the highest condition issues. The allocation includes £250,000
specifically for work to prevent legionella and £100,000 to refurbish and re-site mobile
classrooms where appropriate.

14 to 19 and Special Education Needs Grant - £2,000,000 (2009/10) + £6,000,000
(2010/11)

Priorities for spend are to be determined as part of the review of Special Educational
Needs provision. A paper outlining options will be considered by Cabinet.

Alternative Provision Capital Grant - £850,000 (2009/10) + £884,000 (2010/11)
Last summer, the Local Authority was successful in its bid to the Department for
Children Schools and Families to acquire funding for a pilot project to establish

alternative provision for children who would otherwise be excluded from school. The
bid has attracted a capital grant totalling £1,734,000 and also some revenue funding.

25



4.8

4.9

4.10

4.1

The first school to benefit from this funding is John Masefield High School which
opened its new provision at the beginning of this autumn term. Provision at John Kyrle
High School is due to be available by the autumn half term. This is later than the
intended September start date due to a delay in the relocation of a gas supply meter by
British Gas. Feasibility studies are being carried out at all other high schools to provide
dedicated accommodation for alternative provision at each high school by 31% March
2011.

Playbuilder — £526,332 (2009/10) + £593,285 (2010/11)

The Local Authority has been successful in its bid to the Department for Children
Schools and Families for capital grant funding totalling £1,119,617 from the Playbuilder
scheme.

The Playbuilder scheme is about providing play sites for 8-13 year olds that are fully
inclusive in terms of diversity and disability, have support from the local community,
permission from the landowner, encourage risk and challenge and make the most of
the natural environment.

This is a two year project to develop 22 play sites, 11 in each year. 11 sites have been
identified for development this financial year and officers from the Children and Young
People’s Directorate are working with colleagues from Parks, Countryside and Leisure
and the third sector to consult communities, and in particular young people, on the
facilities they would like to see developed in their area.

The project is being externally audited on behalf of the Department for Children
Schools and Families by Play England which provides a monthly ‘Red/Amber/Green’,
or ‘RAG’ rating report to Ministers. Play England is very pleased with Herefordshire’s
progress to date and the project management arrangements. The latest monitoring
meeting took place with Play England on 8" September and the current ‘RAG rating’ is
‘Green'.

Riverside Primary School - £1,187,632 (2009/10)

This scheme has been delayed due to the appointed contractor going into
administration. A contract has now been put in place with another contractor to
complete the scheme. Pupils and staff will move into their new facilities at the end of
the autumn term 2009.

Holmer Flood Alleviation - £179,419 (2009/10)

Immediate preventative works have been carried out. The council is dependent upon
receipt of a flood modelling survey from the Environment Agency before further work is
done. The main work will be undertaken in the spring of 2010.

Accessibility — Individual Pupil Needs - £389,560 (2009/10)

This budget is used to address specific accessibility issues for pupils who would
otherwise be disabled from accessing the curriculum. A number of schemes have
been carried forward from last financial year for completion this year. Officers are
currently assessing works which will be carried out this year, ready for pupils starting
primary school, or transferring to high school in September 2010.

26



412

413

4.14

Children’s Centres - £594,842 (2009/10)

Hollybush and Peterchurch Children’s Centres are progressing well and are due to
complete in November 2009. Plans for the extension of Springfield Children’s Centre
are being prepared and options are being considered for the provision of children’s
centre services to the north of the County.

Quality & Access for early years provision - £1,324,268 (2009/10)

This is grant funded by the DCSF and is aimed at improving the quality of, and/or
access to quality early years provision, particularly in the private, voluntary and
independent sectors. A Quality & Access Project Board has been established to invite
and evaluate bids from early years providers for grant funding aimed at schemes which
will improve quality and/or access. An initial round of bids has focused on ICT,
accommodation and outdoor play space. Consideration is now being given to the
focus of further bidding rounds. A report on the grants made will form part of the
regular Capital Budget Report to Children’s Scrutiny Committee in December 2009.

Section 106 - £320,661 of developer contributions to spend within time-scales
which are specific to individual contributions.

The Town & Country Planning Act 1990 allows a Local Authority to negotiate financial
contributions from developers in respect of infrastructure and services. The Council’s
Planning Obligation Supplementary Planning Guidance document provides a
framework for negotiating contributions for Children & Young People’s Services,
including schools.

Contributions are used to meet the highest asset management plan priorities of the
individual school, or groups of schools/establishments in an area, if specific schools
are not named.

The following Section 106 developer contributions are currently held by the Children &
Young People’s Directorate:

The Bradbury Lines, Hereford, developer contribution of £182,443 is provided for
education facilities in the area. Possible beneficiaries are: St. Martin's Primary, Our
Lady's RC Primary, Marlbrook Primary and Blackmarston Special School. While there
is potential to spend this money at any one, or all of these schools, the highest asset
management plan priorities are currently being assessed by officers in order to provide
an objective analysis of the priorities for capital investment. Options will be reported to
the Cabinet Member for consideration. The deadline for spend is 25th January 2011.

The Pentland Gardens, Hereford, developer contribution of £46,878 for Trinity Primary
School will be spent on toilet refurbishments in 2009/10. This scheme was undertaken
during the school summer holiday.

The Bullingham Lane developer contribution of £34,090 for St. Martin’s Primary School

will be spent on providing outdoor shade/weather shelter facilities and an extension to
accommodate reprographics facilities, which currently occupy a corridor space.

27



4.15

4.16

417

The Withies Road (2) developer contribution of £39,407 will be spent in 2009/10 upon
agreement with Withington Primary School and Aylestone High School on the highest
asset management plan priority(ies) to be addressed.

The Coughton, Ross-on-Wye, developer contribution of £9,000 will be spent in 2009/10
to help provide sufficient Year 7 places at John Kyrle High School for September 2009.

The balance of £8,842 from the Old Road, Bromyard development will be spent by St
Peter’s Primary School in 2009/10.

Extended Schools Grants - £321,426 (2009/10)

Extended schools providers are invited to bid for capital grants through a 2 stage
process. The first stage is for the bidder to seek agreement in principle to grant
funding towards their particular project. If bids are approved in principle, then the
applicant is invited to submit a full business case. Upon approval of the business case,
a grant is then made. A report on the grants made will form part of the regular Capital
Budget Report to Children’s Scrutiny Committee in December 2009.

Schools’ Devolved Formula Capital - £3,688,535

Devolved directly to schools to spend on their highest asset management plan
priorities.

Co-location of services — £1,198,025 (2009/10)

The Local Authority has, on behalf of Herefordshire’s Children’s Trust, been successful
in its bid to the Department for Children Schools and Families for capital funding to
provide co-located services. The full funding, over two years, is £2.2m. This will
support the move towards the provision of integrated services through locality based
teams. Feasibility studies are underway to explore possible locations and venues for
co-located services.

Community Impact

5

The capital investment programme of the Children and Young People’s Directorate, including
schools and early years settings, has wide ranging community impacts, benefiting children and
young people and their families across Herefordshire

Financial Implications

6

These are contained in the body of the report.

Legal Implications

7

The use of capital funding including grants must comply with the legal requirements
associated with each funding stream and the conditions of specific grants

28



Risk Management

8 The risks are set out in the body of the report, in terms of project delays and the actions
planned to mitigate the impact of these.

Consultees

9 Not applicable.

Appendices

10 None.

Background Papers

o None identified.

29



30



AGENDA ITEM 9

Herefordshire

Council
MEETING: CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
DATE: 28™ SEPTEMBER 2009

TITLE OF REPORT: | REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 2009/10

PORTFOLIO AREA: | Children’s Services

Wards Affected
County-wide
Purpose

To report on the monitoring of the Children’s Services revenue budget for 2009/10 and provide
comparisons to 2008/09 budget and outturn.

Key Decision
This is not a key decision

Recommendations

THAT Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee:

(a) considers the format of this report and its suitability for future
meetings;
(b) comments and scrutinises the figures contained herein.

Key Points Summary

e The directorate under spent by £533k in 2008/09 and is currently projecting to over spend
by £755k for 2009/10

e The projected over-spend is primarily due to the increasing pressures within Safeguarding
services.

e The Children and Young People’s Directorate (CYPD) Leadership Team is undertaking a
detailed review of current services and staffing requirements to address the projected
over-spend and to enable Children’s Services to be robust in structure to meet increasing
demands in a time of mounting budgetary pressures.

e As part of this work the extended leadership team of the Directorate is being reorganised
and some key new appointments made. Consultation and work will continue throughout
the autumn to finalise the service arrangements for the different sections of the
Directorate, though Planning, Performance and Development (PP&D) already went
through a significant reorganisation to make it fit for purpose in 2008. Whilst making
these new and necessary changes, the Director is aware of the overall requirement for
budgetary control.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Chris Baird, Assistant Director, Planning, Performance and Development, Children and Young People’s
Directorate cbaird@herefordshire.gov.uk, 01432 260264

31

RevenueBudgetReport0.doc



Alternative Options

1

This report is a monitoring report. There are alternatives in terms of the format if Scrutiny
Committee wish to see figures presented in the Appendices in different ways.

Reasons for Recommendations

2

To enable Scrutiny Committee to carry out its function in relation to the Children’s
Services revenue budget for 2009/10.

Introduction and Background

3

At the last Scrutiny Committee meeting members requested a more detailed report on the
projected position for Children’s Services and expressed an interest in comparing the
current year’s budget and projected outturn to the corresponding figures for 2008/09. The
current report has been amended to include this level of detail and members are
requested to provide feedback on the format of the report which, if approved, will provide
the template for future reports.

Additional information has also been provided to offer further analysis on the expenditure
which is grant funded to show the varied sources of funding provided and the breadth of
services delivered by the Directorate.

Key Considerations

5

In the following figures it should be noted that the corporate recharges and the related
budgets are only allocated at the end of the financial year. The summary report for
2008/09 in section 6 therefore shows the net under spend including the corporate
recharges. The tables in Appendices A-C show comparisons for 2009/10 versus 2008/09
reports last year excluding corporate recharges for ease of comparison.

The outturn for 2008/09 reported a net under-spend of £533k including corporate charges.
The table below shows the material variances by service area:

£000 Budget (inc (Over) / under
corporate spend (including
recharges) corporate charges)
Central Directorate and Corporate 3,092 (288)
Costs
Improvement and Inclusion (1&l) 5,652 573
Planning, Performance & 13,571 356
Develooment (PPD)
Safeguarding Vulnerable Children 12,144 (96)
Community Operations 150 25
Grants (including ABG) 3,099 (37)
Total Budget and Under spend 37,708 533

Children’s Service Scrutiny Committee discussed the outturn of the Directorate budget at its
last meeting, but to refresh Members’ understanding the main reasons for the variances are
given below:

32



10

11

12

6.1 The primary variance within the Central Directorate was due to the inclusion of a
directorate wide target saving of (£159k) which was actually achieved across the
directorate as a whole with significant savings made by Inclusion & Improvement &
PP&D.

6.2 Within the Improvement and Inclusion team the requirements for contributions to
Joint Agency Managed cases budget (used for independent placements for pupils
with special educational needs) by the local authority was lower than anticipated
by £206k as a result of fewer children than planned requiring support. The other
major area of under-spend resulted from a reallocation of Early Years costs for
Hollybush Children’s Centre to ensure the grant was fully utilised saving £220k.

6.3 Within the PP&D service area the major under spend came within the School
Transport section at £494k, arising from a combination of factors including route
rationalisation and lower fuel prices than anticipated earlier in the year. These
savings were used to partially offset the cost of the ICT SLA corporate recharge at
(£95k) more than allocated budget and software licence costs at (£50k) in excess
of the budget.

Appendix A shows the budget and projected Local Authority Expenditure for 2009/10 with
2008/09 comparatives. In summary this is currently showing a net over-spend of £755k
which relates largely to expenditure within Safeguarding Vulnerable Children, with
contributions to achieving the directorate wide target savings coming from Inclusion &
Improvement and Planning, Performance and Development teams. The primary
contributory factors are detailed below.

The cost of external residential agency placements is broadly in line with both budget and
actual spend for 2008/09. This is a volatile area of spend due to the difficulty in
anticipating the numbers of children who will require this type of care and also the length
of time it will be needed. For prudence the current forecast assumes that the current
numbers of children remain in care for the remainder of the financial year.

The fostering and other looked after children costs are currently projecting an over spend
of £642k versus budget and £384k higher than 2008/09 actual spend. This is in part due
to increased court costs and also due to the high costs of agency fostering. We have
introduced higher payments to our own foster carers and a training programme to
increase their skills which in the longer term will reduce the reliance on expensive agency
foster parents.

The Children with Disabilities (non joint agency managed cases) overspend relates
primarily to a budget shortfall on two contracts with Marches and Barnados which are
subject to an annual increase in price.

The Family Assessment and Support overspend covers a number of areas including the
section 17 payments and a shortfall in the Emergency Duty cover contract following a
disaggregation of the budget from Adult Social Care. A detailed review of these payments
is currently underway by the new management team with Safeguarding. Staffing costs
also play their part in the overspend; though fully staffed CYPD is using a number of
agency staff which do cost more.

The Children with Disabilities budget for the joint agency managed cases (JAM) has been
maintained at the 2008/09 budget level for now as each case is very expensive and any
budget amendments must be agreed by all concerned parties. This will be monitored on
an ongoing basis throughout the year.

33



13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

The Children’s Service ICT budget has been adjusted to reflect the true cost of licences
and to remove a budget anomaly following the centralisation of ICT costs. The negative
budget arose as budget equivalent to actual spend was deducted from the CYPD budget
when the costs were centralised. As the budget had been over spent this resulted in a
budget shortfall which has to be covered within CYPD. The current year over-spend has
been offset by savings from within transport for this financial year and a budget
adjustment will be made to correct the anomaly.

The Community Operations forecast includes the full year cost of the Assistant Director
and also the commencement of activities in the lead up to the creation of the new locality
based teams. The funding of this team will come from the reorganisation of CYPD which
is currently underway.

The over spend on target savings reflects actual one off income and assumes that the
savings are found across the directorate through the management of vacancies and other
savings.

The miscellaneous other costs relates to ongoing costs for the Schools’ Task Group.

Appendix B shows the projected outturn for 2009/10 for Dedicated Schools Grant, This
has been analysed between schools expenditure and centrally funded schools related
expenditure. Overall expenditure is currently assumed to be in line with budget.

Please note that in 2008/09 all banded funding was held centrally, however for 2009/10
levels 1 and 2 banded funding has been devolved to schools and only the higher
requirements of level 3 and 4 are now centrally administered.

Other miscellaneous expenditure includes the costs for the special casework team, the
net position for inter authority recharges (costs for children travelling to schools within
Herefordshire and for Herefordshire children attending schools outside the county), also
plus an apportionment of corporate overheads.

To provide members with a full overview of the expenditure incurred by the Directorate
Appendix C sets out the major grant funded activities.

Although for grant funded programmes the net expenditure position is nil for clarity
Appendix C includes only the costs incurred to show the true level of spend on Children’s
Services. Please note that Children’s Services are in receipt of many small grants
therefore for brevity only the major grant categories are detailed below.

Another major funding source for Children’s Services other than the Area Based Grant
and Council funds is the Department for Children Schools and Families (DCSF). This
provides two major funding streams through the Standards Fund, and the General
Surestart Grant. Both of these grants have a revenue and a capital element, but only the
revenue funding is shown below.

The DCSF also provides additional grants for specific work / development programmes
including Contact Point and the new Playbuilder programme.

CYPD receives various grants from the Children’s Workforce Development Council and
the TDA which encompass the development of both teaching and non-teaching staff.
CYPD is also in receipt of some funding from the Big Lottery Fund to support various play
projects across the county. In addition, the 14-19 service area also receives various
grants from the Learning Skills Council and others to fund its activities.

34



25 Scrutiny Committee were interested in the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) and the rates
rebates discussed at previous meetings. In total rates rebates of £1,054,205 have been
received for charitable rates relief for voluntary aided schools going back to 2000. The current
year rebates (£186k) relating to 2008/09 were carried forward as part of the DSG under spend
and the remaining £868,537 for the period 2000-2008 has been carried forward as a reserve.

26 On the recommendation of the DCSF legal advice has been sought on the possible uses
of the rates rebates. The advice is that the rates rebates relating to the period 2000-2009
should be added to the overall schools budget in order that it can be available for the
benefit of all the Council’'s schools. Specifically, it is advised that “there is a one-off
increase in the per pupil allocation in the year that the allocation is made”.

27 In view of the legal advice it is therefore proposed to distribute all the £1,054,205 rates
rebates money to schools on a formula basis to be devised by School Forum Budget
Working Party. This formula will ensure a fair distribution over a set period of time to
ensure that the additional funding is not immediately clawed back from schools though the
balance claw-back scheme. Schools Forum on 29th September will consider a
recommendation that there is an initial distribution of the £185,688 rates rebates relating
to 2008/09 to all schools at £8.55 per pupil and that the remaining £868,537 will be spread
over future years.

29 There are further funds available for redistribution to schools from DSG carry forward
(£1,280,408) and it is proposed that these should be used for investment purposes in one-
off projects. These projects should ensure on-going improvements, developments and
efficiencies including ICT developments, resources for schools and contributions towards

any Building Schools for the Future initiative that may benefit Herefordshire. Decisions
will be made subject to detailed business cases being considered at Schools Forum.

Community Impact
30 The work of the Children and Young People’s Directorate, including schools and early

years settings have wide ranging community impacts, benefiting children and young
people and their families across Herefordshire.

Financial Implications

31 These are contained in the body of the report. The projected outturn is based upon
results to the end of July 2009.

Legal Implications

32 The use of budgets including grants must comply with the legal requirements associated
with each funding stream and the conditions of specific grants.

Risk Management

33 The risks are set out in the body of the report, in terms of the potential overspend. The
report notes the actions planned to address this potential overspend.

Consultees

34 Not applicable

35



Appendices
Appendix A — Budget and Projected Local Authority Expenditure for 2009/10
Appendix B — Projected Outturn for 2009/10 for Dedicated Schools Grant

Appendix C — Major Grant Funded Activities

36



Appendix A Budget and Projected Local Authority Expenditure for 2009/10
with 2008/09 Comparatives.

2008/09 2008/09 2008/09 2009/10  2009/10 2009/10
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Local Authority Expenditure Budget Actual Actual Budget Projected Projected
(excl. corporate recharges) Outturn  Variance Outturn  Variance
External Agency Placements 2,240 2,031 209 2,112 2,064 48
Fostering & other Looked After 2,571 2,868 (297) 2,610 3,253 (643)
Children costs (LAC)

Children with Disabilities (non 700 697 3 712 752 (40)
JAM cases)

Family Assessment and 1,743 1,761 (18) 2,131 2,194 (63)
Support

Safeguarding Staff Costs 4,235 4,223 12 4,313 4,310 3
(including social workers)

Children with disabilities Joint 825 619 206 825 825 0
Agency Managed (JAM)

Early Years (non grant funded) 274 55 219 62 62 0
Education Welfare Team 184 184 0 190 190 0
Inclusion & Improvement Mgmt 476 421 55 458 458 0
Special Educational Needs 859 700 159 862 838 24
School Improvement Service 1,113 1,166 (53) 1,077 1,077 0
Youth Offending Team 341 307 34 343 339 4
Youth Services 1,096 1,136 (40) 1,131 1,123 8
Children’s Services ICT 10 65 (55) (49) 80 (129)
Planning, Performance Mgmt 512 479 33 559 559 0
Property / Asset Management 847 1,100 (253) 748 748 0
School Admissions & Transport 5,285 4,901 384 5,301 5,123 178
Community Operations 110 85 25 103 120 (17)
Central Management Costs 225 212 13 230 220 10
Inspection & Advisory Service 0 154 (154) 0 0 0
Staff Severance Costs 598 605 (7) 756 756 0
Target Saving (159) 42 (201) (152) (64) (88)
Misc Other Central costs 44 (85) 129 (323) (273) (50)
Local Authority Total 24,129 23,726 403 23,999 24,754 755

37



38



Appendix B Projected Outturn for 2009/10 for Dedicated Schools Grant

2008/09 2008/09 2008/09 2009/10 2009/10 2009/10
£000 £000 £°000 £000 £000 £°000

Dedicated Schools Grant Budget Actual Actual Budget Projected Projected
(DSG) Outturn  Variance Outturn Variance
Grant Income (83,558) (83,558) 0 (84,519) (84,519) 0
Primary Schools 37,163 37,021 142 38,802 38,802 0
High Schools 36,293 36,121 172 36,162 36,162 0
Special Schools 3,580 3,623 (43) 3,777 3,777 0
Schools Related Expend. (Inc (461) (572) 111 100 100 0
contingency)
Less LSC Income (2,750) (2,806) 56 (2,750) (2,750) 0
Sub Total Schools Spending 73,825 73,387 438* 76,091 76,091 0
Central DSG Spending
Special Needs Banded Funding 1,190 858 332 534 534
Special Needs Support (JAM) 878 619 259 878 878
Fees to Independent Schools 341 332 9 341 341 0
(for special educational needs)
Music Income (989) (754) (235) (1,010) (1,010) 0
Music Expenditure 996 884 112 1,010 1,010 0
Nursery Education Funding 2,900 2,923 (23) 2,884 2,884 0
Pupil Referral Units 895 895 0 924 924 0
School Admissions & Planning 173 184 (11) 163 163 0
Special Educational Needs 1,501 1,376 125 1,504 1,504 0
support teams
Travellers Children 154 154 0 139 139
Early Years Support 465 165 300 469 469
Other Misc Expenditure 421 384 37 592 592
Sub Total DSG Central 8925 8020 905*

* DSG grant regulations require all under spends to be carried forward to 2009/10.

39



40



Appendix C Major Grant Funded Activities.

2008/09 2008/09 2008/09 2009/10 2009/10 2009/10
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Grant Funded Funded Budget Actual Actual Budget Projected Projected
Expenditure by Outturn  Variance Outturn Variance
Common ABG 100 82 18 126 126 0
Assessment (CAF)
Other Community ABG 0 0 0 109 109 0
Ops Support
Extended schools ABG 402 385 17 818 818 0
start up
Other Schools ABG 812 740 72 861 861 0
Support &
Connexions ABG 1,548 1,548 0 1,470 1,470
Teen Pregnancy ABG 99 92 96 96
Children’s Fund ABG 276 246 30 47 47 0
School Travel ABG 32 73 (41) 111 111 0
Children & ABG 208 203 5 202 202
Adolescent Mental
Other Safeguarding ABG 176 170 6 420 420 0
Children
Other ABG ABG (13) 85 (98) 102 102 0
Total ABG 3,640 3,624 16 4,362 4,362 0
Children’s Centres DCSF 1,872 1,652 220 2,254 2,254 0
Surestart
Grant
Other Early Years 1,933 2,153 (220) 1,816 1,816 0
Total Surestart 3,805 3,805 0 4,070 4,070
Grant
Special & Beacon DCSF 1,968 1,968 0 1,929 1,929 0
Schools Stds
Fund
School Development  Stds 5,415 5,415 0 5,183 5,183 0
Grant Fund
Other Devolved Stds 1,215 1,215 0 1,753 1,753 0
Schools Standards Fund
Extended Schools Stds 282 287 (5) 604 604 0
Fund
Music Services Stds 219 219 0 220 220 0
Fund
121 Tuition Stds 50 50 0 383 383 0
Fund
Other non-devolved  Stds 1,200 1,366 (166) 304 304 0
standards fund Fund
School Standards Stds 4,141 4,141 0 4,193 4,193 0
Grant Fund
Total Standards 14,490 14,661 (171) 14,569 14,569 0

Fund

RevenueBudgetAppendixC0.doc

41



42



AGENDA ITEM 10

i Herefordshire
Council

MEETING: CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

DATE: 28 SEPTEMBER 2009

TITLE OF REPORT: | PERFORMANCE DIGEST - QUARTER 1 2009/2010

PORTFOLIO AREA: | CHILDREN’S SERVICES AND ICT, EDUCATION

AND ACHIEVEMENT

CLASSIFICATION: Open
Wards Affected

County-wide

Purpose

To present the Performance Digest for Children’s Services for the first quarter of 2009/2010 (April —
June 2009) and to highlight key performance issues.

Key Decision

This is not a key decision

Recommendation(s)

THAT Scrutiny Committee assess the levels of performance achieved for the first
quarter of 2009/2010 and consider if further reports and/or action is judged to be
necessary.

Key Points Summary

There has been improved performance in relation to the percentage of initial assessments
completed within 7 working days from the year end outturn.

There has been significantly improved performance in relation to the achievement of at least 78
points across the Early Years Foundation Stage. However, unvalidated results at Key Stage 1
continue to show a downward trend over the last three years. Key Stage 2 performance is
mixed with some improvements within English and Maths for girls but a further decline for boys.
Science performance is good with all results above the national average. Of particular concern
is the results performance in narrowing the gap for vulnerable groups. This has declined
significantly on last year’s performance.

The impact of the recession and general economic downturn is continuing to affect the
percentage of young people not in education, training or employment and families in bed and
breakfast accommodation.

There continues to be good performance in relation to the participation of looked after children

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Hilary Hall, Head of Performance on (01432) 260801

Q1PerformanceDigest09report0.doc

43



and young people in their reviews, with some young people now chairing their own reviews.

Alternative Options

1 There are no Alternative Options.

Reasons for Recommendations

2 To ensure that progress against the indicators, for which the Children and Young People’s
Directorate is responsible, is understood and to ensure that the reasons for actual or potential
under-performance are understood and recommendations made for remedial action.

Introduction and Background

3 The Performance Digest is produced quarterly and is the mechanism for monitoring key
performance indicators, covering service delivery captured in the Local Area Agreement, the
Children and Young People’s Directorate and the Children and Young People’s Plan.
Committee members have been issued with copies of the Performance Digest. The Digest is
available from the Council’s web site or on request to the Head of Performance.

Key Considerations

4 Key areas in each of the Every Child Matters outcome areas, to which the Committee’s
attention should be drawn, are set out below:

Be Healthy

Results from the local Every Child Matters survey undertaken in secondary schools during
March 2009 are now available. Compared with the previous survey undertaken in 2006, the
percentage of young people smoking has reduced by 2% from 8% to 6% (HCS 22a); the
percentage of young people consuming alcohol has reduced from 18% to 14% (HCS 22e).
The percentage of young people eating 5 or more fruit and vegetables a day has also fallen
from 24% to 22% (HCS 22c). 886 young people, aged between 15 and 24 years, were
screened for Chlamydia in the first quarter of the year, down on the projected number of 1050
(NI 113b); the prevalence of Chlamydia in young people is currently 4.5% which is below the
national prevalence rate of 10% (NI 113a). There was a very low response rate to the School
Food Survey, which makes the results of very limited use. The survey did indicate that the
take up of school lunches in primary and secondary schools (NI 52), were disappointing.
There will be more joined up working between Facilities Management and Children’s Services
to encourage schools to take part.

Stay Safe

At the end of Quarter 1, for the rolling year, there were 263 referrals per 10,000 population
aged under 18, a slight drop on the year end outturn of 276. 56.9% of initial assessments
were completed in 7 working days (NI 59) which is an improvement on the year end position of
37.4%. Quarter 1 outturn has been significantly affected by performance in April 2009, offset
in part by exceptional performance in May and June. Performance for the year to the end of
July 2009 is now at 62.5% so it is anticipated that the target of 65% will be achieved by the
end of Quarter 2. Performance in relation to the timeliness of completing core assessments
(N1 60) has been affected in Quarter 1 with 56% completed in 35 working days. This is due to
the discovery of a large number of uncompleted core assessments which were already out of
timescale. Priority has been given to finishing off these core assessments by the end of

44



August 2009 as well as focusing on ensuring new core assessments are completed in
timescale.

There has been a rise in the number of children subject to a child protection plan in quarter 1
from 104 as at 31 March 2009 to 120 as at 30 June 2009. 100% of children subject to a child
protection plan were allocated to a named social worker (DIS 1219). The percentage of
children subject to a child protection plan for a second or subsequent time has fallen to 12.6%
from the year end position of 15% (NI 65). All reviews of child protection cases have taken
place during Quarter 1; however, as the figure is reported on a rolling year basis, five cases in
the final quarter of 2008/2009 missing the statutory timescales has affected the Quarter 1
outturn (NI 67). The number of looked after children has fallen from 162 as at 31 March 2009
to 152 as at 30 June 2009. 100% of looked after children were allocated to a named social
worker (DIS 1114). The percentage of looked after children in residential accommodation
(KIGS CH44) has fallen slightly from a year end outturn of 11% to 10.5% reflecting the
monthly review of placements taking place through the Children’s Resource Panel.

Enjoy and Achieve

Although not achieving the target for achievement of at least 78 points across the Early Years
Foundation Stage (EYFS) (NI 72), the outturn of 45.8% represents a significant improvement
on the 2008 outturn which was 42%. The predominance of summer born boys in the EYFS
continues to impact on results with 37% of boys achieving the improvement target compared
with 54.9% of girls. The percentage of boys in the total cohort is not significantly more than
girls but there are a higher proportion of summer born boys, making up 18% of the cohort. Itis
recognised, nationally and locally, that boys do less well than girls, and summer born children
do less well at the Foundation Stage. Unvalidated data for Key Stage 2 shows that 70.8% of
children achieved Level 4 in English and Maths (NI 73) which is 2% below the 2008 outturn.
Results in Key Stage 2 have shown a continuing downward trend over the last three years and
work is currently underway to explore the reasons behind the trend and to develop a robust
improvement plan.

75 looked after children out of a cohort of 87 (86.2%) have an up to date personal education
plan (CYPEA-6). The maijority of the remaining 12 are booked to have their plans updated in
the autumn term. Currently, 8 children and young people have hit, or are likely to hit, the 25
day absence target (HCS 35a). Final data will be available in October 2009.

Make a Positive Contribution

All reviews of looked after children cases have taken place during Quarter 1 (NI 66).
However, as the figure is a reported on a rolling year basis, five cases in the final quarter of
2008/2009 missing the statutory timescales has affected the Quarter 1 outturn. 94.4% of
looked after children participated in their reviews, an improvement on the year end position of
93.4% (PAF CF/63). During Quarter 1, there were 41 first time entrants to the Youth Justice
System aged 10 to 17 years (NI 111). In relation to re-offending, 52 young people from the
cohort of 123 re-offended in the period with 143 offences between them (NI 19). Three young
people, out of a cohort of 96, were sentenced to custody having received a conviction in court
(N143).

Achieve Economic Wellbeing

The impact of the recession and general downturn in the economy continues to impact on this
outcome area. The percentage of young people who are not in education, employment or
training (NI 117) continues to rise. The post 16 NEET programme has just started up again
which will help. However, the biggest group in the overall NEET group is 18 year olds who
have already been through the post-16 provision. Connexions is liaising with Jobcentre Plus

45



about fast tracking these young people to New Deal provision. At 30 June 2009, 7 families
were occupying bed and breakfast accommodation (CYP-AEW1). The increase in the number
of families presenting as homeless has meant that the homeless team has resorted to bed and
breakfast accommodation when other temporary accommodation is not available.

Service Management

50% of social workers have achieved the PQ1 award (DIS 3124). New recruits who do not
currently hold the award have impacted on the overall percentage and the target for the year
has been revised to 55%. 6.7 working days were lost to sickness absence per FTE within
Safeguarding and Vulnerable Children Service (HR02). There has also been a reduction in

the number of long term absence cases. The social worker establishment, as at 30 June
2009, stood at 49.5 FTE against a target of 57 FTE (HRO03).

Community Impact

5 None.

Financial Implications

6 Remedial action in respect of the directorate’s performance may require reallocation of
resources within existing budgets. This is being addressed by the Directorate Leadership
Team.

Legal Implications

7 None.

Risk Management

8 The risks to achievement of the indicators, for which the directorate is responsible, are
identified by officers as part of the service planning process. Any significant risks are
escalated to the directorate risk register, and corporate risk register, as appropriate. Day to
day management of risk is undertaken by responsible officers, in conjunction with their
Assistant Directors.

Consultees

9 None.

Appendices

10 Performance Digest circulated with the agenda as a separate document.

Background Papers

o None identified.

46



AGENDA ITEM 11

Herefordshire
Council
MEETING: CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY

COMMITTEE

DATE:

28 SEPTEMBER 2009

TITLE OF REPORT: | SEN/BANDED FUNDING - REVIEW WORKING

GROUP REPORT

PORTFOLIO AREA: | CHILDREN’S SERVICES

CLASSIFICATION: Open
Wards Affected

County-wide.

Purpose

To consider the findings of the SEN/Banded Funding Working Group and refer the findings
to the Herefordshire Schools Forum for consideration.

Recommendation

THAT

subject to any comments the Committee may wish to make the
recommendations of the Working Group, set out in paragraphs 12-14, be
referred to the Herefordshire Schools Forum for consideration as part of
their further review of the delegation of SEN/Banded Funding.

Reasons for Recommendation

1 To approve the recommendations of the SEN/Banded Funding Working Group for
referral to the Herefordshire Schools Forum for consideration as part of their further
review of delegated funding.

Introduction and Background

2 All mainstream schools receive delegated SEN Bands 1 & 2 funding into their
budgets. The amount for each setting is determined through a formula. The Funding
For Inclusion (FFI) Group, a sub group of the Herefordshire Schools Forum,
considered a number of formula options by which SEN funding could be allocated
and consulted schools upon two options throughout September — November 2008.
The results were considered by the Herefordshire Schools Forum who subsequently
advised the local authority.

3 At its meeting on 8 December 2008 the Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee
considered information concerning the provision of additional funding to mainstream
schools for the purpose of making appropriate Special Educational Need (SEN)
arrangements under the 2001 SEN Code of Practice.

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Paul James, Democratic Services Officer (01432) 260460

47



4

The Committee debated the report and a number of concerns were raised. These
were principally around the use of the Free School Meal index as a basis for
allocating levels 1 & 2 banded funding to schools. The Committee resolved that the
report be noted and a SEN/Banded Funding Working Group comprised of
Councillors: WLS Bowen (Chairman) WU Attfield; G Lucas; AM Toon; SJ Robertson
and JD Woodward, be formed to examine the range of delegated funding options and
how the SEN/Banded Funding system was meeting the needs of children and
schools.

Considerations

5

10

Prior to the meeting of the Working Group members were issued with a substantial
pack of background information principally containing: the report and minutes of
Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee; a report by the Assistant Director
Improvement and Inclusion setting out the position; and reports and minutes of
Herefordshire Schools Forum.

A meeting of the Working Group was held on 18 August 2009, which was also
attended by Kathy Roberts (Assistant Director of Improvement and Inclusion), Ed
Edwards (Manager of Additional Needs: SEN and Disability) and Malcolm Green
(Finance Manager).

The Working Group received an overview by Kathy Roberts. This included a
summary of the work undertaken by the Funding For Inclusion Group, focusing on
the options consultation with schools and an analysis of the responses, and the
subsequent deliberations by the Herefordshire Schools Forum, which considered the
outcomes and advised the local authority.

The Working Group questioned the officers based on the following themes: the
Banded Funding Process; the Statutory Assessment Process; SEN Funding in
Schools, and the Formula Considerations.

In relation to the use of the Free School Meal (FSM) index to allocate funding for
bands 1 & 2, the Working Group were informed that a number of delegation models
had been considered, including the possible introduction of moderation factors.
However, it had been considered that even with the moderation factors included the
alternatives to FSM provided little additional benefit and were likely to complicate the
procedure for schools. While not perfect it was considered that a formula based on
the FSM index, which was updated annually, would provide the most up to date index
and be most closely correlated with the actual banded funding in 2007-8. It had also
been recognised by the Herefordshire Schools Forum that a few schools would be
adversely affected and therefore to limit the financial loss to those schools protection
arrangements had been put in place.

Herefordshire Schools Forum also approved a review of the use of Free School
Meals as the index in the funding formula during 2009/10. This review will be
undertaken during late autumn 2009/early spring 2010. The Working Group were
also informed that as part of that review, work is already underway to explore the use
of a basket of indicators in the hope of obtaining a closer fit to the SEN numbers in
schools and provide a more consistent funding method to assist schools with longer
term budget planning.

48



The Findings

11

12

13

14

15

16

Based on the information before them the Working Group were satisfied that due
consideration had been given by the Funding For Inclusion Group and the
Herefordshire Schools Forum to the options available by which Band 1 & 2 funding
could be delegated to schools.

The Working Group noted that should a child need more support/funding than Band 4
funding provided to enable the child to stay at their chosen mainstream school, a
process was already in place whereby, following an assessment, ‘top-up’ funding
could be allocated to the school to meet the child’s needs. The Working Group
RECOMMENDED that the Band 4 ‘top-up’ mechanism needed to be set out in the
guidance documentation.

Noting an apparent low response by schools to the consultation undertaken by the
FFI Group, the Working Group RECOMMENDED that when future consultation on
the issue is undertaken that schools receive adequate education and clarification to
ensure that schools fully engage in the consultation.

Appreciating that the Herefordshire Schools Forum intend to review the use of the
FSM indicator, the Working Group supported the exploration of alternative delegation
formula and therefore: RECOMMENDED that the proposed work on exploring further
the FSM index or developing a ‘basket of indexes’ be undertaken by the
Herefordshire Schools Forum.

The Working Group requested that the Assistant Director, Improvement and Inclusion
refer the above findings to the Herefordshire Schools Forum for consideration as part
of their further review of the delegation of SEN/Banded funding.

The Working Group requested that it be kept informed of the outcome of the review
by the Herefordshire Schools Forum on this subject.

Community Impact

17

None as a result of this report.

Financial Implications

18

None as a result of this report

Legal Implications

19

None as a result of this report. .

Risk Management

20

None as a result of this report.

Consultees

21

The Working Group interviewed: Kathy Roberts (Assistant Director of Improvement
and Inclusion), Ed Edwards (Manager of Additional Needs: SEN and Disability) and
Malcolm Green (Finance Manager).

49



Appendices

22 None. .

Background Papers

o None identified.

50



AGENDA ITEM 12

Herefordshire
Council
MEETING: CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE
DATE: 28 SEPTEMBER 2009

TITLE OF REPORT: COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME

REPORT BY: DEMOCRATIC SERVICES OFFICER

CLASSIFICATION: Open
Wards Affected

County-wide.

Purpose

To consider the Committee’s work programme.

Recommendation

THAT subject to any comment or issues raised by the Committee the
Committee work programme be approved and reported to the Strategic
Monitoring Committee.

Introduction and Background

1. As reported to Council in May, work is ongoing on the response to the findings of the
external healthcheck of the scrutiny function, undertaken by the Leadership Centre,
which is also looking at the Council’'s governance arrangements as a whole and
Member Development. Members of the Strategic Monitoring Committee have met
informally to discuss the findings, some of which relate to the content of annual Work
Programmes. Further work is being programmed. Work Programmes of all the
Scrutiny Committees will need to be reconsidered in the light of these discussions.
The Committee should have the opportunity to consider a revised work programme
at its next meeting.

2. Pending the outcome of the above work, a report on the Committee’s current work
programme will be made to each scheduled meeting of this Scrutiny Committee. A
copy of the work programme is attached as an appendix.

3. The programme may be modified by the Chairman following consultation with the
Vice-Chairman and the Directors in response to changing circumstances.

4. Should any urgent, prominent or high profile issue arise, the Chairman may consider
calling an additional meeting to consider that issue.

5. A number of other possible issues for consideration have been logged and
depending on the Committee’s further instructions may be added to the programme

Further information on the subject of this report is available from
Paul James, Democratic Services Officer on (01432) 260460

51



as it is further developed. The issues are listed at the foot of the programme.

6. Should Members become aware of any issues they consider may be added to the
scrutiny programme they should contact the Democratic Services Officer to log the
issue so that it may be taken into consideration when planning future agendas or
when revising the work programme.

Background Papers

o None identified.

52



Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee - Work Programme - 2009/10

Note: All Councillors have been invited to a seminar on Safeguarding on 9th

November 2009

Friday 11th December 2009

Officer Reports

Safeguarding — the work of the Safeguarding
Board and associated issues.

(Note the seminar on 9 November will provide
Members with a background to the issues.)

Introduction and Implications of Nursery
Education Funding (NEF). (subject to receipt of
government guidance)

Capital Budget Monitoring.
Revenue Budget Monitoring
Performance Digest
Committee Work Programme.

Scrutiny Reviews

Pupil Achievement at swimming at Key Stage 2

Note: All Councillors will be invited to a seminar based one of the Every Child
Matters themes (date and theme to be confirmed)

Friday 19th March 2010

Main item picking up on theme of the seminar.
Capital Budget Monitoring.

Revenue Budget Monitoring

Performance Digest

Committee Work Programme.

Scrutiny Reviews

June/July 2010

Presentation by Cabinet Member Children’s
Services

Presentation by Cabinet Member ICT, Education
and Achievement.

Review of ECM Link Member Role
Capital Budget Monitoring.
Revenue Budget Monitoring
Performance Digest

Committee Work Programme.

Scrutiny Reviews

53




September 2010

. Capital Budget Monitoring.

. Revenue Budget Monitoring

. Performance Digest

. Committee Work Programme.
Scrutiny Reviews --

Possible future items on:

The 14 — 19 Strategy

Foundation and Academy Schools

Governance arrangements for the Children’s Trust and partnerships.
Delivery plans to be submitted to Committee for the Children and Young
People Plan.

Suggested themes or Issues identified by the Director for future agendas

Date Subject

9 November 09 Safeguarding

To be confirmed Be Healthy: Substance Misuse

To be confirmed Economic Well Being: 14-19 / LSC / Connexions
Changes / Plans

To be confirmed Positive Contribution: Targeted / Integrated Youth
Services

To be confirmed Enjoy and Achieve: Attendance

In consultation with the Chairman and Vice-Chairman the Director of Children’s
Services is working up a programme of open seminars for Members based on
defined themes.

54




	Agenda
	
	4 MINUTES
	Item 6 School Task Group Paper - Reports
	Consultation Document - FINAL (2)
	Schools Task Group - Appendix 2
	Schools Task Group - Appendix 3

	7 14-19: Machinery of Government,: Changes to Connexions, LSC Transfer
	14-19 MoG Connexions LSC Transfer - Appendix 1

	Item 7 - Machinery of Government - Reports
	xxxAppendix1
	Appendix2
	Appendix3

	8 Capital Budget Report 2009/2010
	9 Revenue Budget Monitoring Report 2009/2010
	Revenue Budget - Appendix A
	Revenue Budget - Appendix B
	Revenue Budget - Appendix C

	10 Performance Digest - Quarter 1 2009/2010
	Item 10 - Performance Digest - the Digest
	11 SEN/Banded Funding Review Working Group Report
	12 Committee Work Programme
	work programme Appendix 1


